
April 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President Ken Howell, Council Vice President John Halverson, Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, 
Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Cindy Flower, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – City Administrator Oborn 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Awards, Presentations, and Proclamations 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of April 9, 2018 and April 17, 2018 as prepared and distributed 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation on April 17, 2018 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. 2018-2019 Operator (Bartender) License applications filed by Zachary Belanus, Michael Fryar, Kelly 

Hagren, Robert Peters, Rachael Englehardt, Annette Rude, Johnathon Steltenpohl, David Stinebrink, 
Timothy Stinebrink, Edward Vogt, Nicholas Grimme, and Cynthia Wisniewski 
 

b. Street Banner Permit Application made by VISIT Lake Geneva for the event of Restaurant Week; Banners 
to be displayed May 1, 2018 through June 11, 2018 (City Administrator to approve banner display; Applicant is 
requesting waiver of all fees; FLR recommended approval with payment of $10 per pole used, totaling $110 for the display ) 

 
c. Event Permit Application made by the American Legion Auxiliary for the event of Fourth of July 

Children’s Public Parade to be held on July 4, 2018; Parade route starting at Eastview School and ending 
at American Legion Post (Applicant is requesting waiver of all fees; FLR approved with the payment of the $25 application 
fee) 
 

d. Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s License Application (Beer Only) made by the Geneva Lake 
Arts Foundation for the event of Lake Geneva Arts Festival to be held on May 5, 2018 at 223 Broad Street 
 

e. Event Permit Application made by Cindy Forster Fueredi for the event of Maple Park Homeowners Block 
Party to be held June 30, 2018 at 1005- 1010 Geneva St 
 

City of Lake Geneva 
626 Geneva St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
(262) 248-3673 
www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

 



April 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 3 

f. Parking Stall Bag request filed by Lake Geneva Farmers Market to use 13 stalls on the west side of Broad 
Street on Thursdays from May 3, 2018 to October 25, 2018 (24 days) from 7:00am to 2:00pm with waiver 
of all parking stall bag fees 
  

10. Item(s) removed from the Consent Agenda 
 

11. Second Reading of Ordinance 18-5, Providing for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Consent of Electors and 
Property Owners of Territory Located in the Town of Geneva to the City of Lake Geneva  for the applicant 
Mark Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the 1.95 acre property located at Tax Key 
No. JG2500014A (Annexation recommended by the Plan Commission on February 19, 2018 and approved by the WI Dept. of 
Administration on March 29, 2018) 

 
12. Finance, License, and Regulation Committee Recommendations of April 17, 2018- Ald. Howell 

 
a. Discussion/Action of Collection Agency Agreement between the Stark Collection Agency and the City of 

Lake Geneva 
 

b. Discussion/Action of Pay Request No. 3 for $3,150.00 for the City of Lake Geneva White River disc golf 
course pedestrian bridge replacement project 
 

c. Discussion/Action on Glen Fern Construction Payment Request No. 2 for $77,854.65 for Visitors 
Center Project from Capital Projects 
 

d. Discussion/Action on Glen Fern Construction Change Order Request No. 6 for $1,466.30 for Flat Iron Park 
and Visitors Center Project from Capital Projects 

 
e. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R31 Updating the Fee Schedule for the Fire Department 
 

13. Planning Commission Recommendations of April 16, 2018- Ald. Skates 
  

a. Discussion/Action of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for a Land Division for Kim Pischke of Core Commercial 
Inc. on the property located at 751 Geneva Parkway, to create three Lots, respectively with 1) Required easements 
and limiting access to the existing office building parking lot (using the southern line of the driveway coming 
from the east shown on the current site plan drawing C-2 as a cut-off point) and 2) easement agreement correction 
designating water line as publicTax Key Nos. ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, ZGBC00002. (Staff recommends 
correcting boundaries for the access closure and to maintain minimum lot sizes) 
 

b. Discussion/Action of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Serendipity and Sunsets LLC, PO Box 649, Cary, IL 
60013, c/o R.W. Torhorst to make a lot line adjustment for the property located at 962 Mariane Terrace and 
include all staff recommendations and fact finding including survey notes for utilities and acknowledging the 
existence of a possible easement. Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 
 

c. Discussion/Action on Resolution 18-R26, a Conditional Use Permit filed by Serendipity and Sunsets LLC. PO 
Box 649, Cary, IL, 60013, c/o R.W. Torhorst, for the demolition and new construction of a single family 
residence located at 962 Mariane Terrace including all staff recommendations and fact findings in the affirmative. 
Property is located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district and applicant requests to utilize the 
Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning. Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 
 

d. Discussion/Action to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan filed by Geneva Theater, 244 Broad Street, 
Lake Geneva, WI, 53147, to allow for the installation of an exterior walkup concessions and ticket sales, hanging 
sign, &an affixed wall sign located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district. Tax Key No.  ZOP00246, 
ZOP000247, &ZOP000248. 
 

e. Discussion/Action on Resolution 18-R32, a Conditional Use Permit filed by Austin Pier Services Inc., applicant 
Darrell Frederick, for the owner Peggy Roth Trust 837 Bayview Drive located in the Estate Residential (ER-1) 
zoning, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to construct a new Pier for George & Peggy Roth located at 837 Bayview Drive 
including all staff recommendations and fact findings in the affirmative.  Tax Key No.  ZGR00007. 



April 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 3 of 3 

 
f. Discussion/Action on Resolution 18-R33, a Conditional Use Permit amending an existing site plan for the 

Farmers Market for the Horticultural Hall located at 330 Broad Street, applicant Sean Payne,127 Summer Street, 
Genoa City, WI 53128. The proposed site plan to include the use of the public alley located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning from April through October every Thursday and allow for the sales of homemade, home 
grown products: cheese vegetables, bread, fruit, flowers, hummus, oils, crepes, empanadas, sauces, desserts, 
popcorn, seafood, coffee, and crafts, including all staff recommendations and fact findings in the affirmative.  Tax 
Key No.  ZOP000163. 
 

g. Discussion/Action of a Zoning Map Amendment for the property located at 100 North Edward Blvd. for TC 
Productions LLC. The request is to change the current zoning from Planned Development (PD) to Planned 
Business (PB). Tax Key No.  ZA196100004.  
 

h. Discussion/Action on Resolution 18-R34, a Conditional Use Permit by TC Productions LLC for the property 
located at 100 North Edwards Blvd., to construct a new commercial building to be used as a Commercial Indoor 
Entertainment (Magic Theater) land use classification section 98-206(4)(h),  including all staff recommendations 
and fact findings in the affirmative. Tax Key No.  ZA196100004. 
 

i. Discussion/Action of a proposed Ordinance Regulating Tourist Rooming Houses / Residential Short Term 
Rentals.  

 
 

14. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R35 confirming the Mayor’s Citizens Appointments to the Committees 
and Commissions of the City of Lake Geneva  

 
15. Presentation of Accounts – Ald. Howell (Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation Committee on  

April 17, 2018) 
 

a. Purchase Orders (none) 
 

b. Prepaid Bills in the amount of $15,714.57 
 

c. Regular Bills in the amount of $280,259.07 
 

 
16. Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the 

purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session with regard to 1) Room Tax 
Voluntary Collection Agreement with AIRBNB, INC  and 2) City property located at North Edwards Blvd 
near Highway 50 Tax Key No. ZRED0001 

17. Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items 
discussed in closed session 

 
18. Adjournment 
 
 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 
Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

4/20/2018 5:00 PM   cc: Aldermen, Mayor, City Admin., Attorney, Dept. Heads, Media 
 



April 9, 2018 City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 3 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

Mayor Kupsik called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 
 

Alderman Kordus led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Roll Call:  
Present: Kupsik, Kordus, Hedlund, Halverson, Flower, Chappell, Skates, Straube, and Howell 
Absent: None 
Guests: City Administrator Oborn, City Attorney Draper, City Clerk Kropf, Mayor Elect Tom Hartz, Alderpersons Elect 
Dunn and Proksa 

 
Awards, Presentations, and Proclamations 
None 
 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
None 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Charlene Klein; 817 Wisconsin St; Spoke in regards to the agreement with MSI General, specifically the lack a of a “not 
to exceed cost” clause within the agreement. 
 
Mary Jo Fesenmaier; 1085 S Lakeshore Drive; Spoke in opposition of changing the Committee of the Whole meetings to 
quarterly.  
 
Terry O’Neil; 954 George St; Spoke in opposition of changing the Committee of the Whole meetings to quarterly.  
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
None 

 
Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of March 26, 2018, as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Kordus to approve the Common Council meeting minutes of March 26, 2018, second by Skates. Motion 
carried 8-0. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation on April 3, 2018 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires 
no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
-Original 2018-2019 Operator’s (Bartender) License applications filed by Jennifer Goodfriend and Lucielle Novak 

 
-Temporary Class “B”/”Class B” Retailer’s License for the Walworth County Food Pantry for the event of Taste of Lake 
Geneva to be held on June 2, 2018 at Flat Iron Park 

 
-Event Permit Application made by the Lake Geneva Business Improvement District for the event of the Lake Geneva 
Arts Festival to be held May 4, May 5, and May 6, 2018 on the sidewalks of the downtown business district and alley 
between Avant Cycle and the Geneva Theater (Staff recommends unloading zone be in front of Geneva Theatre not on Main Street as 
indicated in the application) 

 
-Event Permit Application made by VISIT Lake Geneva for the events of Concerts in the Park to be held July 5, July 12, 
July 19, July 28, August 2, August 9, and August 23, 2018 at Flat Iron Park, Gazebo and Brunk Pavilion (Request for waiver 
of fees except $25 application fee) 

 

 



April 9, 2018 City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 3 

-Event Permit Application made by Alex Austin for the event of a 3 on 3 Basketball Tournament to be held in Veteran’s 
Park on August 4, 2018 with a rain day option of August 5, 2018 (Park Board approved contingent upon receipt and City Attorney 
review of Insurance) 

 
-Event Permit Application made by the Frank Kresen American Legion Post #24 for the event of the Memorial Day 
Parade to be held on May 28, 2018 with parade route starting on Wisconsin Street and Broad Street ending at Flat Iron 
Park with a $25 for Park Reservation Application Fee 

 
-Event Permit Application made by Tony Tiet and Joseph Ceisel for the event of the Tiet/Ceisel Wedding to be held 
September 2, 2018 in the Samuel Donian Wetland Preserve 
 
Motion by Skates to approve the consent agenda, second by Kordus. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Item(s) removed from the Consent Agenda 
None 

 
First Reading of Ordinance 18-5, Providing for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Consent of Electors and Property 
Owners of Territory Located in the Town of Geneva to the City of Lake Geneva  for the applicant Mark Larkin, 500 Stone 
Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the 1.95 acre property located at Tax Key No. JG2500014A (Annexation 
recommended by the Plan Commission on February 19, 2018 and approved by the WI Dept. of Administration on March 29, 2018) 
Mayor Kupsik noted that this is a first reading and will be back before the Council at the April 23, 2018 Council meeting. 
No action taken. 

 
Finance, License, and Regulation Committee Recommendations of April 3, 2018- Ald. Kordus 

 
Discussion/Action of Selection of MSI General to provide architectural and engineering design and project management 
services for the Riviera Improvement Project (Selection recommended by the Piers, Harbor, & Lakefront Committee on March 27, 2018) 
Motion by Kordus to approve the selection of MSI General to provide architectural and engineering design and project 
management for the Riviera Improvement Project pending Attorney review, second by Hedlund. Kordus noted that he felt 
that this was a good choice and is the primary choice for this project. Motion carried 8-0.  
 
Discussion/Action of approval of Agreement between Owner (City of Lake Geneva) and Architect (MSI General) for 
Riviera Improvement Project 
Motion by Kordus to approve the agreement between the City of Lake Geneva and MSI General as Architect for the 
Riviera  Improvement Project pending Attorney review, second by Hedlund. Oborn noted that there may be more 
agreements coming forward as the costs are further determined. Motion carried  8-0. 

 
Discussion/Action of approval of Agreement between Owner (City of Lake Geneva) and Construction Manager as 
Constructor (MSI General) for Riviera Improvement Project 
Motion by Kordus to approve the Agreement between the City of Lake Geneva and MSI General as Construction 
Manager and Constructor for the Riviera Improvement Project pending City Attorney review, second by Hedlund. No 
discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Discussion/Action of an Ordinance amending Section 2-230 (b) for the Committee of the Whole to meeting quarterly 
(Finance, License, and Regulation Committee motion to approve failed 2-3, with Halverson, Howell, and Skates voting noe) 
Motion by Kordus to approve the change of language from shall to may and remove the meeting to commence quarterly 
language, second by Hedlund. Chappell questioned if language could be added that would indicate how soon in advance 
an agenda may be sent out. Kordus noted that the Council President does receive the agenda well in advance, but worries 
about adding language that would determine how far in advance an agenda can be set. Motion carried 5-4, with Skates, 
Flower, Halverson and Straube voting noe. Mayor Kupsik voted aye to break the tie. 
 
Discussion/Action of an Ordinance amending Section 90-198 for Docking Facilities Rental Authority to be the City 
Administrator or his/her designee 
Motion by Kordus to approve, second by Straube. Kordus noted that this would allow this responsibility to be given to the 
City Administrator or his/her designee. Motion carried 8-0. 

 



April 9, 2018 City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 3 

Presentation of Accounts – Ald. Kordus (Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation Committee on  April 
3, 2018) 

 
Purchase Orders  
None 

 
Prepaid Bills in the amount of $10,828.43 
Motion by Kordus to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Regular Bills in the amount of $145,511.73 
Motion by Kordus to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

 
Recognition by Council Vice President Howell of Mayor Alan Kupsik, Alderperson Bob Kordus, and Alderperson 
Elizabeth Chappell for their service to the City of Lake Geneva  
Council Vice President read proclamations in recognition of their service to Bob Kordus, Elizabeth Chappell, and Alan 
Kupsik.  
 
Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session with regard to: 1) Approval of the Police Officers Union Labor Agreement 
between the City of Lake Geneva and the Labor Association of Wisconsin on behalf of the Lake Geneva Police 
Association for 2018; and pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body 
who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it 
is or is likely to become involved with regard to: 2) Notice of Circumstances of White River Holdings LLC’s Claims 
Motion by Kordus to convene the Council in closed session, allowing City Administrator Oborn, City Attorney Draper, 
City Clerk Kropf, Alderperson Elect Tim Dunn, Alderperson Elect Selena Proksa, and Mayor Elect Tom Hartz to remain 
in the meeting, second by Howell. Motion carried on a roll call vote 8-0. The Council convened into closed session at 6:37 
p.m.  

 
Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items discussed in closed 
session 
Motion by Kordus to reconvene the Council in open session, second by Skates. Motion carried on a roll call vote 8-0. The 
Council reconvened into open session at 7:52 p.m.  
 
Motion by Kordus to approve the Police Union Labor Agreement as presented, second by Chappell. Motion carried on 8-
0. 
 
Kordus stated that there wasn’t any action to take on the Notice of Circumstances of White River Holdings LLC’s Claims, 
at this time.  
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Kordus to adjourn the April 9, 2018 meeting of the Common Council, second by Straube. Motion carried 8-0. 
The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 7:54 pm 
 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 



April 17, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 2 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF THE COMMON COUNCIL- MINUTES 
TUESDAY, APRIL 17, 2018 – 5:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Cindy Flower, Shari Straube, John Halverson, 

Rich Hedlund, and Ken Howell 
 

 

Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was lead by Clerk Kropf.  

 
Roll Call: Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderpersons: Proksa, Skates, Dunn (arrived at 5:05 p.m.), Flower, Straube, Halverson, 
Hedlund, and Howell 
Also Present: City Administrator Oborn, City Attorney Draper, and City Clerk Kropf 

 
Invocation by Reverend Ana Luisa Chacon from La Resureccion United Methodist Church in Lake Geneva 
Reverend Ana Luisa Chacon gave an invocation to bless the Mayor and the City Council. 
 
Swearing in of newly elected officials 
Clerk Kropf swore in the newly elected officials, including Alderpersons Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Cindy 
Flower, Attorney Draper, and Mayor Hartz. 
 
Welcome by Mayor Hartz 
Mayor Hartz gave a welcome to the new Council and all in attendance.  

 
Election of Council President 
Hedlund nominated  Ken Howell. 
Flower nominated Doug Skates. 
Dunn nominated John Halverson. 
 
Council cast ballots and determined the Council President to be Ken Howell. 

 
Election of Council Vice-President 
Hedlund nominated Halverson. Motion carried 7-0. John Halverson is the Vice President of the Council. 

 
Resolution 18-R27 A resolution confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Standing Committees for the City 
of Lake Geneva  
Mayor Hartz read the alderperson appointments from the resolution aloud to the Council. 
Motion by Howell to approve Resolution 18-R27 a resolution confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to 
Standing Committees for the City, second by Halverson. Motion carried 7-0.  

 
Resolution 18-R28 A resolution confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-Standing Committees and 
Commissions for the City of Lake Geneva 
Mayor Hartz read the alderperson appointments from the resolution aloud to the Council. 
Motion by Doug to approve Resolution 18-R28 a resolution confirming the Mayor’s Aldermanic Appointments to Non-
Standing Committees, and Commission for the City of Lake Geneva as amended, second by Halverson. Motion carried 7-
0. 
 
Forward Citizen Appointments to Boards and Commissions by Mayor Hartz to the April 23, 2018 City Council meeting 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Skates. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Mayoral Appointment of Jill Rodriguez to the City of Lake Geneva Avian Committee for a term ending May 1, 2018 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Halverson. Motion carried 7-0. 

 

 



April 17, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 2 

Resolution 18-R29 Designating the Public Depositories and Authorized Signatures for the City of Lake Geneva 
Motion by Skates to approve Resolution 18-R29 designating the public depositories and authorized signatures for the City 
of Lake Geneva, second by Halverson. Motion carried 7-0.  

 
Resolution 18-R30 Designating the Official Newspaper for the City of Lake Geneva 
Motion by Howell to approve Resolution 18-R30 designating the Official Newspaper for the City of Lake Geneva, second 
by Dunn. Flower asked if there are other options in the area available. City Attorney Draper noted that the City is 
obligated to use the paper that is published within the City. Motion carried 6-0, with Halverson abstaining. 
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Skates to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Halverson. Motion carried 7-0. The meeting 
of the Common Council adjourned at 5:25 p.m.  
 
 

 



































































VisitLakeGeneva.com/RestaurantWeek

JUNE 3 - JUNE 10

$10$8 $25-$35
2 –C O U R S EM O R N I N G 3–C O U R S E

D I N N E RL U N C HB R E A K F A S T

YOU BRING THE COMPANY
We’ll Bring the Food!



JUNE 3 - JUNE 10
VisitLakeGeneva.com/RestaurantWeek

CAST YOUR VOTE
AND HELP A GREAT CAUSE!

$5,000 
CHARITY CHECK

The more you dine, the more you can vote!



VisitLakeGeneva.com/RestaurantWeek

JUNE 3 - JUNE 10

$10$8 $25-$35
2 –C O U R S EM O R N I N G 3–C O U R S E

D I N N E RL U N C HB R E A K F A S T

YOU BRING THE COMPANY
We’ll Bring the Food!



LAKE
GENEVA

2018 BREAKFASTSANDWICH

FORK
CAKE

SALAD

KNIFE

SPOON

CHEESE CURDS

PULLED
PORK

CHICKEN

SALMON

BREAD
MUSSELS

BURGER
TIRAMASU
CREME BRULEE

GAZPACHO

CROSTINI

TENDERLOIN

PECAN CRUSTED
BEEF N’ BLEUPICKLE CHIPSTATER TOT

ENTREE

DESSERTSEAFOOD GAMBERETTI

CORNDOG

RASPBERRY TART

HAM TOMATO
GRAND CRU PANINI

BRUCHETTA
SCHNITZEL
HAM & SWISS

CEVICHEBABY
BACK
RIBS

CHEESECAKE
LEMON CREAM
PIE TRIFLE

BROWNIE

LAMB

POTATOES

DESSERTMEDALLIONS

BUFFALO CHICKEN WRAP

SOUP

FISH SANDWICHAPPLE PIEQUESADILLA

PHILLY STEAK
RISOTTOSQUASH

HOUSE SALAD
WALNUTSROSEMARY

CARDAMOM

CHEESE

BREAD
PUDDING

STREET TACOS

ZUCCHINI

ALFREDO

SHRIMP

ASPARAGUS CHOCOLATE
DUCK BREASTSUNDAE

FLATBREADCHEDDAR

APPETIZER

COBB SALAD

MAC N’ CHEESE

BEACH RINGS

BABY ARUGULA

ARTICHOKE DIP

DINNER

LUNCH

STEAK
FRIES

EGGS

RESTAURANT

WEEK



















May 5, 2018



















































18-5





















      P a g e  | 1 
 

STARK – CLG                     Initial_________ 

 

COLLECTION AGENCY AGREEMENT  
THE STARK COLLECTION AGENCY AND 

THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into between The City of Lake Geneva (“Creditor”), whose signature appears 
below, and The Stark Collection Agency (“Agency”), a collection agency duly licensed under and pursuant to the laws of 
the State of Wisconsin: 
  
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, Creditor desires Agency to undertake the collection of Creditor’s accounts and other evidences of 
indebtedness from time to time, in the manner and under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the parties contemplate a future course of dealing as Creditor and Agency, and desire to set forth and define 
herein the mutual rights, obligations and liabilities of the parties hereto in such course of dealing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and of the mutual agreement of the parties hereto, and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as 
follows: 
 
1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms used but not defined in the body of this Agreement shall have their respective, 

generally accepted industry meaning. 
 
1.1. “Creditor” shall mean The City of Lake Geneva and any department, agency, court, corporation, or other 

affiliated subdivision of The City of Lake Geneva which refers accounts and other evidences of indebtedness 
to Creditor. 

 
2. Creditor Duties 

 
2.1. Creditor hereby appoints Agency to collect and receive for Creditor all sums of money due or payable to 

Creditor for claims which Creditor lists with Agency. 
 

2.2. Creditor warrants that all placements are valid and legally enforceable debts.  Creditor shall not submit 
accounts that Creditor knows or reasonably should know are of a highly disputed nature, are in bankruptcy, or 
are outside the applicable statute of limitations.  Creditor shall use at least the same degree of care as it 
employs to ensure accurate demographic data for its own clients when it submits accounts to Agency, but in no 
event less than a commercially reasonable degree of care.   

 
2.3. Creditor shall notify Agency within 24 hours of receipt in writing, by email, or by phone of any disputes, direct 

payments, or bankruptcy notifications received by Creditor with respect to any placement.   
 

3. Agency Duties 
 
3.1. Agency shall use customary and reasonable collection efforts as permitted by law. 

 



      P a g e  | 2 
 

STARK – CLG                     Initial_________ 

3.2. Agency shall list consumer accounts with the three largest national credit reporting agencies and commercial 
accounts with Dun & Bradstreet according to applicable national and state law unless Creditor requests 
accounts not be listed.  Agency has no permission to furnish data on a court debt or parking violation. 

 
3.3. Agency shall carry appropriate levels of insurance.   

 
4. Confidentiality; Data Security 

 
4.1. “Confidential Information” means information, in any form, relating to or disclosed in the course of the 

Agreement, which is or should be reasonably understood to be confidential or proprietary to the disclosing 
party, including, but not limited to, the material terms of this Agreement, proprietary information relating to 
Agency’s and Creditor’s respective businesses, Trade Secrets, Protected Health Information, Protected 
Personal Information, and Consumer data. 

 
4.2. Each Party acknowledges that Confidential Information may be disclosed to the other Party during the course 

of this Agreement.  Each Party shall use at least the same degree of care as it employs to avoid unauthorized 
disclosure of its own information, but in no event less than a commercially reasonable degree of care to 
prevent the duplication or disclosure of Confidential Information of the other Party. 

 
4.3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Agency Employees may use such Confidential Information for the purpose of 

performing Agency’s obligations under this Agreement and then only to the extent needed to do so.  
Furthermore, Agency may disclose Confidential Information when required by law, including but not limited 
to enforcing the obligation between Creditor and the Creditor’s customers.   

 
4.4. In order to protect the Confidential Information, each Party shall maintain appropriate standard security 

measures with respect to the Confidential Information, including but not limited to technical, physical, and 
organizational controls, and shall maintain the confidentiality, integrity and availability thereto.  In no event 
shall such security measures fall below a commercially reasonable degree of care. 

 
4.5. In the event that one Party becomes aware of an improper or inadvertent disclosure of Confidential 

Information, that Party shall notify the other Party immediately of such disclosure. 
 

5. Agency Authority 
 

5.1. Payment.  Agency shall have authority to endorse checks, drafts, money orders and other negotiable 
instruments which may be received in payment and made out to Creditor.  Agency shall deposit all sums 
collected in a designated trust account maintained at a federally insured financial institution of Agency’s 
choosing.  Agency shall remit all money received, less agreed upon commissions monthly, or as designated by 
Creditor, and as otherwise required by law. 

 
5.2. Settlement.  The City and each of its departments, agencies, courts, corporations, or other affiliated 

subdivisions which refer accounts to Agency will grant Agency settlement authority according to its own 
preference.  This section does not apply to Municipal Court Accounts or Park Violations.  Agency must have 
explicit authorization to settle a Municipal Court Account or Parking Violation for less than 100% of the 
outstanding balance. 

 
5.3. Forwarding Accounts.  Agency shall have authority to forward any of Creditor’s claims to another collection 

agency if the debtor has moved out of the General Business Area of Agency, and such other collection agency 
shall have authority to exercise all ordinary and reasonable collection efforts as permitted by law, and shall 
remit any payments made to Agency less agreed commissions, and Agency shall then remit to Creditor less 
any agreed upon commissions.  Creditor reserves to itself the decision whether the forwarded claims will be 
sued, and may appoint in writing such collection agency to retain an attorney and commence legal action, and 



      P a g e  | 3 
 

STARK – CLG                     Initial_________ 

the provisions in Section Seven (7) herein shall be controlling in creating the relationship between Creditor and 
the attorney. 

 
5.3.1. “General Business Area” means the geographic area in which Agency is licensed to collect. 
 

5.4. Perfecting Judgments.  Agency shall have authority, under its own discretion, to perfect on an existing 
Judgment, such as but not limited to filing liens, filing garnishment actions, filing Court Ordered Income 
Assignments, requesting Sheriff Executions, or transcribing a Judgment, without a fee increase to Agency. 
 

5.5. Certifying to DOR.  Agency shall have authority to certify the Total Balance Due to the Wisconsin Department 
of Revenue (“DOR”).Agency shall certify to the DOR accrued interest charges on referred debt where Creditor 
has certified the principal balance to DOR.  In the case of Municipal Court Accounts, Agency may only certify 
accrued Post-Judgment Interest charges where Creditor has certified the principal balance to DOR.   

 
6. Legal Action.  Agency will recommend legal action be taken to recover any monies owed to Creditor if it believes this 

to be the last available means to affect collection.  The Creditor reserves the right to determine whether a claim shall 
be sued and to select an attorney for that purpose.  In the event of legal action, if the Creditor elects not to designate 
an attorney agency reserves the right to designate an attorney with the understanding that the legal action is to be in 
the name of the Creditor.  This attorney shall be considered Creditor’s attorney.  Creditor may authorize Agency to 
conduct correspondence with any such attorney and to receive payments made by the debtor, however, the conduct of 
the attorney shall at times be subject to the control of Creditor, and the attorney may report directly to Creditor or 
through Agency, as he desires.  Agency will absorb court costs and pay attorney’s fees on those accounts where 
Agency recommends legal action.  Creditor is expected to absorb court costs if Creditor requests Agency to sue an 
account when it is not recommended by Agency and attorney will be retained on a contingency fee basis.   Funds 
collected will be applied first to court costs and fees, then to principal balance then to interest charges.  In the event a 
legal case is to be tried and a Creditor representative fails to show or requests claim be dropped, court costs paid by 
Agency will be billed to the Creditor.  In addition, in the event of a counter suit, Creditor is responsible for paying an 
attorney to try the case.  Creditor can choose to hire their own attorney or hire Agency’s attorney.  

 
7. Payments and Costs 

 
7.1. Contingency Fees.  Each Party acknowledges that Agency operates on a contingency fee basis and earns 

commission on actual monies received whether that money is paid direct to the Creditor or paid to Agency.  
Agency shall be paid 100% commission on all interest collected.  In the case of Municipal Court Accounts, 
this will only apply to interest on judgments transcribed to a Circuit Court.Agency shall offset commission it is 
owed on pay directs against monies paid to Agency and owed to Creditor by Agency, or it shall invoice 
Creditor for commission due on pay directs and the Creditor agrees to pay said invoice within 30 days. If 
Creditor accepts payment on an account listed with Agency, Creditor shall notify Agency in writing, by email, 
or by phone within 24 hours of receipt of said payment and before payment is deposited.  Creditor agrees to 
pay agency normal fee on all paid directs.  In the event a payment made by personal check should be returned 
unpaid, the payment will be reversed and it may appear as a negative entry on Creditor’s statement. 
 
7.1.1. Creditor agrees to pay agency contingency fees on all paid directs, provided Agency shall not  

  charge or be eligible for a fee if Creditor receives payment via its efforts through TRIP, an arrest  
  due to an active warrant, vehicle registration charge, or driver’s license suspension. 

 
 

7.2. Commission Rates are as follows:    
 

A. Municipal Court Accounts – Standard   19 % 
B. Municipal Court Accounts – Legal   19% 
C. Municipal Court Accounts – Forwarded   40% 
D. Standard Accounts less than $300   25% 



      P a g e  | 4 
 

STARK – CLG                     Initial_________ 

E. Standard Accounts $300 or greater   21% 
F. Standard Accounts – Legal     40% 
G. Standard Accounts – Forwarded    40% 
H. No Collection        No Charge 

 
7.3. Pre-Judgment Interest.  Agency will not accrue interest on Municipal Court Accounts.  If Creditor does not 

charge Pre-Judgment Interest on standard accounts, Agency shall have no authority to do so.  Creditor shall 
notify Agency whether it will charge Pre-Judgment Interest, in which case the following shall apply: Creditor 
shall assess interest on each account, accruing from the date of delinquency, consistent with Creditor’s normal 
practice.  Creditor shall maintain sufficient documentation of such accrual and shall make said documentation 
available to Agency upon referral to Agency and upon request.  In the absence of a contractual rate, Creditor 
agrees to accrue interest at the legal rate, currently $5 per $100, in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 138.04.  Upon 
referral to Agency, Creditor assigns its rights to and requests that Agency assess interest at contractual or legal 
rate.  Agency is to accrue statutory interest from listing date on Principal balance on parking violations. 
 

7.4. Post-Judgment Interest.  Creditor hereby assigns its rights to and requests that Agency assess the legal rate of 
interest, currently the Prime Rate plus $1 per $100, on all post-judgment accounts, accruing from the date of 
filing. 

 
7.5. Collection Fee.  Creditor assigns its rights to and requests that Agency collect the fees specifically authorized 

in City of Lake Geneva Resolution 07-R63 and generally authorized by City of Lake Geneva Ordinance 1-18. 
 
8. Return; Cancellation. Upon Creditor’s request for cancellation of accounts, Agency shall cancel and return within 30 

days those specified accounts, provided Agency may negotiate to retain accounts with a promise to pay, pending legal 
actions, and cases in judgment.  Creditor shall reimburse Agency any outstanding advanced court costs upon 
Creditor’s request Creditor to return legal accounts.  Upon termination of this Agreement according to Section 10, 
Agency shall cancel and return all accounts to Creditor.   
 

9. Termination.  This agreement may be terminated on 30 days written notice by either party.  Creditor must return all of 
Agency’s forms, supplies, and decals, and must cease using the corporate and any and all trade names of The Stark 
Collection Agency, Inc. in its correspondence and in its normal course of business.   
 
9.1. Survival.  The provisions of Sections 2.3, 4.1, 5, and 9 of this Agreement shall survive any termination and/or 

cancellation of this Agreement.  In addition, all provisions of this Agreement that can only be given proper 
effect if they survive termination and/or cancellation of this Agreement will survive the termination and/or 
cancellation of this Agreement.  
 

10. General Provisions 
 
10.1. Audit.  To ensure, among other things, compliance with this Agreement and with state and federal collection 

and privacy laws, Agency, at its expense and following at least a forty-eight (48) hour written notice to 
Creditor, shall have the right to audit Creditor.  Audits shall occur no more than one (1) time per year and shall 
be conducted during regular business hours at Creditor’s offices in such a manner as not to interfere 
unreasonably with Creditor’s normal business activities. 

 
10.2. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with any exhibit attached hereto, if any, constitutes the entire 

agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all agreements 
or understandings, whether written or oral, between the parties with respect to such subject matter. 

 
10.3. Choice of Law; Venue.  The validity of this Agreement, the construction and enforcement of its terms and the 

interpretation of the rights and duties of the parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Wisconsin, without regard to its conflicts of law principles.  Any suit arising from or related to this Agreement 
shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Dane County, State of Wisconsin. 



      P a g e  | 5 
 

STARK – CLG                     Initial_________ 

 
10.4. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found invalid or unenforceable pursuant to 

judicial decree or decision, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain valid and enforceable according to its 
terms. 

 
10.5. Assignment.  Creditor may not assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or 

obligations hereunder without Agency’s prior written consent.  The rights and obligations of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, their successors, and permitted 
assigns.   

 
10.6. Modification and Waiver.  This Agreement, except as otherwise provided, may only be modified or amended 

by a writing duly executed by Agency and Creditor.  Waiver of any provision herein shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other provision herein, nor shall waiver of any breach of this Agreement be construed as a 
continuing waiver of other breaches of the same or other provisions of this Agreement.  

 
10.7. Relationship of Parties.  The Agreement shall not be construed as creating an employee/employer, agency, 

partnership, or joint venture relationship between Agency and Creditor, nor is it the intention of the parties to 
establish any such relationship.  Neither Party has the power to bind the other or incur obligations on the 
other’s behalf without the other’s prior written consent, except as otherwise expressly provided herein. 

 
10.8. Headings.  The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used to interpret or 

construe any of its provisions. 
 

10.9. Authority.  Each party represents and warrants to the other party that it has the full right, power, and authority 
to enter into and to perform this Agreement in accordance with all of the terms, provisions, covenants, and 
conditions hereof, and that the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly authorized by proper 
corporate action after appropriate review.  Any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be 
resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE



      P a g e  | 6 
 

STARK – CLG  STK 2.0 CITY 

CLIENT INFORMATION: 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
  
 
 
SIGNED__________________________________________________TITLE________________________________ 
 
PRINTED 
NAME_________________________________________________________________________________________   
 
ADDRESS_______________________________________________________ 
 
CITY/ST/ZIP_____________________________________________________ 
 
CONTACT 
PERSON_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TELEPHONE____________________________________________FAX___________________________________ 
 
EMAIL ADDRESS OF CONTACT PERSON  
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE________________________________ 

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

THE STARK COLLECTION AGENCY 
 
 
 
 
BY:________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:_____________________________________________ 
 
DATE:____________________________________________ 
 

























1 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 

The City of Lake Geneva may retain overpayments of taxes, fees, licenses, and similar charges 
when the overpayment is $2 or less, unless such refund is specifically requested by the remitter. 

LICENSES & PERMITS 
ALCOHOL LICENSE FEES * STATUTORY LIMITS 
           Temporary Retailer’s $10.00 Each 
           Provisional/Temp. Operator  (60 days) $15.00 each 
           Operator  $50.00 Annual 

Prorated after January 1 to $30.00 
           Class A Liquor $500.00 
           Class A Beer $100.00 
           Class C Wine $100.00 
           Class B Liquor (Quota License) $500.00 
           Class B Beer $100.00 
           Reserve Class B Liquor $10,000.00 
           Change of Agent $10.00 
           Publication Fee $25.00 

Extension of Premises $25.00 
ANNEXATION FILING FEE – DUE UPON PETITION $200.00 
AMUSEMENTS 
           Coin Operated music machine/juke box $20.00 per machine 
ASSESSMENT REQUEST LETTER              $35.00 each 
BANNER PERMIT $20.00 per banner per two-week time 

period 
BUSINESS LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
           Late fee after July 1 $20.00 (in addition to license fee) 
CAT LICENSE 
           Not Spayed/Neutered $8.00 Annual 

    Spayed/Neutered $4.00 Annual 
    Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption   

            of new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 
$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

DOG LICENSE 
           Not Spayed/Unneutered $29.00 Annual 
            Spayed/Neutered $14.00 Annual 

    Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption of 
           new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

BOWLING ALLEY $20.00 per lane 
BILLIARDS OR POOL TABLE $40.00 per table 
CARRIAGE  COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Carriage $25.00 
CLOSING OUT SALE $25.00 event 
CIGARETTE/TOBACCO LICENSE * STATUTORY $100.00 Annual 

Resolution 18-R31 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does hereby establish the 

following revised schedule of fees, effective April 23, 2018. 



 2 

CREAMERY PERMIT $50.00 
DIRECT SELLERS PERMIT $50.00 nonrefundable application fee 
MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT  
           Investigation $50.00 Annual 
           Transfer $50.00 
MOBILE HOME PARK LICENSE $100.00 Annual 
PARADE PERMITS $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
  
CITY PARK PERMITS 
    RENTAL FEES ARE PER DAY, PER LOCATION $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
     49 Attendees or less  
           Non-Profit Organization $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Resident $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $100.00 deposit, $75.00 Rental 
     50 to 149 Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Resident $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $150.00 deposit, $125.00 Rental 
     150 or more Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$105.00 Rental 
           Resident Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$105.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$225.00 Rental 
BASEBALL TOURNAMENT PERMIT FEE – VETERAN’S PARK $1,000 Security Deposit 
     Friday Rental $150.00 
     Saturday Rental $300.00 
     Sunday Rental $300.00 
  
ADDITIONAL PARK AMENITIES  
           Brunk Pavilion Rental $250.00 Resident/Non-Profit 

$500.00 Non-Resident 
           Benches $50.00 deposit, $5.00 each 
           Picnic Tables $50.00 deposit, $15.00 each 
           Barricades $50.00 deposit, $5.00 each 
           Fencing – Snow $30.00 per 50 feet 
           Trash Receptacles $50.00 deposit, $8.00 each 
  
PARKING STICKERS  
           Resident & Non-Resident Residence Owners  
           – Lasts 2 years (even)  – 2 hours free parking 

4 free per residence 
each additional $25.00 

           Business Owner 
           – 2 hours free parking 

  $25.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$25.00 for 1 year (effective Jan. 1 2017) 

$50.00 (effective Jan. 1, 2018) 
           Walworth County Resident 
            - 2 hours free parking 

$160.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$80.00 for 1 year 

           Parking Lot Permit $400.00 Annual   



 3 

PARKING RATES  
           Parking Stall Rate for stalls on Wrigley Dr.,  
          10 stalls at the boat launch, stalls on lower Center St.  
          south of Main St., stalls on lower Broad St. south of  
          Main St., 700 & 800 blocks of Main St., and Center St. 
          Parking Lot  
          All other Parking Stalls Rate 

$2.00 per hour 
 
 
 
 

$1.00 per hour 
           Parking Meter Bags/Contractor Permits $10.00 administrative fee 

$25.00 deposit per locked bag 
March 1 – Nov 14: $20.00 daily per bag 

Nov 15 – Feb 29: $10.00 daily per bag 
PARKING TICKETS     
           Expired Stall (Over 2 hours; Over 5 hours; Over 25 min.) $20.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles $20.00 
           Improper Use or Display of Sticker $20.00 
           Backed into parking stall $25.00 
           Compact Car Only $25.00 
           No Parking Zone $25.00 
           Over the Line $25.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $40.00 
           Handicap Zone $150.00 
           Parking with Trailer or Trailer alone in Sage Lot D $25.00 
           Parking any Vehicle without a Trailer or with an  
           occupied Trailer in Boat Launch Parking Lot F  

$25.00 

LATE FEES     
           Expired Stall After 10 days $40.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles After 10 days $40.00 
           Backed into parking stall After 10 days $50.00 
           Compact Car Only After 10 days $50.00 
           No Parking Zone After 10 days $50.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $80.00 
           Handicap Zone  $300.00 
           Second Collection Letter Fee $6.00 
           Vehicle Suspension Release Fee $20.00 
PUBLIC ASSEMBLY PERMIT Free 
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS * STATUTORY  
           Photocopies 
           (can include hourly wage for gathering data) 

$0.25 per page 

RADON TEST KIT $10.00 
REISSUE CHECK FEE $25.00 
RETURNED CHECK FEE (NSF) $30.00 each 
ROOM TAX LICENSE $10.00 Annual 
SHOWS, CIRCUS, CARNIVALS  
           Circus $50.00 per day 
           Tent Show – Day 1 $15.00 
           Tent Show – Each Additional Day $10.00 
           All Other $2.00 per day 
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT $15.00 per seat Annual 



 4 

  
STREET USE PERMIT $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
           Up to two days                         $40.00 
           More than two days $100.00 
TAX EXEMPT REPORT FILING (every other year) $20.00 
              Late Fee $20.00 
TAXI CAB COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Car $25.00 
TAXI CAB DRIVER LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
THEATER LICENSE  
           Up to 1,200 seats $200.00 
           Over 1,200 seats $275.00 
TRAPPING PERMIT $25.00 Annual 
CITY HALL MEETING ROOM RENT                $25 per event 

 
 
 

LAKEFRONT 
BEACH 
(Open Memorial Day thru Labor Day –  
  no glass containers allowed) 

 

           Children age 6 and under Free 
           Children age 7-12                        $4.00 per day 
           Ages 13 to Adult                         $8.00 per day 
Resident Beach Tags (Maximum 6 per Household) $3.00 per tag 
Seasonal Pass Adult 13 and up                      $70.00 per year 
Seasonal Pass Child 7-12               $40.00 per year 
Beach Use Permits 
  Rental Excludes Beach Operating Hours  
  Memorial Day through Labor Day 9:00am to 6:00pm  
    Rental Fees are Per Day $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
     49 Attendees or less  
           Non-Profit Organization $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Resident $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $100.00 deposit, $75.00 Rental 
     50 to 149 Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Resident $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $150.00 deposit, $125.00 Rental 
     150 or more Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization Deposit Determined by  

Piers, Harbors & Lakefront,  
$105.00 Rental 

           Resident Deposit Determined by  
Piers, Harbors & Lakefront, 

 $105.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident Deposit Determined by  

Piers, Harbors & Lakefront, 
 $225.00 Rental 

     Beach Bathrooms – Opening/Cleaning Hourly Rate 



 5 

  
BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT  
     One-Time Launch Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $7.00 $8.00 
           Less than 20 feet $10.00 $11.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $14.00 $21.00 
           26 feet and over $16.00 $24.00 
     Season Launch Permit  Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $70.00 $80.00 
           Less than 20 feet $100.00 $110.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $140.00 $210.00 
           26 feet and over $160.00 $240.00 
BUOY/SLIP RATES ESTABLISHED ANNUALLY BY RESOLUTION  
           Season Launch Pass for Kayaks, Canoes and 
           Paddleboards (non-trailer, non-motor) 

 $30.00 per year 

RIVIERA RENTALS 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit $1,000.00 
           Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)  $2,500.00    
           Non-Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)    $3,000.00 
           Resident & Non-Resident Weekday Rental Fee  
          (Monday - Thursday) 

 
$500.00 

           Not-for-Profit Group Rental Fee $400.00 
           Per Hour Set Up Fee $20.00 per hour 
           Security Guards for Event (2) Additional Renter Expense– Hourly Rate 
           Extra Security Guard over 250 attendees Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
  

BUILDING & ZONING 
Building  

Minimum permit fee for all building permits Residential $60.00 
Commercial $100.00 

 Residential Construction:  

            One & Two family & attached garage (new,  
            addition and alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Single Family Construction 

$1,000.00 Minimum 
            Accessory buildings & garages  $0.25 / sq. ft. 

            Decks  $0.15 / sq. ft., or $60.00 Minimum 

            Roofing and Siding $60.00 

Commercial Construction:  

Residences - Apartments, Three family & over, Row Housing, 
Multiple Family Dwellings, Institutional (new, addition and 
alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Commercial Construction 

 $1,500.00 Minimum 
Local Business, Office Building (new, addition or alteration) $0.30/ sq. ft. 

Manufacturing or Industrial (new, addition or alteration)  $0.30 / sq. ft. 



 6 

Commercial , structures, alterations, residing, reroofing, 
repairs, where square footage cannot be calculated 

$10.00 / $1,000.00 valuation 

Plan Examination:  

            One and Two Family Residence $150.00 

            Apartments, Three Family Residence, Row 
            Housing, Multiple family Building 
            State Approved Plans 

$150.00 plus $10.00 /unit 
 

Commercial, Industrial, Institutional & Additions 
            State Approved Plans 

$350.00 
 

            Heating Plans, Energy Calculations, or Lighting 
            Plans submitted separately 

$125.00/ Plan 

 Additions, Alterations to 1 & 2 Family Dwellings $75.00 

            Accessory building over 240 sq. ft., and decks for 
            1 & 2 family dwellings 

$40.00 

Wisconsin Uniform Building Permit Seal $45.00 

Occupancy Permit – Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 

$60.00 
$100.00 

Temporary (6 months or less Commercial only) $75.00 

Permit Renewal (6 month extension or less) $200.00 Commercial  
$50 Residential 

Heating and Air Conditioning:  

Heating and Air Conditioning Distribution Systems  $3.00/ 100 sq. ft. of conditioned area 
with a minimum fee of $60.00 

New Residential Heating 
 
 
Replacement Residential Heating 
 
Commercial New or Replacement Heating 

$125.00 first unit, $60.00 each additional 
unit. 

 
$60.00 / unit 

 
$150.00/ unit, up to and including 

150,000 BTU units. Additional fee of 
$20.00 / each 50,000 BTU fraction thereof 

up to a maximum of $900.00 / unit. 
Residential Air Conditioning – Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 
 

$60.00 / unit 
 

Commercial Air Conditioning - Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 

 
$150.00/ unit up to 5tons or 60,000 

BTU's. Additional fee of $20.00 each ton 
or 12,000 BTU's or fraction thereof up to 

a maximum of $900.00 / unit 
Permanently installed Wall unit (example – Fireplace, wall pack) $60.00 / unit 

Commercial/Industrial Exhaust Hoods and Exhaust Systems $75.00  

Plumbing Permit:  

Fixture Count $15.00/ fixture, drain or device, 
 $60.00 Minimum 

Water Main $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, $60.00 Minimum   



 7 

 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, / $9.00 per 

manhole$60.00 Minimum 
Storm Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   

private water main / $12.00 per manhole 
or basin $60.00 Minimum 

Exterior Grease Trap $100.00 

Electrical:  

Residential Minimum $60.00 minimum.  
 

New Residential Service $100.00/ Service First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main,  $60.00 minimum & 

/ $9.00 per manhole. 
Residential Service Update $100.00/ Service 

Residential Sub-Panel $50.00/ Panel 

Residential Generator $75.00 (includes gas piping) 

Temporary Electrical Service $100.00 up to 200 Amps. 
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Electrical Minimum $150.00 Minimum 

Commercial Electrical Re-Inspections $150.00/ Inspection 

Commercial Service ( New or Update) $150.00 First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Sub-Panel $50.00 First 100 Amps,  
$10.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Generator $150.00 (included gas piping) 

Commercial Low Voltage $1.00/ Device, $100.00 Minimum 

Commercial Exterior Light Fixture Replacement $100.00 per site 

Residential Electrical Permit - for minor installations with fees 
not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector.  
Commercial Electrical Permit - for minor installations with 
fees not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector. 

$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,   
$60.00 minimum. 

 
$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,  

$150.00 minimum. 

Erosion control fees:  

            New One and Two Family Buildings $125.00 / lot 

            One and Two Family Additions and Accessory 
            Structures 

$50.00 

            Multi-Family Residential, Commercial, Industrial  
            and Institutional 

 $175.00/Building, plus $5.00/1,000 sq. 
ft. disturbed lot area up to $2,000.00 max. 

            Other $40.00 

  



 8 

  

Zoning  

Zoning Permit $60.00 

Certificate of Occupancy (per Section 98-909) $60.00 

Temporary Use (per Section 98-906) $60.00 

Zoning Verification Letter $50.00 

Sign Permit (per Section 98-907) $60.00 minimum or $0.35/ sq ft of sign 
area 

Early Start Permit to start construction $125.00 (1-2 family) 
$250.00 (all others) 

Fuel Tanks $75.00 administrative fee/ tank for 
installation or removal 

Wrecking or Razing- Building Inspector may waive the fee if 
the structure is condemned 

$100.00 ( One or two family residences 
and accessory Structure over 250 sq ft) 

Commercial/ Industrial Razing $350.00 

Moving buildings over public right-of-ways $250.00 plus $0.03/ sq ft 

Special Inspections and Reports $150.00/ inspection report 

Text Amendment (per Section 98-902) $400.00 

Zoning Map Amendment (per Section 98-903) $400.00 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) For each new Residential Lot Created: 
$400.00 

For each new Commercial Lot Created: 
$200.00 

Plat Renewal $150.00 

Conditional Use (per Section 98-905) $400.00 
$100.00 

Site Plan (per Section 98-908) $400.00 

Variance (per Section 98-910) $400.00 

Interpretation (per Section 98-911) $150.00 

Appeal (per Section 98-912) $400.00 

PD Zoning Map Amendment (Includes 1 PIP Review) $750.00 

PIP Review $400.00 

Filing or Recording fee with City Clerk, plus actual recording 
fee 

$10.00 

Triple Fees: Upon failure to obtain a permit before work on a 
building has been started, except in emergency cases, the total 
fee shall be triple the total fees charged. 

 

NOTE: Fees shall be charged on gross square footage defined 
as follows: 

• The exterior dimensions, including attached 
garage and each floor level 

 

NOTE: In determining costs, all construction shall be included 
with the exception of heating, air conditioning, electrical or 

 



9 

plumbing work. 

NOTE: All fee amounts shall be rounded up to the next full 
dollar amount. 
NOTE: An additional fee for plan review may be assessed at 
the time of application for renewal of the permit. 

* Base fee may be modified by Subsection (4) of Section 98-935, Fees of the Zoning Code

CEMETERY FEES 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Full Burial) $675.00 
Opening Grave - Saturdays (Full Burial) $800.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Cremation) $450.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays (Cremation) $525.00 
Two cremations buried in same grave at one time $100.00 extra charge 
Opening Grave – Weekdays - Baby Under 1 Year $200.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays - Baby Under 1 Year $300.00 
Grave (50% Perpetual Care) $650.00 
Grave – Single Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $400.00 
Grave – Double Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $500.00 
Columbarium Niche (includes opening & inurnment) 
($200 Perpetual Care) 

 $1,200.00 
$1,000.00 bottom row 

2nd Inurnment if Niche allows for two $150.00 additional 
Niche Door Inscriptions $240.00 
Frost Charges (November 1 to March 15) $75.00 
Stake Out Fee for Foundations $50.00 
Foundation Charges $0.40 per square inch 
Use of Cemetery for Functions 20% of Gross Receipts 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
FINGERPRINTING 
          City Residents $15.00 
          Individuals employed in business in city limits 
          or working for city licensed business $15.00 
          Non-Residents $60.00 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES 
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEE 
          Curb Cut/Driveway Approach Fee $25.00 
          Right-of-Way Excavation Fee $25.00 
          Storm Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
          Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
Special brush, limb and refuse pick-up $24.00 per 15 minutes 
Dumpster Delivery $50.00 per dumpster 
Dumpster Pick-up $50.00 plus additional landfill fees 



FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Fees for Apparatus and Personnel 1 hour minimum and fractions thereafter 
on hourly rates unless stated otherwise 

Chief, Deputy Chief or Assistant Chief $216.00/hr. 
Fire and EMS Personnel $216.00/hr. 
Engine/Squad $550.00/hr. 
Truck (aerial apparatus) $875.00/hr. 
Brush Truck $300.00/hr. 
Air Boat $300.00/hr. 
Technical Rescue and Utility $500.00/hr. 
Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chief, or Command Vehicle $50.00/hr. 
Utility $50.00/hr. 
Ambulance $175270.00/hr. 
EMS First Responder and Transport Fees 

Residents Fee $1050.00 per call 
Non-Resident Fee $15200.00 per call 

Ambulance Transport Fee Schedule 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate $750918.89.00 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (ALS2) $8501010.47.00 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept) $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept ALS2) $1010.47 
Equal Level Staffing Mutual Aid $300.00 
Basic Life Support Base Rate $65700.00 
Mileage Charge $1820.00 per mile 
Supplies used fee 

Defibrillation $100.00 
EKG Monitoring $150.00 



Spinal Immobilization $150.00 
I/O Needle & Associated Supplies $200.00 
Airway Placement $150.00 
Oxygen & Associated Supplies $100.00 
IV & Associated Supplies $150.00 
CPAP Disposable $150.00 
Epi 1:1,000 $35.00 
Nitro Tabs $22.00 
Albuterol/Ventolin $30.00 
Glucagon $211.00 
Narcan $48.00 
ASA $32.00 
Dextrose 25gms/50cc $32.00 
Glucose $10.50 
CO2 Monitor Nasal/Tube $40.00 
Oil Dry $10.00 per bag 
Class A, B, or AB Firefighting Foam $30.00/gallon 
BLS Supplies Used $75.00 
ALS Supplies Used $125.00 

Paramedic Medications 
Adenocard $31.00 
Amiodorone $125.00 
Atropine $37.00 
Calcium Chloride $43.00 
Dextrose 5% $32.00 
Diltiazem $9.00 
Diphenhydramine $5.00 
Epi 1:10,000 $16.00 



Etomidate $94.00 
Heparin $32.00 
Ketamine $54.00 
Lidocaine $36.00 
Magnesium Sulfate $7.00 
 Methylprednisolone $101.00  
 Metoprolol $9.00  
Midazolam $68.00 
Norepinephrine $22.00 
Ondansteron $28.00 
Sodium Bicarbinate $37.00 
Sublimaze $5.00 
Succinylcholine $41.00 
Clopidogral $19.00 
Dopamine $97.00 
Hydromorphone $10.00 
Hydroxycobalamin $1270.00 
Metoclopromide $5.00 
Morphine Sulfate $56.00 
Trananexamic Acid $96.00 

 



 10 

 
Adopted this 23rd day of April, 2018. 
       
        _________________________________ 

Tom Hartz, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



 1 

    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES  
   CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WISCONSIN 

 
The City of Lake Geneva may retain overpayments of taxes, fees, licenses, and similar charges 
when the overpayment is $2 or less, unless such refund is specifically requested by the remitter. 
 

LICENSES & PERMITS 
ALCOHOL LICENSE FEES * STATUTORY LIMITS  
           Temporary Retailer’s $10.00 Each 
           Provisional/Temp. Operator  (60 days) $15.00 each 
           Operator  $50.00 Annual 

Prorated after January 1 to $30.00 
           Class A Liquor $500.00  
           Class A Beer $100.00 
           Class C Wine $100.00 
           Class B Liquor (Quota License) $500.00 
           Class B Beer $100.00 
           Reserve Class B Liquor $10,000.00 
           Change of Agent $10.00 
           Publication Fee $25.00 

Extension of Premises $25.00 
ANNEXATION FILING FEE – DUE UPON PETITION $200.00 
AMUSEMENTS  
           Coin Operated music machine/juke box $20.00 per machine 
ASSESSMENT REQUEST LETTER              $35.00 each 
BANNER PERMIT $20.00 per banner per two-week time 

period 
BUSINESS LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
           Late fee after July 1 $20.00 (in addition to license fee) 
CAT LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Neutered $8.00 Annual 
              Spayed/Neutered $4.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption    
            of new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

DOG LICENSE  
           Not Spayed/Unneutered $29.00 Annual 
            Spayed/Neutered $14.00 Annual 
              Late fee after April 1, or 30 days after adoption of  
           new animal if adoption occurs after April 1 

$5.00 (in addition to license fee) 

BOWLING ALLEY $20.00 per lane 
BILLIARDS OR POOL TABLE $40.00 per table 
CARRIAGE  COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Carriage $25.00 
CLOSING OUT SALE $25.00 event 
CIGARETTE/TOBACCO LICENSE * STATUTORY $100.00 Annual 

Resolution 18-R31 
The Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does hereby establish the 

following revised schedule of fees, effective April 23, 2018. 



 2 

CREAMERY PERMIT $50.00 
DIRECT SELLERS PERMIT $50.00 nonrefundable application fee 
MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT  
           Investigation $50.00 Annual 
           Transfer $50.00 
MOBILE HOME PARK LICENSE $100.00 Annual 
PARADE PERMITS $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
  
CITY PARK PERMITS 
    RENTAL FEES ARE PER DAY, PER LOCATION $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
     49 Attendees or less  
           Non-Profit Organization $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Resident $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $100.00 deposit, $75.00 Rental 
     50 to 149 Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Resident $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $150.00 deposit, $125.00 Rental 
     150 or more Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$105.00 Rental 
           Resident Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$105.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident Deposit Determined by Park Board, 

$225.00 Rental 
BASEBALL TOURNAMENT PERMIT FEE – VETERAN’S PARK $1,000 Security Deposit 
     Friday Rental $150.00 
     Saturday Rental $300.00 
     Sunday Rental $300.00 
  
ADDITIONAL PARK AMENITIES  
           Brunk Pavilion Rental $250.00 Resident/Non-Profit 

$500.00 Non-Resident 
           Benches $50.00 deposit, $5.00 each 
           Picnic Tables $50.00 deposit, $15.00 each 
           Barricades $50.00 deposit, $5.00 each 
           Fencing – Snow $30.00 per 50 feet 
           Trash Receptacles $50.00 deposit, $8.00 each 
  
PARKING STICKERS  
           Resident & Non-Resident Residence Owners  
           – Lasts 2 years (even)  – 2 hours free parking 

4 free per residence 
each additional $25.00 

           Business Owner 
           – 2 hours free parking 

  $25.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$25.00 for 1 year (effective Jan. 1 2017) 

$50.00 (effective Jan. 1, 2018) 
           Walworth County Resident 
            - 2 hours free parking 

$160.00 Lasts 2 years (even) 
$80.00 for 1 year 

           Parking Lot Permit $400.00 Annual   



 3 

PARKING RATES  
           Parking Stall Rate for stalls on Wrigley Dr.,  
          10 stalls at the boat launch, stalls on lower Center St.  
          south of Main St., stalls on lower Broad St. south of  
          Main St., 700 & 800 blocks of Main St., and Center St. 
          Parking Lot  
          All other Parking Stalls Rate 

$2.00 per hour 
 
 
 
 

$1.00 per hour 
           Parking Meter Bags/Contractor Permits $10.00 administrative fee 

$25.00 deposit per locked bag 
March 1 – Nov 14: $20.00 daily per bag 

Nov 15 – Feb 29: $10.00 daily per bag 
PARKING TICKETS     
           Expired Stall (Over 2 hours; Over 5 hours; Over 25 min.) $20.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles $20.00 
           Improper Use or Display of Sticker $20.00 
           Backed into parking stall $25.00 
           Compact Car Only $25.00 
           No Parking Zone $25.00 
           Over the Line $25.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $40.00 
           Handicap Zone $150.00 
           Parking with Trailer or Trailer alone in Sage Lot D $25.00 
           Parking any Vehicle without a Trailer or with an  
           occupied Trailer in Boat Launch Parking Lot F  

$25.00 

LATE FEES     
           Expired Stall After 10 days $40.00 
           More than 3 motorcycles After 10 days $40.00 
           Backed into parking stall After 10 days $50.00 
           Compact Car Only After 10 days $50.00 
           No Parking Zone After 10 days $50.00 
           Parking by fire hydrant $80.00 
           Handicap Zone  $300.00 
           Second Collection Letter Fee $6.00 
           Vehicle Suspension Release Fee $20.00 
PUBLIC ASSEMBLY PERMIT Free 
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS * STATUTORY  
           Photocopies 
           (can include hourly wage for gathering data) 

$0.25 per page 

RADON TEST KIT $10.00 
REISSUE CHECK FEE $25.00 
RETURNED CHECK FEE (NSF) $30.00 each 
ROOM TAX LICENSE $10.00 Annual 
SHOWS, CIRCUS, CARNIVALS  
           Circus $50.00 per day 
           Tent Show – Day 1 $15.00 
           Tent Show – Each Additional Day $10.00 
           All Other $2.00 per day 
SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT $15.00 per seat Annual 



 4 

  
STREET USE PERMIT $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
           Up to two days                         $40.00 
           More than two days $100.00 
TAX EXEMPT REPORT FILING (every other year) $20.00 
              Late Fee $20.00 
TAXI CAB COMPANY LICENSE $50.00 Annual 
           Each Additional Car $25.00 
TAXI CAB DRIVER LICENSE $25.00 Annual 
THEATER LICENSE  
           Up to 1,200 seats $200.00 
           Over 1,200 seats $275.00 
TRAPPING PERMIT $25.00 Annual 
CITY HALL MEETING ROOM RENT                $25 per event 

 
 
 

LAKEFRONT 
BEACH 
(Open Memorial Day thru Labor Day –  
  no glass containers allowed) 

 

           Children age 6 and under Free 
           Children age 7-12                        $4.00 per day 
           Ages 13 to Adult                         $8.00 per day 
Resident Beach Tags (Maximum 6 per Household) $3.00 per tag 
Seasonal Pass Adult 13 and up                      $70.00 per year 
Seasonal Pass Child 7-12               $40.00 per year 
Beach Use Permits 
  Rental Excludes Beach Operating Hours  
  Memorial Day through Labor Day 9:00am to 6:00pm  
    Rental Fees are Per Day $25.00 nonrefundable application fee 
     49 Attendees or less  
           Non-Profit Organization $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Resident $50.00 deposit, $30.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $100.00 deposit, $75.00 Rental 
     50 to 149 Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Resident $100.00 deposit, $55.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident $150.00 deposit, $125.00 Rental 
     150 or more Attendees  
           Non-Profit Organization Deposit Determined by  

Piers, Harbors & Lakefront,  
$105.00 Rental 

           Resident Deposit Determined by  
Piers, Harbors & Lakefront, 

 $105.00 Rental 
           Non-Resident Deposit Determined by  

Piers, Harbors & Lakefront, 
 $225.00 Rental 

     Beach Bathrooms – Opening/Cleaning Hourly Rate 



 5 

  
BOAT LAUNCH PERMIT  
     One-Time Launch Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $7.00 $8.00 
           Less than 20 feet $10.00 $11.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $14.00 $21.00 
           26 feet and over $16.00 $24.00 
     Season Launch Permit  Resident Non-Resident 
           Non-Trailer Non-Motor $70.00 $80.00 
           Less than 20 feet $100.00 $110.00 
           20 feet to 25 feet 11 inches $140.00 $210.00 
           26 feet and over $160.00 $240.00 
BUOY/SLIP RATES ESTABLISHED ANNUALLY BY RESOLUTION  
           Season Launch Pass for Kayaks, Canoes and 
           Paddleboards (non-trailer, non-motor) 

 $30.00 per year 

RIVIERA RENTALS 
           Maximum attendees is 380 

 

           Security Deposit $1,000.00 
           Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)  $2,500.00    
           Non-Resident Rental Fee  (Friday, Saturday, Sunday)    $3,000.00 
           Resident & Non-Resident Weekday Rental Fee  
          (Monday - Thursday) 

 
$500.00 

           Not-for-Profit Group Rental Fee $400.00 
           Per Hour Set Up Fee $20.00 per hour 
           Security Guards for Event (2) Additional Renter Expense– Hourly Rate 
           Extra Security Guard over 250 attendees Additional Renter Expense - Hourly Rate 
  

BUILDING & ZONING 
Building  

Minimum permit fee for all building permits Residential $60.00 
Commercial $100.00 

 Residential Construction:  

            One & Two family & attached garage (new,  
            addition and alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Single Family Construction 

$1,000.00 Minimum 
            Accessory buildings & garages  $0.25 / sq. ft. 

            Decks  $0.15 / sq. ft., or $60.00 Minimum 

            Roofing and Siding $60.00 

Commercial Construction:  

Residences - Apartments, Three family & over, Row Housing, 
Multiple Family Dwellings, Institutional (new, addition and 
alterations) 

$0.31 / sq. ft. 
New Commercial Construction 

 $1,500.00 Minimum 
Local Business, Office Building (new, addition or alteration) $0.30/ sq. ft. 

Manufacturing or Industrial (new, addition or alteration)  $0.30 / sq. ft. 



 6 

Commercial , structures, alterations, residing, reroofing, 
repairs, where square footage cannot be calculated 

$10.00 / $1,000.00 valuation 

Plan Examination:  

            One and Two Family Residence $150.00 

            Apartments, Three Family Residence, Row 
            Housing, Multiple family Building 
            State Approved Plans 

$150.00 plus $10.00 /unit 
 

Commercial, Industrial, Institutional & Additions 
            State Approved Plans 

$350.00 
 

            Heating Plans, Energy Calculations, or Lighting 
            Plans submitted separately 

$125.00/ Plan 

 Additions, Alterations to 1 & 2 Family Dwellings $75.00 

            Accessory building over 240 sq. ft., and decks for 
            1 & 2 family dwellings 

$40.00 

Wisconsin Uniform Building Permit Seal $45.00 

Occupancy Permit – Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 

$60.00 
$100.00 

Temporary (6 months or less Commercial only) $75.00 

Permit Renewal (6 month extension or less) $200.00 Commercial  
$50 Residential 

Heating and Air Conditioning:  

Heating and Air Conditioning Distribution Systems  $3.00/ 100 sq. ft. of conditioned area 
with a minimum fee of $60.00 

New Residential Heating 
 
 
Replacement Residential Heating 
 
Commercial New or Replacement Heating 

$125.00 first unit, $60.00 each additional 
unit. 

 
$60.00 / unit 

 
$150.00/ unit, up to and including 

150,000 BTU units. Additional fee of 
$20.00 / each 50,000 BTU fraction thereof 

up to a maximum of $900.00 / unit. 
Residential Air Conditioning – Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 
 

$60.00 / unit 
 

Commercial Air Conditioning - Other than Wall Units (new or 
replacement) 

 
$150.00/ unit up to 5tons or 60,000 

BTU's. Additional fee of $20.00 each ton 
or 12,000 BTU's or fraction thereof up to 

a maximum of $900.00 / unit 
Permanently installed Wall unit (example – Fireplace, wall pack) $60.00 / unit 

Commercial/Industrial Exhaust Hoods and Exhaust Systems $75.00  

Plumbing Permit:  

Fixture Count $15.00/ fixture, drain or device, 
 $60.00 Minimum 

Water Main $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, $60.00 Minimum   



 7 

 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main, / $9.00 per 

manhole$60.00 Minimum 
Storm Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   

private water main / $12.00 per manhole 
or basin $60.00 Minimum 

Exterior Grease Trap $100.00 

Electrical:  

Residential Minimum $60.00 minimum.  
 

New Residential Service $100.00/ Service First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Sanitary Sewer $1.00 / lineal foot of sewer or   
private water main,  $60.00 minimum & 

/ $9.00 per manhole. 
Residential Service Update $100.00/ Service 

Residential Sub-Panel $50.00/ Panel 

Residential Generator $75.00 (includes gas piping) 

Temporary Electrical Service $100.00 up to 200 Amps. 
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Electrical Minimum $150.00 Minimum 

Commercial Electrical Re-Inspections $150.00/ Inspection 

Commercial Service ( New or Update) $150.00 First 200 Amps,  
$25.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Sub-Panel $50.00 First 100 Amps,  
$10.00 each additional 100 Amps. 

Commercial Generator $150.00 (included gas piping) 

Commercial Low Voltage $1.00/ Device, $100.00 Minimum 

Commercial Exterior Light Fixture Replacement $100.00 per site 

Residential Electrical Permit - for minor installations with fees 
not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector.  
Commercial Electrical Permit - for minor installations with 
fees not exceeding $5.00, the permit fee may be waived by the 
inspector. 

$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,   
$60.00 minimum. 

 
$0.10 / sq. ft. of area served,  

$150.00 minimum. 

Erosion control fees:  

            New One and Two Family Buildings $125.00 / lot 

            One and Two Family Additions and Accessory 
            Structures 

$50.00 

            Multi-Family Residential, Commercial, Industrial  
            and Institutional 

 $175.00/Building, plus $5.00/1,000 sq. 
ft. disturbed lot area up to $2,000.00 max. 

            Other $40.00 

  



 8 

  

Zoning  

Zoning Permit $60.00 

Certificate of Occupancy (per Section 98-909) $60.00 

Temporary Use (per Section 98-906) $60.00 

Zoning Verification Letter $50.00 

Sign Permit (per Section 98-907) $60.00 minimum or $0.35/ sq ft of sign 
area 

Early Start Permit to start construction $125.00 (1-2 family) 
$250.00 (all others) 

Fuel Tanks $75.00 administrative fee/ tank for 
installation or removal 

Wrecking or Razing- Building Inspector may waive the fee if 
the structure is condemned 

$100.00 ( One or two family residences 
and accessory Structure over 250 sq ft) 

Commercial/ Industrial Razing $350.00 

Moving buildings over public right-of-ways $250.00 plus $0.03/ sq ft 

Special Inspections and Reports $150.00/ inspection report 

Text Amendment (per Section 98-902) $400.00 

Zoning Map Amendment (per Section 98-903) $400.00 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) For each new Residential Lot Created: 
$400.00 

For each new Commercial Lot Created: 
$200.00 

Plat Renewal $150.00 

Conditional Use (per Section 98-905) $400.00 
$100.00 

Site Plan (per Section 98-908) $400.00 

Variance (per Section 98-910) $400.00 

Interpretation (per Section 98-911) $150.00 

Appeal (per Section 98-912) $400.00 

PD Zoning Map Amendment (Includes 1 PIP Review) $750.00 

PIP Review $400.00 

Filing or Recording fee with City Clerk, plus actual recording 
fee 

$10.00 

Triple Fees: Upon failure to obtain a permit before work on a 
building has been started, except in emergency cases, the total 
fee shall be triple the total fees charged. 

 

NOTE: Fees shall be charged on gross square footage defined 
as follows: 

• The exterior dimensions, including attached 
garage and each floor level 

 

NOTE: In determining costs, all construction shall be included 
with the exception of heating, air conditioning, electrical or 

 



 9 

plumbing work. 

NOTE: All fee amounts shall be rounded up to the next full 
dollar amount. 

 

NOTE: An additional fee for plan review may be assessed at 
the time of application for renewal of the permit. 

 

* Base fee may be modified by Subsection (4) of Section 98-935, Fees of the Zoning Code 

 

CEMETERY FEES 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Full Burial) $675.00 
Opening Grave - Saturdays (Full Burial) $800.00 
Opening Grave – Weekdays (Cremation) $450.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays (Cremation) $525.00 
Two cremations buried in same grave at one time $100.00 extra charge 
Opening Grave – Weekdays - Baby Under 1 Year   $200.00 
Opening Grave – Saturdays - Baby Under 1 Year  $300.00 
Grave (50% Perpetual Care) $650.00 
Grave – Single Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $400.00 
Grave – Double Cremation (50% Perpetual Care) $500.00 
Columbarium Niche (includes opening & inurnment)  
($200 Perpetual Care) 

 $1,200.00 
$1,000.00 bottom row 

2nd Inurnment if Niche allows for two $150.00 additional 
Niche Door Inscriptions $240.00 
Frost Charges (November 1 to March 15) $75.00 
Stake Out Fee for Foundations $50.00 
Foundation Charges $0.40 per square inch 
Use of Cemetery for Functions 20% of Gross Receipts 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
FINGERPRINTING  
          City Residents $15.00 
          Individuals employed in business in city limits  
          or working for city licensed business 

 
$15.00 

          Non-Residents $60.00 

PUBLIC WORKS FEES 
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEE  
          Curb Cut/Driveway Approach Fee $25.00 
          Right-of-Way Excavation Fee $25.00 
          Storm Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
          Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $25.00 
Special brush, limb and refuse pick-up $24.00 per 15 minutes 
Dumpster Delivery $50.00 per dumpster 
Dumpster Pick-up $50.00 plus additional landfill fees 

 
 
 
 
 



 10 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES 

Fees for Apparatus and Personnel 1 hour minimum and fractions thereafter 
on hourly rates unless stated otherwise 

Chief, Deputy Chief or Assistant Chief $26.00/hr. 
Fire and EMS Personnel $26.00/hr. 
Engine/Squad $550.00/hr. 
Truck (aerial apparatus) $875.00/hr. 
Brush Truck $300.00/hr. 
Air Boat $300.00/hr. 
Technical Rescue and Utility $500.00/hr. 
Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chief, or Command Vehicle $50.00/hr. 
Utility $50.00/hr. 
Ambulance $270.00/hr. 
EMS First Responder and Transport Fees   

Residents Fee $150.00 per call 
Non-Resident Fee $200.00 per call 

Ambulance Transport Fee Schedule   
Advanced Life Support Base Rate $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (ALS2) $1010.47 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept) $918.89 
Advanced Life Support Base Rate (Intercept ALS2) $1010.47 
Equal Level Staffing Mutual Aid $300.00 
Basic Life Support Base Rate $700.00 
Mileage Charge $20.00 per mile 
Supplies used fee   

Defibrillation $100.00 
EKG Monitoring $150.00 
Spinal Immobilization $150.00 
I/O Needle & Associated Supplies $200.00 
Airway Placement $150.00 
Oxygen & Associated Supplies $100.00 
IV & Associated Supplies $150.00 
CPAP Disposable $150.00 
Epi 1:1,000 $35.00 
Nitro Tabs $22.00 
Albuterol/Ventolin $30.00 
Glucagon $211.00 
Narcan $48.00 
ASA $32.00 
Dextrose 25gms/50cc $32.00 



 11 

Glucose $10.50 
CO2 Monitor Nasal/Tube $40.00 
Oil Dry $10.00 per bag 
Class A, B, or AB Firefighting Foam $30.00/gallon 
BLS Supplies Used $75.00 
ALS Supplies Used $125.00 

Paramedic Medications  
Adenocard $31.00 
Amiodorone $125.00 
Atropine $37.00 
Calcium Chloride $43.00 
Dextrose 5% $32.00 
Diltiazem $9.00 
Diphenhydramine $5.00 
Epi 1:10,000 $16.00 
Etomidate $94.00 
Heparin $32.00 
Ketamine $54.00 
Lidocaine $36.00 
Magnesium Sulfate $7.00 
Methylprednisolone $101.00 
Metoprolol $9.00 
Midazolam $68.00 
Norepinephrine $22.00 
Ondansteron $28.00 
Sodium Bicarbinate $37.00 
Sublimaze $5.00 
Succinylcholine $41.00 
Clopidogral $19.00 
Dopamine $97.00 
Hydromorphone $10.00 
Hydroxycobalamin $1270.00 
Metoclopromide $5.00 
Morphine Sulfate $56.00 
Trananexamic Acid $96.00 

 
Adopted this 23rd day of April, 2018. 
       
        _________________________________ 

Tom Hartz, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of Proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division: 
The applicant is proposing to re-divide a single site into three separate lots. The subject property 
is located on the north side of Geneva Parkway, east of Edwards Boulevard and south of Wal-
Mart. A Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division has been submitted to accomplish this 
purpose. The subject property contains just over six acres and the multi-tenant office building 
housing Keefe Real Estate and other businesses. 

The northern part of subject property was recently rezoned from the Planned Business Park 
(PBP) zoning district to the Planned Business (PB) zoning district. The proposed lot sizes are: 

• Lot 1 of 1.54 acres, zoned Planned Business Park (PBP); 
• Lot 2 of 1.51 acres, zoned Planned Business (PB); and, 
• Lot 3 of 2.54 acres, zoned Planned Business. 

Please note that development in the form of new buildings and paved areas is proposed on Lots 2 
and 3. Revised paved areas are proposed on Lot 1. The current building will remain. These 
proposed development projects will be reviewed independently of this land division. 
Specifically, they appear as Items 9, 10, and 11 on this Plan Commission agenda. 
 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) as it complies with the Land Division and 
Zoning provisions of the Municipal Code, and recommendation to the Common Council. 

 

Staff Review and Recommendation on the Proposed Land Division: 

1. Staff has reviewed the proposed Certified Survey Map land division. Staff notes that each 
of the proposed Lots 1-3 meets all requirements of its respective zoning districts. 

2. Staff further notes the provision of easements for shared cross-access between the three 
proposed lots, as depicted on page 2 of the CSM. 

3. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Certified 
Survey Map (CSM), as submitted for the property. 

Agenda Item:8 

Applicant: 
Kim Pischke, Core Commercial, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1154 
Appleton, WI 54912 

Request: 
Certified Survey Map CSM Land Division 
At 751 Geneva Parkway for Tax Key Nos. 
ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, & ZGBC00002 
intended for commercial development. 



City of Lake Geneva 
 

APPLICATION FOR LAND DIVISION REVIEW 
 
 

               CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  or          SUBDIVISION PLAT 
 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CURRENT OWNER: 

 Roger Wolff, Member            

 GBC Business Centre, LLC.           

 P.O. BOX 460, Lake Geneva, WI  53147         

TELEPHONE NUMBER OF CURRENT OWNER:  (262) 903-3222       

EMAIL ADDRESS:    roger@rogerwolff.com         

PROJECT ADDRESS:   751 and 753 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI  53147    

TAX KEY NUMBER(S):  ZGBC 00001A, ZGBC 00001, ZGBC 00002 and ZLGBP 00002   
 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF APPLICANT: 

 Kim Pischke             

 Core Commercial, Inc.           

 P.O. Box 1154, Appleton, WI  54912          

TELEPHONE NUMBER OF APPLICANT:  (920) 205-9505        

EMAIL ADDRESS:   kimp@corewis.com          
 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SURVEYOR: 

 Mike Greason, PLS            

 V2G Surveying, LLC.            

 123 Wolf Run, Suite 4, Mukwonago, WI  53149       
         
TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SURVEYOR:  (262) 378-5097        

EMAIL ADDRESS:    MikeG@V2G-Surveying.com        
 
SHORT STATEMENT DESCRIBING PURPOSE OF APPLICATION: 

Combining current parcels owned by Geneva Business Centre, LLC. and separating into three separate 

parcels; parcel #1 – existing Keefe office building located at 751 Geneva Parkway, parcel #2 – new  

22,000 square foot single tenant building and parcel #3 – new construction of a 13,915 square foot single 

tenant building.  Parcel #1 will remain in the Lake Geneva Business Park and parcels 2 & 3 have been  

removed from the business park and rezoned Planned Business.       

X  

















HARDWOOD

FORM
SAUCER

(CEDAR) MULCH

VA
RI

ES

6"

3"

MIN.
12"

3"

NTS

COMPACTED SOIL MIX TO FORM

FORM SAUCER WITH

8"8" VARIES

SHRUB PLANTING

3

MIN. MIN.
BREAK SUBGRADE
WITH PICK

COMPACTED SOIL MIX 
TO FORM PEDESTAL 
AS SHOWN

CONTINUOUS RIM

2

NTS

TREE PLANTING

MIN.

MIN.
12"

MIN.
12"

REMOVE BURLAP FROM
UPPER 1/3 OF BALL.

BREAK SUBGRADE WITH PICK
PEDESTAL AS SHOWN

IF NECESSARY

6"

2" X 2" X 8' CEDAR STAKES
2 REQUIRED FOR 1 1/2"CAL.
AND LARGER; 3 REQ. FOR 3" 
CAL. AND LARGER TREE

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

ROLL BACK TOP HALF OF
BURLAP WRAP

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

2 STRAND TWISTED 12 GUAGE
GAL. WIRE ENCASED IN 1" DIA.
RUBBER HOSE

3" MULCH 

PLANT SPACING AS 
SHOWN ON PLAN

NTS

PERENNIAL PLANTING

4

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

Notes:

1. Individual tree and shrub groupings found within lawn areas are to receive wood mulch rings and/or wood mulch beds consisting of a mixture of recycled brown dyed wood mulch

spread to a 3" min. depth over a pre-emergent herbicide.

2. "Edging" to be professional grade polyethylene lawn edging available in 20' flat strips.  Basis of Design: Valley View Black Diamond.  Valley View Industries.

(www.valleyviewind.com/professional/)

3. "Lawn" areas shall be finish graded and seeded at a rate of 4 lbs. per 1,000 sq. ft.  Basis of Design: Madison Parks Lawn Seed Mix. EarthCarpet Corporation. (www.seedsolutions.com)

4. Unless otherwise indicated, plant beds to receive locally available, clean washed 1 ½" - 2 ½" durable landscape stone spread to a 3" min. depth over a commercial grade weed barrier

fabric.

5. Maintenance, watering and warranty of plants to extend for 12 months after project completion/acceptance.  Maintenance, watering and warranty period for seed to extend 60 days

from project completion/acceptance of installation.

1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

0'             30'           60'

1" = 30'-0"

Landscaping Points and Min. Installation Sizes: Proposed

Plant Catagory Min. size Points Qty. Points

Climax Tree 2" cal. 75 14 1,050

Tall Deciduous Tree 1 1/2" cal. 30 5 150

Med. Deciduous Tree 6' tall 15 - -

Tall Evergreen Tree 5' tall 40 - -

Tall Deciduous Shrub 36" tall 5 3 15

Low Deciduous Shrub 18" tall 1 15 15

Total Points Proposed 1,230

Article VI: Landscaping and Bufferyard Regulations
Zoning: Planned Business Development
Landscape Requirement Measurements Site Min. Required Points
Building Foundations: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 656 lf 263
Developed Lot: 10 landscape points per 1,000 gross floor area 22,450 sf 225
Street Frontage: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 179 lf 72
Area of Paved Areas: 80 landscape points per 10,000 sf 58,840 sf 471
Total Points Required 1,031

DEPRESSED AREA FOR PLANTINGS - SEE GRADING PLAN

PLANT SPACING TO BE 12" O.C., STAGGERED
PRAIRIE WILDFLOWERS AND GRASSES.

ENGINEERED SOIL - SEE CIVIL PLANS

OVERLAND FLOW/DOWNSPOUTS
CONTRIBUTE WATER

AFTER PLANTING

NTS

BIOINFILTRATION AREA PLANTS

5

Butterfly Weed Blue False Indigo
White False Indigo Purple Coneflower
Blue Flag Iris Cardinal Flower
Marsh Blazingstar Brown Eyed Susan
Stiff Goldenrod Bottlebrush Sedge
Fox Sedge Torrey's Rush
Switch Grass

COCONUT FIBER MAT

PLANTS; EQUAL MIX OF 2 1/2" PLUGS.  RANDOM PLANT BOTTOM OF BASIN AREA AS SHOWN. 

Rudy Haag Burningbush
Wine and Roses Weigela

18" ht.
18" ht.
18" ht.

Euonymus alatus 'Rudy Haag'
Weigela florida 'Alexandra'

Calamagrostis acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

Viburnum trilobum 'Compactum'

PERENNIALS

SHRUBS

Star Magnolia Magnolia stellata 36" ht.
Black Chokeberry Aronia melanocarpa

Pink Spires Crab
Redbud 2" cal.

6' ht.Malus Pink Spires
Cercis canadensis 'Columbus Strain'

TREES

Pagoda Dogwood 1 1/2" cal.Cornus alternifolia

Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

Dwarf Cranberrybush Viburnum

1 gal.

18" ht.

Capital Pear
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac Syringa reticulata 'Ivory Silk'

2" cal.
2" cal.

Autumn Spire Maple
Greenspire Littleleaf Linden
Thornless Cockspur Hawthorn
Adirondack Crab

Gro low Fragrant Sumac

Crataegus crus-galli 'inermis'

Acer rubrum 'Autumn Spire'
Tilia cordata 'Greenspire'

Malus 'Adirondack'

2" cal.
2" cal.
1 1/2" cal.
6' ht.

Rhus aromatica

7
7
8
0
 
E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
8
 
·

M
I
D

D
L
E

T
O

N
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
·

5
3
5
6
2

Existing Office Building 

Proposed Retail Building #1 

G

e

n

e

v

a

 

P

a

r

k

w

a

y

 

N

o

r

t

h

E

d

w

a

r

d

s

 

B

o

u

l

e

v

a

r

d

(4) Rudy Haag Burningbush

lawn

lawn

stone mulch islands-typ.

snow storage

s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

(2) Pink Spires Crab

(2) Pagoda Dogwood

(1) Star Magnolia

(4) Gro Low Frangrant Sumac

(2) Capital Pear

(4) Ivory Silk Tree Lilac

E

d

w

a

r
d

s
 
B

o

u

l
e

v
a

r
d

(3) Greenspire Linden

(1) Thornless Hawthorn

(1) Adirondack Crab

(3) Star Magnolia

(2) Redbud

(4) Black Chokeberry

stormwater area

(3) Dwarf Cranberrybush Viburnum

(4) Wine and Roses Weigela

(6) Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 #
1

RE
TA

IL
 D

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A,

 W
IS

CO
NS

IN

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN

03/28/2018
CITY SUBMITTAL

L1.
s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

(2) Autumn Spire Maple

Proposed Retail Building #2 

18" ht.

Pyrus calleryana 'Capital'

(5) Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

0



HARDWOOD

FORM
SAUCER

(CEDAR) MULCH

VA
RI

ES

6"

3"

MIN.
12"

3"

NTS

COMPACTED SOIL MIX TO FORM

FORM SAUCER WITH

8"8" VARIES

SHRUB PLANTING

3

MIN. MIN.
BREAK SUBGRADE
WITH PICK

COMPACTED SOIL MIX 
TO FORM PEDESTAL 
AS SHOWN

CONTINUOUS RIM

2

NTS

TREE PLANTING

MIN.

MIN.
12"

MIN.
12"

REMOVE BURLAP FROM
UPPER 1/3 OF BALL.

BREAK SUBGRADE WITH PICK
PEDESTAL AS SHOWN

IF NECESSARY

6"

2" X 2" X 8' CEDAR STAKES
2 REQUIRED FOR 1 1/2"CAL.
AND LARGER; 3 REQ. FOR 3" 
CAL. AND LARGER TREE

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

ROLL BACK TOP HALF OF
BURLAP WRAP

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

2 STRAND TWISTED 12 GUAGE
GAL. WIRE ENCASED IN 1" DIA.
RUBBER HOSE

3" MULCH 

PLANT SPACING AS 
SHOWN ON PLAN

NTS

PERENNIAL PLANTING

4

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

Notes:

1. Individual tree and shrub groupings found within lawn areas are to receive wood mulch rings and/or wood mulch beds consisting of a mixture of recycled brown dyed wood mulch

spread to a 3" min. depth over a pre-emergent herbicide.

2. "Edging" to be professional grade polyethylene lawn edging available in 20' flat strips.  Basis of Design: Valley View Black Diamond.  Valley View Industries.

(www.valleyviewind.com/professional/)

3. "Lawn" areas shall be finish graded and seeded at a rate of 4 lbs. per 1,000 sq. ft.  Basis of Design: Madison Parks Lawn Seed Mix. EarthCarpet Corporation. (www.seedsolutions.com)

4. Unless otherwise indicated, plant beds to receive locally available, clean washed 1 ½" - 2 ½" durable landscape stone spread to a 3" min. depth over a commercial grade weed barrier

fabric.

5. Maintenance, watering and warranty of plants to extend for 12 months after project completion/acceptance.  Maintenance, watering and warranty period for seed to extend 60 days

from project completion/acceptance of installation.

1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

0'             30'           60'

1" = 30'-0"

Landscaping Points and Min. Installation Sizes: Proposed

Plant Catagory Min. size Points Qty. Points

Climax Tree 2" cal. 75 5 375

Tall Deciduous Tree 1 1/2" cal. 30 - -

Med. Deciduous Tree 6' tall 15 7 105

Tall Evergreen Tree 5' tall 40 10 400

Tall Deciduous Shrub 36" tall 5 11 55

Low Deciduous Shrub 18" tall 1 27 27

Total Points Proposed 962

Article VI: Landscaping and Bufferyard Regulations
Zoning: Planned Business Development
Landscape Requirement Measurements Site Min. Required Points
Building Foundations: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 537 lf 215
Developed Lot: 10 landscape points per 1,000 gross floor area 14,075 sf 140
Street Frontage: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 392 lf 157
Area of Paved Areas: 80 landscape points per 10,000 sf 24,920 sf 200
Total Points Required 712

DEPRESSED AREA FOR PLANTINGS - SEE GRADING PLAN

PLANT SPACING TO BE 12" O.C., STAGGERED
PRAIRIE WILDFLOWERS AND GRASSES.

ENGINEERED SOIL - SEE CIVIL PLANS

OVERLAND FLOW/DOWNSPOUTS
CONTRIBUTE WATER

AFTER PLANTING

NTS

BIOINFILTRATION AREA PLANTS

5

Butterfly Weed Blue False Indigo
White False Indigo Purple Coneflower
Blue Flag Iris Cardinal Flower
Marsh Blazingstar Brown Eyed Susan
Stiff Goldenrod Bottlebrush Sedge
Fox Sedge Torrey's Rush
Switch Grass

COCONUT FIBER MAT

PLANTS; EQUAL MIX OF 2 1/2" PLUGS.  RANDOM PLANT BOTTOM OF BASIN AREA AS SHOWN. 

Little Devil Nineback

Dwarf Fountaingrass
Autumn Joy Sedum

18" ht.Physocarpus opulifolius 'Little Devil' 

Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln'
Sedum spectabile 'Autumn Joy'

PERENNIALS

SHRUBS

Little Lime Hydrangea Hydrangea paniculata 'Little Lime' 18" ht.
Emerald Mound Honeysuckle Lonicera xylosteum 'Emerald Mound' 18" ht.

Pink Spires Crab 6' ht.Malus Pink Spires
TREES

Fire Bird Crab 6' ht.Malus sergentii 'Select A'

Mohican Viburnum Viburnum lantana 'Mohican' 18" ht.

Happy Returns Daylily 1 gal.Hemerocallis 'Happy Returns'
1 gal.
1 gal.

Emerald Green Arborvitae
Capital Pear
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac Syringa reticulata 'Ivory Silk'

Pyrus calleryana 'Capital'
Thuja emerald 6' ht. 

2" cal.
2" cal.

Autumn Spire Maple
Adirondack Crab

Tor Birchleaf Spirea
Firedance Dogwood

Varieted Hosta

Acer rubrum 'Autumn Spire'
Malus 'Adirondack'

2" cal.
6' ht.

Hosta sieboldiana 'Elegans' 1 gal.

18" ht.
18" ht.

Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor'
Cornus sericea 'Bailadeline'

Densa Yew 18" ht.Taxus cuspidata 'Densata'

7
7
8
0
 
E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
8
 
·

M
I
D

D
L
E

T
O

N
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
·

5
3
5
6
2

Existing Office Building 

G

e

n

e

v

a

 

P

a

r

k

w

a

y

 

N

o

r

t

h

E

d

w

a

r

d

s

 

B

o

u

l

e

v

a

r

d

lawn

lawn

snow storage

lawn

(1) Pink Spires Crab

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

(2) Mohican Viburnum

(5) Autumn Joy Sedum

(5) Happy Returns Daylily

(2) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(1) Capital Pear

E

d

w

a

r
d

s
 
B

o

u

l
e

v
a

r
d

(1) Autumn Spire Maple

(1) Autumn Spire Maple

(2) Adirondack Crab

(4) Emerald Mound Honeysuckle

(3) Tor Birchleaf Spirea

(1) Firedance Dogwood

(2) Firedance Dogwood

(3) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(4) Litte Devil Ninebark

(2) Hosta

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 #
2

RE
TA

IL
 D

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A,

 W
IS

CO
NS

IN

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN

03/28/2018
CITY SUBMITTAL

 
 

 

L1.1

(2) Ivory Silk Tree Lilac

Proposed Retail Building #2 

Sargent Tina Crab Malus sergentii 'Tina' 6' ht.

(1) Little Lime Hydrangea

(4) Emerald Mound Honeysuckle

(4) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(4) Little Devil Ninebark

(3) Tor Birchleaf Spirea

(4) Little Devil Ninebark

(4) Firebird Crab

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

(2) Densa Yew

(3) Sargent Tina Crab

(10) Emerald Green Arborvitae



 

1

AG
i3

2 
V

er
si

on
 1

8.
3.

2 
- C

op
yr

ig
ht

 1
99

9-
20

18
 b

y 
Li

gh
tin

g 
An

al
ys

ts
, I

nc
.

Date:3/28/2018

Drawn By
Eric Svobda
Lighting Designer
Viking Electric Supply
Phone: 414-773-4451
Email: eric.svoboda@vikingelectric.com

FLOOR PLAN

Revisions:

3.

Page 1 of 2

Scale: Feet

MILLER ELECT. CO
INC
313 WEST VINE
STREET
MILWAUKEE WI
53212
414-265-2521
DEL McCLURE

CONTRACTOR:

R
O

S
S

 A
N

C
H

O
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 - 

LA
K

E
 G

E
N

E
V

A
R

A
B

 - 
LI

TH
O

N
IA

 V
E

 O
P

TI
O

N
S

1. REVISED LAYOUT
2. REVISED ZONES

Luminaire Schedule
Tag Symbol Qty Lum. Lumens Total Watts

Calculation Summary
Label

LLF Description
A3-01

CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
OVERALL SITE REV 1 Illuminance

2 7264

Fc 1.18

131.2 0.980 RAB - LOT3T65_D10
A3-02

52.9 0.0 N.A.

1 12807 110.3 0.980 RAB - LOT3T110_D10
A3-02HS

N.A.
PARKING AREA 1 REV 1 WAL-MART Illuminance Fc 1.51 2.4 0.4 3.78 6.00
PARKING AREA LOT 1 Illuminance

2 8959 221.4

Fc 1.39 4.8 0.1 13.90 48.00

0.900 LOT3T110_D10_HS
A5-02

PARKING AREA LOT 2 Illuminance Fc 2.41 54.0 0.2 12.05 270.00
PARKING AREA LOT 3 Illuminance Fc 1.51 15.0 5 12876 554 0.980 RAB - LOT5T110_D10

A5-03

0.0 N.A.

4 18324 645.2 0.980 RAB - LOT5T160_D10

N.A.
PROPERTY LINE REV 1

W3-01 8 6855 441.6 0.900 RAB - ALED3T50 - RWLED3T50 - RWLED3T50SF - WPLED3T50 (TYPE III)
D10 13 1677 260 0.900 RAB - ND6R20D-NDLED6RD-60N-W-W
S 11 2789 381.59 1.000 LITHONIA - LDN6CYL 50/10 LO6AR LS MVOLT EZ10 WM DDB WL
EX 3 12807 330.9 0.900 EXISTING WAL-MART FIXTURE ESTIMATED 12000 LUMEN

Illuminance Fc 0.03 0.4 0.0 N.A. N.A.

ROSS PARKING
Scale: 1 inch= 25 Ft.

THIS SIDE OF THE PARKING LOT JOINS WITH EXISTING WAL-MART PARKING LOT EXISTING WAL-MART LIGHTS
ARE APPROXIMATELY 2' FROM THE PROPERTY LINE, NO WAY TO ACHIEVE .1 OR .0 FOOTCANDLES ON THIS SIDE
OF THE PROPERTY LINE.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 3

MH: 27
A5-02

W3-01
MH: 15

W3-01
MH: 15

S
MH: 7

MH: 7
S

A5-03
MH: 27

A5-03
MH: 27

MH: 10
D10

MH: 10
D10

MH: 10
D10

EX
MH: 27

EX
MH: 27

EX
MH: 27

A5-03
MH: 27

A5-03
MH: 27

MH: 27
A5-02

A5-02
MH: 27

MH: 27
A3-02

MH: 27
A3-01

S
MH: 7

S
MH: 7 MH: 7

S
MH: 7
S S

MH: 7
S
MH: 7MH: 10

D10 D10
MH: 10

MH: 27
A3-02HS

A5-02
MH: 27

A3-02HS
MH: 27

S
MH: 7

MH: 7
S

MH: 7
S

A3-01
MH: 27

A5-02
MH: 27

W3-01
MH: 15 MH: 15

W3-01

W3-01
MH: 15

W3-01
MH: 15

MH: 15
W3-01

W3-01
MH: 15

MH: 10
D10

MH: 10
D10

MH: 10
D10

D10
MH: 10

MH: 10
D10

MH: 10
D10

D10
MH: 10

MH: 10
D10

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.1 1.6 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.6 2.9 3.2 3.2 2.8 2.1 1.2 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.5 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.6 3.9 4.1 4.0 3.2 2.1 1.1 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 1.2 2.0 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.6 3.9 4.2 4.4 4.2 3.7 2.8 1.8 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7 1.7 2.6 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.2 4.1 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.0 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 1.0 2.3 3.2 3.6 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 2.9 2.3 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.6 3.0 3.9 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 2.4 3.7 4.5 4.5 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 1.1 2.9 4.2 4.8 4.6 4.1 3.6 3.1 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 1.6 3.2 4.3 4.8 4.4 4.0 3.5 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.8 2.0 3.3 4.2 4.4 4.1 3.8 3.3 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 1.1 2.2 3.2 3.8 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.3 2.2 3.0 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.8 1.4 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.4 1.9 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.7 4.0 4.1 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.9 4.0 4.1 4.0 3.6 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.7 4.3 5.0 5.6 5.3 5.0 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.7 4.8 5.2 5.4 5.4 4.9 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.7 2.3 2.7 3.3 3.7 4.8 5.4 6.7 5.7 5.4 4.6 4.7 4.8 5.0 4.8 4.6 4.8 5.5 5.9 6.2 5.2 4.4 3.6 3.2 2.8 2.4 1.8 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.5 3.6 3.9 4.4 4.1 4.0 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.2 3.0 3.3 4.0 4.0 4.1 3.8 3.2 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.6 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 0.6 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.1 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 0.9 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 6.3 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 1.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 45.1 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 0.0 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 35.3 0.1 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 1.4 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 0.0 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 3.1 0.1 7.7 1.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 48.0 7.1 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.5 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 33.8 5.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 6.3 0.1 3.1 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 45.1 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 35.3 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 3.1 0.1 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 1.0 0.1 3.1 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 3.1 20.8 0.2 35.3 7.2 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 6.6 50.7 0.2 52.9 9.8 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 1.8 11.6 0.2 9.2 3.0 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.2 1.0 1.4 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 1.1 1.7 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.8 1.4 2.0 2.5 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 1.1 2.3 3.5 3.2 12.2 9.8 1.4 0.6 1.8 9.1 7.6 1.0 0.6 1.9 9.3 7.7 1.0 0.5 2.4 9.6 6.7 0.7 0.5 2.6 9.8 7.3 3.3 8.0 7.8 3.2 1.5 1.8 4.8 8.4 6.1 4.9 10.5 6.1 1.0 0.9 1.6 2.4 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.3 2.7 8.7 13.3 8.0 7.4 13.2 10.1 6.8 11.6 11.1 4.4 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.5 2.5 2.5 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.6 2.3 2.0 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 2.0 2.8 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.3 2.0 4.6 6.5 4.2 4.1 6.6 5.4 3.8 6.0 5.7 2.6 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.7 1.2 2.3 3.1 3.4 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 2.5 3.2 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.7 2.6 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.9 2.7 3.2 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.5 2.1 2.8 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.1 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.3 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.8 4.1 4.4 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.0 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.6 4.0 4.5 4.9 4.9 4.6 4.0 3.7 3.1 2.6 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.5 6.1 5.2 4.6 3.9 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.2 2.8 3.2 3.7 4.3 5.1 5.7 5.9 5.2 4.4 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.6 4.9 5.3 5.8 5.1 4.2 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.4 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.7 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.5 4.6 4.9 5.1 4.7 3.7 2.9 2.5 2.2 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 1.8 2.7 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.2 1.4 2.6 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.1 1.5 3.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 2.2 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.3 0.1 1.8 3.5 3.9 3.5 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 0.1 2.2 5.0 4.8 3.9 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.3 3.3 4.7 0.0 2.2 5.4 5.3 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.9 7.6 11.8 0.0 2.3 6.1 5.9 4.3 3.1 2.5 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 3.1 8.1 12.7 0.0 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.2 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.9 5.5 8.6 0.0 2.1 4.4 4.4 3.6 2.8 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.2 8.1 12.5 0.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.2 8.3 12.9 0.0 1.5 2.9 3.4 3.0 2.4 2.2 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.9 5.5 8.7 0.0 1.4 2.5 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.3 3.2 8.1 12.5 0.0 1.2 2.2 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.2 3.2 8.3 12.9 0.0 0.9 1.8 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.8 5.5 8.6 0.0 0.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 2.1 3.1 8.0 12.4 0.0 0.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.6 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 2.0 3.0 8.1 12.8 0.0 0.9 1.8 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.8 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.7 5.4 8.5 0.0 1.2 2.3 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.0 2.2 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.8 2.9 7.9 12.3 0.0 1.4 2.6 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.5 3.2 3.3 3.2 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.0 12.7 0.0 1.5 2.9 3.5 3.0 2.5 2.2 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.9 3.7 3.7 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.5 5.3 8.5 0.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.2 3.2 4.0 4.0 3.7 3.2 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.8 7.9 12.3 0.0 2.1 4.5 4.5 3.7 2.8 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.4 4.3 4.2 3.9 3.3 2.6 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.0 12.8 0.0 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.5 4.5 4.3 4.0 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.6 5.3 8.6 0.0 2.3 6.2 6.1 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.5 4.4 4.3 3.9 3.3 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.9 7.9 12.4 0.0 2.2 5.4 5.2 4.3 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.2 3.2 4.0 4.0 3.7 3.2 2.5 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 3.0 8.1 12.7 0.0 2.2 4.9 4.7 3.8 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.9 3.7 3.7 3.4 3.0 2.4 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.7 5.4 8.5 0.0 1.8 3.4 3.9 3.4 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.0 2.6 3.2 3.3 3.1 2.7 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.9 7.8 12.1 0.0 1.5 3.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.8 7.7 12.1 0.0 1.3 2.5 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.9 1.8 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 3.4 4.9 0.0 1.1 2.2 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.6 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 0.4 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.8 1.3 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.9 2.4 2.3 3.1 3.6 4.9 5.1 5.7 4.9 4.1 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.3 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.8 4.1 4.5 5.1 4.5 4.1 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.7 2.3 2.9 3.0 3.9 4.3 5.1 5.6 6.2 5.2 4.5 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.3 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.4 3.7 4.7 5.2 6.5 5.2 4.7 3.7 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.8 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.5 2.7 3.6 4.0 4.4 4.8 4.8 4.6 3.9 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.7 5.0 4.7 4.1 3.6 3.2 2.6 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 1.7 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.2 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.0 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.8 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.7 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.5 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.1 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.4 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 0.7 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.2 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1
0.1 0.2 0.4

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3

0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.4

0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9

0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5

0.3 0.3

0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.2

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.6 1.0 0.4

1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.8 2.1 1.3

2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 3.3 2.4 1.3

2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.3 4.3 3.9 3.0 2.0 0.1

3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.6 4.0 4.2 4.2 4.0 3.7 3.1 2.3 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1

3.6 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.8 3.2 3.5 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1

3.9 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2

4.5 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.3

4.8 4.3 3.9 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

4.7 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

4.4 4.3 4.0 3.6 3.0 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7

4.0 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.6 3.5 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.1 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7

2.5 2.7 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8

1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.5 2.1 2.0 2.0 0.7 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.4 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8

1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.3 2.2 2.3 1.0 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 1.1 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.0 2.2 1.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1

0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1

0.9 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.6 4.3 4.3 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.7 4.5 4.4 3.9 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2

0.9 1.4 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.6 4.2 5.0 5.6 5.9 5.5 5.0 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.8 5.2 5.6 6.3 5.4 4.8 4.0 3.6 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2

0.7 1.2 1.8 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.9 5.2 5.8 6.2 5.6 4.7 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.4 4.2 4.1 5.2 5.8 6.5 5.6 5.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2

1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6

1.6 0.9 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6

25.3 9.7 1.0 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

51.3 24.0 1.6 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6

14.9 7.0 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6

0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7

9.7 6.2 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8

54.0 29.7 2.7 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9

34.9 16.8 2.2 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0

3.0 2.2 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.8 1.3 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2

1.3 21.4 49.8 10.8 0.5 1.5 24.3 53.2 12.1 0.7 1.7 24.3 53.2 12.2 0.6 2.5 32.0 52.0 9.0 0.4 2.5 32.0 52.0 10.4 6.3 9.3 5.7 1.8 1.4 3.1 8.3 9.1 7.3 40.0 48.7 7.1 0.7 0.9 1.6 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 1.1 0.3 2.2 18.8 44.4 9.9 0.6 1.1 15.2 38.3 8.7 0.7 1.3 15.0 38.3 8.6 0.6 1.7 19.4 36.0 6.8 0.4 1.8 19.7 36.5 8.4 7.8 13.0 7.2 2.2 1.6 3.6 9.9 11.1 6.9 25.3 32.9 5.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 2.5 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 1.0 1.6 5.5 12.3 10.4 6.0 10.3 13.0 7.4 9.0 13.5 7.6 2.2 3.0 5.2 1.6 0.7 0.7 1.8 3.4 1.1 0.7 0.7 1.4 3.5 1.1 0.6 0.6 2.1 3.2 0.9 0.6 0.6 2.2 3.5 1.8 3.9 5.9 3.5 1.4 1.4 2.1 4.6 5.1 2.4 3.1 3.4 1.1 1.0 1.3 2.2 2.8 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.7 4.6 9.6 8.7 5.0 8.6 10.1 6.1 7.6 10.3 6.4 2.1 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.5 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.6 2.6 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5

0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 2.3 3.6 3.5 2.9 3.6 4.0 3.0 3.2 3.8 2.6 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.9 2.9 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5

0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 2.2 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5

0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.6

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.9

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.7 2.1

1.0 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.3

0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3

0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1

0.4 0.6 1.0 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5

0.4 0.6 1.1 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.3 0.6 1.2 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.3 0.6 1.3 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9

0.3 0.6 1.5 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6

0.2 0.6 1.7 2.8 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5

0.3 0.6 2.0 3.2 3.5 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4

0.3 0.5 2.2 3.6 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.1 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.2 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.3 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.1 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.5 3.8 4.0 4.3 4.3 4.1 3.6 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.4 4.4 4.2 3.7 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.4 5.8 5.2 4.5 3.9 3.4 2.9 2.3 1.8 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.2 2.7 3.2 3.8 4.3 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.2 4.5 3.8 3.4 2.8 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.8 3.2 3.4 3.8 4.0 5.3 5.8 6.4 5.5 4.6 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.3 1.7 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.4 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.3 4.0 5.3 5.8 6.1 5.4 4.3 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.9 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 2.0 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.4 3.0 2.9 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.8 2.6 2.7 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.4 2.5 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.5 2.9 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 2.1 4.5 4.5 3.7 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.5 2.9 2.1 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.6 5.9 9.0 5.9 2.2 6.2 6.1 4.3 3.1 2.5 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3

2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 3.1 8.5 14.8 8.6 2.2 5.4 5.2 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.1 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.9 6.1 9.4 6.2 2.2 4.9 4.7 3.9 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.0 6.8 10.3 6.9 1.8 3.4 3.9 3.5 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.3 0.7 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.3 8.8 15.0 9.0 1.5 3.0 3.6 3.2 2.6 2.3 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.0 6.2 9.5 6.3 1.4 2.6 3.1 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.3 3.0 6.8 10.2 6.9 2.4 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.5

2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 3.2 8.7 15.0 8.9 1.9 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5

2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.9 6.2 9.5 6.3 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5

2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.9 6.7 10.2 6.9 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 3.1 8.6 15.0 8.9 1.6 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.5

1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.7 6.1 9.4 6.3 2.1 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5

1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.7 6.6 10.1 6.8 2.5 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.8

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.5 15.0 8.8 2.7 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.2 0.8

1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.6 6.0 9.4 6.2 3.1 3.7 3.3 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.2 0.8

1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.6 6.5 10.0 6.8 3.8 4.1 3.6 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.3 0.7

1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.5 15.0 8.9 5.0 4.9 4.1 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7

3.4 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.6 6.0 9.4 6.2 5.6 5.5 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.4 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.7 6.6 10.1 6.9 5.7 5.5 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.2 2.5 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 3.0 8.6 15.0 8.9 5.1 5.0 4.1 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.6 3.1 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.8 6.0 9.4 6.2 3.9 4.2 3.6 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2

1.0 2.7 3.4 3.5 3.3 2.8 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.8 6.6 10.0 6.8 3.1 3.6 3.3 2.5 2.2 1.8 1.1

1.0 2.3 2.9 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.9 8.3 14.6 8.5 2.6 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.0

0.9 1.9 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.3 4.9 7.6 5.0 2.3 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9

0.9 1.7 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 1.7

0.8 1.4 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1

0.8 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7

0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7

0.8 1.0 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.7 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2

0.7 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.8 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9

0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.7 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7

0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4

0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.5 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.3 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0

PARKING AREA 1 REV 1 WAL-MART



 

2

AG
i3

2 
V

er
si

on
 1

8.
3.

2 
- C

op
yr

ig
ht

 1
99

9-
20

18
 b

y 
Li

gh
tin

g 
An

al
ys

ts
, I

nc
.

Date:3/28/2018

Drawn By
Eric Svobda
Lighting Designer
Viking Electric Supply
Phone: 414-773-4451
Email: eric.svoboda@vikingelectric.com

CUTSHEETS

Revisions:

3.

Page 2 of 2

Scale: Feet

CONTRACTOR:
MILLER ELECT. CO
INC
313 WEST VINE
STREET
MILWAUKEE WI
53212
414-265-2521
DEL McCLURE

R
O

S
S

 A
N

C
H

O
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 - 

LA
K

E
 G

E
N

E
V

A
R

A
B

 - 
LI

TH
O

N
IA

 V
E

 O
P

TI
O

N
S

1. REVISED LAYOUT
2. REVISED ZONES

Image File : type a3-01 - LOT3T65_D10 Image File : TYPE A3-02HS - LOT3T65_D10_HS
Image File : TYPE A3-01 POLE - PS4-11-25D2 Image File : type a3-02 - LOT3T110_D10

Image File : type a5-03 - LOT5T160_D10
Image File : TYPE D10 - NDLED6RD-50N-W-W

Image File : type W3-01 - WPLED3T50
Image File : type a5-02 - LOT5T110_D10



ALMOND

03.20.2018
STAFF REVIEW



ALMOND

ALMOND

ALMOND

ALMOND

03.20.2018
STAFF REVIEW



FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 2
110'-1 1/2"

TRUSS BEARING
114'-0"

T.O. FOOTING
96'-0"

1

PARAPET 1
122'-0"

PARAPET 3
126'-0"

3456 2 1.31.7

PARAPET 2
124'-0"

9

8

7

6

4

1

3
17

PARAPET 5
129'-0"

18

19

PARAPET 4
128'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 1
113'-0"

12

1414

16

15

11 2

10

15

12

15

12

1

10

5 5

17 2121

17

185'-3 5/8"

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 2
110'-1 1/2"

TRUSS BEARING
114'-0"

T.O. FOOTING
96'-0"

1

PARAPET 1
122'-0"

PARAPET 3
126'-0"

3 4 5 621.3 1.7

PARAPET 2
124'-0"

5

9

8

11

2

11

17

2
13

16

16

10

9

8

PARAPET 5
129'-0"

18

19

PARAPET 4
128'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 1
113'-0"

1

1710

8

2

8

16

21

21

21

2

21

10

186'-3 5/8"

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 2
110'-1 1/2"

TRUSS BEARING
114'-0"

T.O. FOOTING
96'-0"

B

PARAPET 1
122'-0"

PARAPET 3
126'-0"

C EDA

PARAPET 2
124'-0"

11

21

17

10

16

9

8

17

10

9

8

PARAPET 5
129'-0"

18

19

20

PARAPET 4
128'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 1
113'-0"

2

5

21

21

82'-9"

FIRST FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 2
110'-1 1/2"

TRUSS BEARING
114'-0"

T.O. FOOTING
96'-0"

B

PARAPET 1
122'-0"

PARAPET 3
126'-0"

CE D A

PARAPET 2
124'-0"

9

8

5

4

2

11

1

17

5

PARAPET 5
129'-0"

PARAPET 4
128'-0"

T.O. STOREFRONT 1
113'-0"

16

2

1010
11

11

21

21

75'-0"

1'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

3'
-0

"
4'

-1
0"

1'-0" 10'-0" 1'-0"

12
'-1

0"

1'-0" 1'-4" 1'-0"

10'-0"

9'-8" 1'-4"

BACK-LIT SIGN BOARD

BREAK METAL CAP, COLOR TO MATCH BUILDING COPING

MASONRY, COLOR AND STYLE TO MATCH BUILDING

PRELIMINARY A3.1

E
X
T
E
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
S

FI
V

E 
B

EL
O

W

LA
K

E
 G

E
N

E
V

A
, 

W
I 

5
3
1
4
7

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 2
 -

R
E
T
A

IL
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

1/8" = 1'-0"2 NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"5 SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"3 WEST ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"4 EAST ELEVATION

MATERIAL CALLOUT

# Comment
12 METAL CANOPY BRACKET
13 SIGNAGE BY TENANT, 77.67 SF SHOWN OUT OF 185.25 SF MAX FOR ELEVATION
14 ALUMINUM FRAMED FABRIC AWNING, COLOR: BLACK
15 PREFABRICATED METAL AWNING, COLOR TO MATCH CLEAR ANODIZED STOREFRONT
16 WALL SCONCE/WALL PACK, SEE LIGHTING PLAN
17 EIFS, COLOR: DRYVIT: SAND (473A)
18 EIFS, COLOR: DRYVIT: FIBE011021S
19 EIFS BORDER, COLOR: DRYVIT: CHINA WHITE (310)
20 SIGNAGE BY TENANT, 66.66 SF SHOWN OUT OF 82.5 SF MAX FOR ELEVATION
21 SPLIT-FACE CMU, COUNTY MATERIALS "CORAL BROWN"

MATERIAL CALLOUT

# Comment
1 METAL COPING, 12", McELROY METALS, COLOR: ALMOND
2 METAL COPING, 8", McELROY METALS, COLOR: ALMOND
3 SIGNAGE BY TENANT, 77.67 SF SHOWN OUT OF 185.25 SF MAX FOR ELEVATION
4 EIFS, COLOR: DRYVIT: AMARILLO WHITE (113)
5 EIFS, COLOR: GRECIAN IVORY (SW7541)
6 ALUMINUM FRAMED FABRIC AWNING, COLOR: BLUE (TO MATCH DRYVIT FIBE011021S)
7 ALUMINUM CLEAR ANODIZED STOREFRONT
8 PRECAST STONE LEDGE, COLOR: SIMILAR TO "PUSSYWILLOW" (SW7643)
9 SPLIT-FACE CMU, COUNTY MATERIALS "PEBBLE BEACH"
10 METAL RIB PANEL, McELROY METALS, COLOR: TUTOR BROWN
11 1" EIFS REVEALS

1/4" = 1'-0"1 MONUMENT SIGNS (2 SIGNS ON DEVELOPMENT)

Project Status
2018.03.20 STAFF REVIEW



 
 

Sketchworks Architecture, LLC | 7780 Elmwood Ave. Suite 208, Middleton, WI  53562 | 608.836.7570 | www.sketchworksarch.com 

March 28, 2018 
 
 
 
City of Lake Geneva 
Building & Zoning Administrator 
Mr. Fred Walling 
626 Geneva Street 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147 
 
Re: Site plan review - Parcels # ZGBC 00001A, ZGBC 00001 (751 Geneva Parkway), ZGBC 

00002 (753 Geneva Parkway) and ZLGBP 00002 in the City of Lake Geneva, WI.  
 
On behalf of the development team, we are submitting this letter of intent for a commercial 
development and redevelopment, to occur on the above mentioned parcels, located on the northwest 
corner of N. Edwards Blvd and Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI. 
 
Development Team 
 
Developer:   
Core Commercial, Inc. 
Kim Pischke 
P.O. Box 1154 
Appleton, WI  54912 
920-205-9505 
kimp@corewis.com  
   
General Contractor:  
MJI Building Services 
Mark Ihlenfeldt 
5017 Applebend Drive 
Appleton, WI  54913 
920-422-0015 
mark@buildwithmji.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Architect:   
Sketchworks Architecture, LLC 
Steve Shulfer 
7780 Elmwood Avenue, Suite 208 
Middleton, WI  53562 
608-836-7570 
sshulfer@sketchworksarch.com  
 
Civil Engineer:   
Cardinal Engineering 
Ryan Cardinal 
N6786 Avataia Trail 
Elkhorn,WI  53121 
262-379-0270 
ryan@cardinalengineering.com  
 
Landscape Architect: 
Jeff Delaura, RLA 
801 Bear Claw Way 
Madison, WI  53717 
608-334-7949 
jeffreydelaura@gmail.com  

 
 



 
 

Sketchworks Architecture, LLC | 7780 Elmwood Ave. Suite 208, Middleton, WI  53562 | 608.836.7570 | www.sketchworksarch.com 

Subject Properties: 
 
Parcels totaling 5.59 acres:   
 

Lot 1:   1.54 acres – 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI 53147  
           (existing office building to remain) 
 

Lot 2:   1.51 acres – 753 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI 53147  
 (existing office building to be removed and new 13,915 square foot  
  building constructed) 
 

 Lot 3:   2.54 acres – Vacant land to be developed for a 22,000 square foot building  
 
Current Zoning:   
 

Planned Business – 2.54 acres, 22,000 SF (Building #1), Lot 3 
Planned Business – 1.51 acres, 13,915 SF (Building #2), Lot 2 

  Planned Industrial – 1.54 acres, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI, Lot 1  
 
Proposed CSM and Land Division Application have been submitted along with this 
submittal.   
 
Project Description: 
 
The proposed project consists of razing the existing, vacant office building located at 753 
Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI, relocating and centralizing the parking for the existing 
office building located at 751 Geneva Parkway and constructing two new commercial 
buildings with each building located on a separate parcel.   
 
Cross access and cross parking for all three buildings and the existing Walmart 
development will provide safe, efficient traffic flow between properties for customers, 
employees and emergency vehicles and the general public.   
 
Lot #1, 751 Geneva Parkway (Keefe Real Estate) will remain “as is” with the exception of 
the relocation of the current row of parking on the north side of the building  
 
Lot #2, Building #2 will be a single-occupant, up to 13,915 square foot building for a retail, 
office or medical user.  The final Tenancy for this building is TBD.   
 
Lot #3, Building #1 will be a single-occupant, 22,000 square foot retail building for Ross 
Dress for Less, the anchor tenant for the proposed development.  
 
Buildings heights are shown on the attached drawings, and are approximately 42’ tall to the 
canopy parapet of building # 1 and 31’ to the parapet of building #2. 
 
 
 



 
 

Sketchworks Architecture, LLC | 7780 Elmwood Ave. Suite 208, Middleton, WI  53562 | 608.836.7570 | www.sketchworksarch.com 

The development with its proposed mix of retail, office and medical users is a suitable fit 
within the overall landscape along Edwards Blvd, which includes the Walmart anchored 
development immediately to the north and northwest, medical immediately to the south and 
office to the south and east.   
 
In addition, the existing retail along the Edwards Blvd/Hwy 120 corridor and the retail 
component proposed with our development mirrors the Lake Geneva Commons business 
park with retail proposed along the entire perimeter of the business park and adjacent to the 
north and east. While our development will be removed from the Lake Geneva Business 
Park and it is on a much smaller scale, our retail development and proximity to the business 
park is the same that the Lake Geneva Economic Development Corporation is marketing for 
their new business park.   
 
Materials will be decorative concrete masonry units (CMU) to 6’ tall minimum on building #1, 
and same on building #2 where in proximity to pedestrian contact.  A field of horizontal 
ribbed metal panel and EIFS will be used.  Decorative piers, sign bands, and glazing will 
comprise each building. 
 
Serving the site will be surface parking for 180 vehicles, as well as bicycle parking for 
approximately 10 bicycles. 
 
Access to the site is gained from the north, via a modification/relocation of the existing 
cross-access easement with Walmart, east of the current location, to align with the west 
access drive serving Walmart.  From the south, the current driveway for 751 Geneva 
Parkway will remain and a cross-access easement will be created between properties. Truck 
deliveries will access the site from Geneva Parkway at the proposed access drive shown 
adjacent to the east property line.    
 
Pedestrian access is gained via a new sidewalk and bike path entering the site from 
Edwards Boulevard, as well as from the existing shared sidewalk on Walmart property. 
 
Underground storm water management, designed per code, will treat runoff and store storm 
water flow from the site (refer to civil engineering documents for additional design criteria). 
 
 
Organizational Structure: 
 
The existing cross access agreement with Walmart will be amended. There will be a cross 
access and cross parking agreement between proposed the three newly created lots. 
 
 
Signage: 
 
Two monument signs are proposed for the site, one for each building, located on the each 
proposed lots.   
 
 



 
 

Sketchworks Architecture, LLC | 7780 Elmwood Ave. Suite 208, Middleton, WI  53562 | 608.836.7570 | www.sketchworksarch.com 

Site Lighting: 
 
Site lighting will be provided in accordance with City ordinance. 
 
Parking lot lighting will be accommodated via pole-mounted LED cut-off syle area lighting 
fixtures on poles 20 feet in height.  Building, entry/exit, and sidewalk lighting will be 
accommodated by building-mounted LED wall-pack fixtures of a cut-off / down-light style.  
Entry canopies will have recessed LED can lights to illuminate entry points. 
 
A full photometric diagram of the site lighting design is included.  
 
 
Landscaping: 
 
The landscape plan is provided herein, meeting the City landscape ordinance. 
 
The existing office building, to be located on Lot 1, will remain with sufficient landscape and 
greenspace as required per code. 
 
As our team has been working with City staff for two years on this project, we believe the 
process and site requirements have been thoroughly vetted. We are seeking both site plan 
approval and CSM/Land Division approval for this development within the Planned Business 
zoning.   
 
Thank you for your consideration in your review of this project.   
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Steve Shulfer, AIA. 
Sketchworks Architecture, LLC 
 
 



 

  January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 
 

Ross Dress for Less 
Commercial Development 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva 
Walworth County 

Wisconsin 
 
 

Stormwater Management Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Cardinal Engineering LLC 
N6786 Avataia Trail 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 
262-757-8776 
 
1/26/18 
Storm Sewer Calcs and Maint. Agreement Updated 3/28/18 



 

Section 1 – Project Narrative   January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

ROSS DRESS FOR LESS 

RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

Location 

The subject property is located as follows. Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ and the Northwest 
¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 31, Township 2 North, Range 18 East in the City of Lake 
Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin.  The development is located on the northeast corner of 
Geneva Parkway and S Edwards Blvd.   

 

Site Location Maps 

 

    

Site Area Overview 

PROJECT LOCATION 



 

Section 1 – Project Narrative   January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 
Zoomed Site Area Overview 

 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

The property is in the City of Lake Geneva.  The parcel is part of the Geneva Business Center, 
with existing office buildings and pavement.  This parcel was originally developed under plans 
from American Surveying Company, Inc. dated 1995 that included a total of 5 office buildings.  
The site was designed with stormwater drainage to the northeast, including a stormwater 
easement for runoff from Edwards Blvd.   These plans are to specifically redevelop the site into 
commercial retail space. 

As part of this project, a CSM will be completed leaving one building under it’s own parcel and 
TAX ID, being the Keefe Real Estate office building.  The existing building to the Northwest will 
be razed and redeveloped into commercial space.   

The intent of the stormwater management plan is to allow the stormwater to continue being 
discharged to the wetlands east of Walmart, after undergoing quantity and quality treatment.  
The portion of the site that is staying as “Keefe Real Estate” will be shown as a straight “pass-
through” as that is not being disturbed as part of this project.  The portion of the site that is being 
redeveloped is shown as weighted average in requirements that differ between new and 
redevelopment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT LOCATION 



 

Section 1 – Project Narrative   January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

Below is a summary of the proposed disturbances and development of the site 
 
Total Site: 5.59 acres 
Proposed Parcel 1: 1.50 acres (Existing Keefe Real Estate Office) 
 Parcel 1 Greenspace: 48.86% 
Proposed Parcel 2: 4.09 acres (Proposed Commercial Retail) 
 Parcel 2 Greenspace: 25.12% 
 
Total Area of Disturbance: 4.83 acres 
  
Predeveloped Impervious Surfaces: 1.51 acres (Total Site) 
Predeveloped Impervious Surface Undisturbed: 0.54 acres (Keefe Site) 
Predeveloped Impervious being redeveloped: 0.97 acres (Proposed Commercial Retail) 
 

STORM WATER NARRATIVE 

Existing Soils 

A review of the NRCS Soil Survey indicated the existing soils of this project to be CyA (Conover 
silt loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes), MpB (McHenry silt loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes), and MxC2 
(Miami loam, sandy loam substratum). The soils have a hydrologic soil group C/D, B, and B 
rating, per previously listed soils.  To be conservative, the entire site was modeled as a 
hydrologic soil group B, which per Lake Geneva Ordinance, has a Pre-Development 
Curve number of 61.   

Regulatory Requirements 

This project is required to conform to Chapter 78, Article 3, § 247(i) of the Lake Geneva 
Municipal Code, along with WDNR NR216 and NR151. In addition to the Notice of Intent 
required with 1-acre of disturbance, the site will be required to achieve a weighted average of 
40% reduction in TSS runoff due to the redevelopment of the site and 80% reduction of new 
development. The site is designed to release at the same or less of the1,2, 10, and 100 year 24-
hour storm events.   

Erosion Control Best Management Practices 

Practices are shown to protect the existing and proposed development features.  Silt fence is 
shown in areas that are downslope and before discharging off-site.  A tracking pad is to be 
installed at the entrance of the site as to avoid tracking of solids offsite.  All erosion control 
measures are to be monitored and maintained per current standards.   

Post-Construction Stormwater Management 

The site is designed to collect is several areas through a series of storm sewer piping, and then 
discharge into and underground stormwater treatment device. This device handles storwamter 
quantity release rates and water quality improvements.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Section 1 – Project Narrative   January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 
The site was designed to maintain predevelopment rates, as per the Lake Geneva ordinance.  
The two ponds are detailed below:  
 
Pre-Development, 24-hour Discharge rates 
 
1-year: 1.76 CFS 
2-year: 2.77 CFS 
10-year: 6.88 CFS 
100-year: 16.32 CFS 
 
Total Proposed Stormwater Discharge 
 
Underground Storage: 
 
Normal Water Level: 873.00 
6.5” Vertical Orifice: 873.00 
Weir Wall: 877.20 
 
Total Discharge Rate Summary 
 
The below summary includes the entire site, with some uncaptured discharge, see enclosed 
HydroCAD model for details.  
 

  
      

Underground 
Storage 

Event Predevelopment 
Total Post 

Rate   
Rate 
(CFS) 

Max 
Height 

1 1.76 1.36  1.33 875.23 
2 2.77 1.50   1.45 875.61 

10 6.88 2.12   1.80 876.86 
100 16.32 15.87   15.15 877.98 

 
Water Quality Summary 
 
The site being partially redevelopment, a weighted average of 80% for new development and 
40% for redevelopment was utilized.  
 
0.97 acres @ 40% TSS Reduction for Redevelopment 
3.86 acres @ 80% TSS Reduction for New Development 
Weighted Average Requirement = 71.97 TSS Reduction required for this Site 
 
The enclosed WinSLAMM Model shows the proposed system provides 72.43% TSS 
Reduction.  This meets required water quality standards.  
 
No additional impervious surfaces were included for any future work on this site  
 
 
 



 

Section 2 – HydroCAD Report  January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 

Section 2 
 

HydroCAD Predevelopment and Post-Construction Report 
 



1S

Existing Site - West

2S

Existing Site - Northeast

4S

Proposed Site - West

5S

Proposed Site to UG

6S

Proposed Site to UG

8S

Proposed Site -
 Undetained East

1P

Total Existing Flow

2P

UG

4P

Total Proposed Flow

Routing Diagram for Ross Development ALL UG
Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC,  Printed 2/12/2018

HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Subcat Reach Pond Link



Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 2HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Area Listing (all nodes)

Area

(acres)

CN Description

(subcatchment-numbers)

5.020 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B  (1S, 2S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 8S)

3.226 98 Paved parking, HSG B  (1S, 2S, 5S, 6S)

1.078 98 Roofs, HSG B  (2S, 5S, 6S)

0.345 98 Walks, HSG B  (1S, 2S, 4S, 5S, 6S)

9.669 79 TOTAL AREA



Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 3HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Soil Listing (all nodes)

Area

(acres)

Soil

Group

Subcatchment

Numbers

0.000 HSG A

9.669 HSG B 1S, 2S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 8S

0.000 HSG C

0.000 HSG D

0.000 Other

9.669 TOTAL AREA



Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 4HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Ground Covers (all nodes)

HSG-A

(acres)

HSG-B

(acres)

HSG-C

(acres)

HSG-D

(acres)

Other

(acres)

Total

(acres)

Ground

Cover

Subcatchment

Numbers

0.000 5.020 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.020 >75% Grass cover, Good 1S, 2S, 

4S, 5S, 

6S, 8S

0.000 3.226 0.000 0.000 0.000 3.226 Paved parking 1S, 2S, 

5S, 6S

0.000 1.078 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.078 Roofs 2S, 5S, 

6S

0.000 0.345 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.345 Walks 1S, 2S, 

4S, 5S, 

6S

0.000 9.669 0.000 0.000 0.000 9.669 TOTAL AREA



Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 5HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pipe Listing (all nodes)

Line# Node

Number

In-Invert

(feet)

Out-Invert

(feet)

Length

(feet)

Slope

(ft/ft)

n Diam/Width

(inches)

Height

(inches)

Inside-Fill

(inches)

1 2P 873.00 872.80 10.0 0.0200 0.025 24.0 0.0 0.0



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 6HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=18,383 sf   2.52% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.17"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.06 cfs  0.006 af

Runoff Area=192,205 sf   23.88% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.38"Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - 
   Flow Length=362'   Tc=17.3 min   CN=70   Runoff=1.72 cfs  0.140 af

Runoff Area=15,949 sf   2.68% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.17"Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.05 cfs  0.005 af

Runoff Area=94,830 sf   84.49% Impervious   Runoff Depth>1.55"Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=92   Runoff=6.10 cfs  0.281 af

Runoff Area=97,106 sf   77.87% Impervious   Runoff Depth>1.39"Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=90   Runoff=5.72 cfs  0.259 af

Runoff Area=2,701 sf   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.15"Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - 
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=61   Runoff=0.01 cfs  0.001 af

   Inflow=1.76 cfs  0.146 afPond 1P: Total Existing Flow
   Primary=1.76 cfs  0.146 af

Peak Elev=875.23'  Storage=0.269 af   Inflow=11.81 cfs  0.540 afPond 2P: UG
   Outflow=1.33 cfs  0.532 af

   Inflow=1.36 cfs  0.538 afPond 4P: Total Proposed Flow
   Primary=1.36 cfs  0.538 af

Total Runoff Area = 9.669 ac   Runoff Volume = 0.693 af   Average Runoff Depth = 0.86"
51.91% Pervious = 5.020 ac     48.09% Impervious = 4.649 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 7HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff = 0.06 cfs @ 12.19 hrs,  Volume= 0.006 af,  Depth> 0.17"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
17,920 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

* 428 98 Walks, HSG B
35 98 Paved parking, HSG B

18,383 62 Weighted Average
17,920 97.48% Pervious Area

463 2.52% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.065

0.06

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=18,383 sf
Runoff Volume=0.006 af

Runoff Depth>0.17"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.06 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 8HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff = 1.72 cfs @ 12.31 hrs,  Volume= 0.140 af,  Depth> 0.38"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
30,908 98 Paved parking, HSG B
10,968 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 4,017 98 Walks, HSG B
146,312 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
192,205 70 Weighted Average
146,312 76.12% Pervious Area
45,893 23.88% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
11.8 130 0.0250 0.18 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.79"
5.5 232 0.0100 0.70 Shallow Concentrated Flow, 

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
17.3 362 Total

Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=192,205 sf
Runoff Volume=0.140 af

Runoff Depth>0.38"
Flow Length=362'

Tc=17.3 min
CN=70

1.72 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 9HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff = 0.05 cfs @ 12.19 hrs,  Volume= 0.005 af,  Depth> 0.17"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 428 98 Walks, HSG B

15,521 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
15,949 62 Weighted Average
15,521 97.32% Pervious Area

428 2.68% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=15,949 sf
Runoff Volume=0.005 af

Runoff Depth>0.17"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.05 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 10HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 6.10 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.281 af,  Depth> 1.55"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
59,811 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 2,308 98 Walks, HSG B
4,739 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,972 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

94,830 92 Weighted Average
14,711 15.51% Pervious Area
80,119 84.49% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=94,830 sf
Runoff Volume=0.281 af

Runoff Depth>1.55"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=92

6.10 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 11HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 5.72 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.259 af,  Depth> 1.39"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
49,779 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 7,841 98 Walks, HSG B
12,306 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,180 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

97,106 90 Weighted Average
21,486 22.13% Pervious Area
75,620 77.87% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=97,106 sf
Runoff Volume=0.259 af

Runoff Depth>1.39"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=90

5.72 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 12HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff = 0.01 cfs @ 12.21 hrs,  Volume= 0.001 af,  Depth> 0.15"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Area (sf) CN Description
2,701 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
2,701 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.007

0.007

0.006

0.006

0.005

0.005

0.004

0.004

0.003

0.003

0.002

0.002

0.001

0.001

0.000

0

MSE 24-hr 3
1-yr Rainfall=2.41"

Runoff Area=2,701 sf
Runoff Volume=0.001 af

Runoff Depth>0.15"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=61

0.01 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 13HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 22.01% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 0.36"    for  1-yr event
Inflow = 1.76 cfs @ 12.31 hrs,  Volume= 0.146 af
Primary = 1.76 cfs @ 12.31 hrs,  Volume= 0.146 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
1.76 cfs

1.76 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 14HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: UG

Inflow Area = 4.406 ac, 81.14% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 1.47"    for  1-yr event
Inflow = 11.81 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.540 af
Outflow = 1.33 cfs @ 12.61 hrs,  Volume= 0.532 af,  Atten= 89%,  Lag= 29.0 min
Primary = 1.33 cfs @ 12.61 hrs,  Volume= 0.532 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev= 875.23' @ 12.61 hrs   Surf.Area= 0.172 ac   Storage= 0.269 af

Plug-Flow detention time= 100.1 min calculated for 0.532 af (98% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 93.9 min ( 867.4 - 773.5 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 873.00' 1.623 af 120.0"  Round Pipe Storage

L= 900.0'

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Primary 873.00' 24.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 10.0'   CMP, projecting, no headwall,  Ke= 0.900   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 873.00' / 872.80'   S= 0.0200 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.025  Corrugated metal,  Flow Area= 3.14 sf   

#2 Device 1 873.00' 6.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   
#3 Device 1 877.20' 6.0' long Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir   2 End Contraction(s)   

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.33 cfs @ 12.61 hrs  HW=875.23'   (Free Discharge)
1=Culvert  (Passes 1.33 cfs of 13.03 cfs potential flow)

2=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 1.33 cfs @ 6.77 fps)
3=Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 15HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: UG

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.406 ac
Peak Elev=875.23'

Storage=0.269 af

11.81 cfs

1.33 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  1-yr Rainfall=2.41"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 16HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 74.16% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 1.34"    for  1-yr event
Inflow = 1.36 cfs @ 12.53 hrs,  Volume= 0.538 af
Primary = 1.36 cfs @ 12.53 hrs,  Volume= 0.538 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
1.36 cfs

1.36 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 17HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=18,383 sf   2.52% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.28"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.16 cfs  0.010 af

Runoff Area=192,205 sf   23.88% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.55"Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - 
   Flow Length=362'   Tc=17.3 min   CN=70   Runoff=2.68 cfs  0.202 af

Runoff Area=15,949 sf   2.68% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.28"Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.13 cfs  0.009 af

Runoff Area=94,830 sf   84.49% Impervious   Runoff Depth>1.88"Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=92   Runoff=7.29 cfs  0.340 af

Runoff Area=97,106 sf   77.87% Impervious   Runoff Depth>1.71"Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=90   Runoff=6.93 cfs  0.317 af

Runoff Area=2,701 sf   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.26"Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - 
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=61   Runoff=0.02 cfs  0.001 af

   Inflow=2.77 cfs  0.212 afPond 1P: Total Existing Flow
   Primary=2.77 cfs  0.212 af

Peak Elev=875.61'  Storage=0.337 af   Inflow=14.22 cfs  0.657 afPond 2P: UG
   Outflow=1.45 cfs  0.647 af

   Inflow=1.50 cfs  0.657 afPond 4P: Total Proposed Flow
   Primary=1.50 cfs  0.657 af

Total Runoff Area = 9.669 ac   Runoff Volume = 0.879 af   Average Runoff Depth = 1.09"
51.91% Pervious = 5.020 ac     48.09% Impervious = 4.649 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 18HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff = 0.16 cfs @ 12.16 hrs,  Volume= 0.010 af,  Depth> 0.28"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
17,920 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

* 428 98 Walks, HSG B
35 98 Paved parking, HSG B

18,383 62 Weighted Average
17,920 97.48% Pervious Area

463 2.52% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.17

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=18,383 sf
Runoff Volume=0.010 af

Runoff Depth>0.28"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.16 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 19HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff = 2.68 cfs @ 12.30 hrs,  Volume= 0.202 af,  Depth> 0.55"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
30,908 98 Paved parking, HSG B
10,968 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 4,017 98 Walks, HSG B
146,312 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
192,205 70 Weighted Average
146,312 76.12% Pervious Area
45,893 23.88% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
11.8 130 0.0250 0.18 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.79"
5.5 232 0.0100 0.70 Shallow Concentrated Flow, 

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
17.3 362 Total

Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=192,205 sf
Runoff Volume=0.202 af

Runoff Depth>0.55"
Flow Length=362'

Tc=17.3 min
CN=70

2.68 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 20HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff = 0.13 cfs @ 12.16 hrs,  Volume= 0.009 af,  Depth> 0.28"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 428 98 Walks, HSG B

15,521 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
15,949 62 Weighted Average
15,521 97.32% Pervious Area

428 2.68% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=15,949 sf
Runoff Volume=0.009 af

Runoff Depth>0.28"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.13 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 21HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 7.29 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.340 af,  Depth> 1.88"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
59,811 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 2,308 98 Walks, HSG B
4,739 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,972 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

94,830 92 Weighted Average
14,711 15.51% Pervious Area
80,119 84.49% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=94,830 sf
Runoff Volume=0.340 af

Runoff Depth>1.88"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=92

7.29 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 22HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 6.93 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.317 af,  Depth> 1.71"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
49,779 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 7,841 98 Walks, HSG B
12,306 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,180 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

97,106 90 Weighted Average
21,486 22.13% Pervious Area
75,620 77.87% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=97,106 sf
Runoff Volume=0.317 af

Runoff Depth>1.71"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=90

6.93 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 23HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff = 0.02 cfs @ 12.17 hrs,  Volume= 0.001 af,  Depth> 0.26"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Area (sf) CN Description
2,701 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
2,701 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.021

0.02

0.019

0.018

0.017

0.016

0.015

0.014

0.013

0.012

0.011

0.01

0.009

0.008

0.007

0.006

0.005

0.004

0.003

0.002

0.001

0

MSE 24-hr 3
2-yr Rainfall=2.77"

Runoff Area=2,701 sf
Runoff Volume=0.001 af

Runoff Depth>0.26"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=61

0.02 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 24HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 22.01% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 0.53"    for  2-yr event
Inflow = 2.77 cfs @ 12.30 hrs,  Volume= 0.212 af
Primary = 2.77 cfs @ 12.30 hrs,  Volume= 0.212 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
2.77 cfs

2.77 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 25HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: UG

Inflow Area = 4.406 ac, 81.14% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 1.79"    for  2-yr event
Inflow = 14.22 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.657 af
Outflow = 1.45 cfs @ 12.65 hrs,  Volume= 0.647 af,  Atten= 90%,  Lag= 31.1 min
Primary = 1.45 cfs @ 12.65 hrs,  Volume= 0.647 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev= 875.61' @ 12.65 hrs   Surf.Area= 0.182 ac   Storage= 0.337 af

Plug-Flow detention time= 113.9 min calculated for 0.645 af (98% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 107.4 min ( 877.6 - 770.2 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 873.00' 1.623 af 120.0"  Round Pipe Storage

L= 900.0'

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Primary 873.00' 24.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 10.0'   CMP, projecting, no headwall,  Ke= 0.900   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 873.00' / 872.80'   S= 0.0200 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.025  Corrugated metal,  Flow Area= 3.14 sf   

#2 Device 1 873.00' 6.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   
#3 Device 1 877.20' 6.0' long Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir   2 End Contraction(s)   

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.45 cfs @ 12.65 hrs  HW=875.61'   (Free Discharge)
1=Culvert  (Passes 1.45 cfs of 15.16 cfs potential flow)

2=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 1.45 cfs @ 7.40 fps)
3=Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 26HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: UG

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.406 ac
Peak Elev=875.61'

Storage=0.337 af

14.22 cfs

1.45 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  2-yr Rainfall=2.77"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 27HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 74.16% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 1.63"    for  2-yr event
Inflow = 1.50 cfs @ 12.47 hrs,  Volume= 0.657 af
Primary = 1.50 cfs @ 12.47 hrs,  Volume= 0.657 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
1.50 cfs

1.50 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 28HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=18,383 sf   2.52% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.79"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.59 cfs  0.028 af

Runoff Area=192,205 sf   23.88% Impervious   Runoff Depth>1.23"Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - 
   Flow Length=362'   Tc=17.3 min   CN=70   Runoff=6.61 cfs  0.452 af

Runoff Area=15,949 sf   2.68% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.79"Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=0.51 cfs  0.024 af

Runoff Area=94,830 sf   84.49% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.98"Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=92   Runoff=11.22 cfs  0.540 af

Runoff Area=97,106 sf   77.87% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.78"Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=90   Runoff=10.97 cfs  0.517 af

Runoff Area=2,701 sf   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>0.74"Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - 
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=61   Runoff=0.08 cfs  0.004 af

   Inflow=6.88 cfs  0.479 afPond 1P: Total Existing Flow
   Primary=6.88 cfs  0.479 af

Peak Elev=876.86'  Storage=0.578 af   Inflow=22.19 cfs  1.057 afPond 2P: UG
   Outflow=1.80 cfs  1.004 af

   Inflow=2.12 cfs  1.032 afPond 4P: Total Proposed Flow
   Primary=2.12 cfs  1.032 af

Total Runoff Area = 9.669 ac   Runoff Volume = 1.564 af   Average Runoff Depth = 1.94"
51.91% Pervious = 5.020 ac     48.09% Impervious = 4.649 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 29HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff = 0.59 cfs @ 12.15 hrs,  Volume= 0.028 af,  Depth> 0.79"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
17,920 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

* 428 98 Walks, HSG B
35 98 Paved parking, HSG B

18,383 62 Weighted Average
17,920 97.48% Pervious Area

463 2.52% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=18,383 sf
Runoff Volume=0.028 af

Runoff Depth>0.79"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.59 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 30HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff = 6.61 cfs @ 12.28 hrs,  Volume= 0.452 af,  Depth> 1.23"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
30,908 98 Paved parking, HSG B
10,968 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 4,017 98 Walks, HSG B
146,312 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
192,205 70 Weighted Average
146,312 76.12% Pervious Area
45,893 23.88% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
11.8 130 0.0250 0.18 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.79"
5.5 232 0.0100 0.70 Shallow Concentrated Flow, 

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
17.3 362 Total

Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=192,205 sf
Runoff Volume=0.452 af

Runoff Depth>1.23"
Flow Length=362'

Tc=17.3 min
CN=70

6.61 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 31HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff = 0.51 cfs @ 12.15 hrs,  Volume= 0.024 af,  Depth> 0.79"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 428 98 Walks, HSG B

15,521 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
15,949 62 Weighted Average
15,521 97.32% Pervious Area

428 2.68% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=15,949 sf
Runoff Volume=0.024 af

Runoff Depth>0.79"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

0.51 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 32HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 11.22 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.540 af,  Depth> 2.98"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
59,811 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 2,308 98 Walks, HSG B
4,739 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,972 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

94,830 92 Weighted Average
14,711 15.51% Pervious Area
80,119 84.49% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=94,830 sf
Runoff Volume=0.540 af

Runoff Depth>2.98"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=92

11.22 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 33HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 10.97 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.517 af,  Depth> 2.78"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
49,779 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 7,841 98 Walks, HSG B
12,306 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,180 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

97,106 90 Weighted Average
21,486 22.13% Pervious Area
75,620 77.87% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=97,106 sf
Runoff Volume=0.517 af

Runoff Depth>2.78"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=90

10.97 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 34HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff = 0.08 cfs @ 12.15 hrs,  Volume= 0.004 af,  Depth> 0.74"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Area (sf) CN Description
2,701 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
2,701 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.085

0.08

0.075

0.07

0.065

0.06

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

0

MSE 24-hr 3
10-yr Rainfall=3.96"

Runoff Area=2,701 sf
Runoff Volume=0.004 af

Runoff Depth>0.74"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=61

0.08 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 35HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 22.01% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 1.19"    for  10-yr event
Inflow = 6.88 cfs @ 12.28 hrs,  Volume= 0.479 af
Primary = 6.88 cfs @ 12.28 hrs,  Volume= 0.479 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
6.88 cfs

6.88 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 36HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: UG

Inflow Area = 4.406 ac, 81.14% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 2.88"    for  10-yr event
Inflow = 22.19 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 1.057 af
Outflow = 1.80 cfs @ 12.86 hrs,  Volume= 1.004 af,  Atten= 92%,  Lag= 43.9 min
Primary = 1.80 cfs @ 12.86 hrs,  Volume= 1.004 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev= 876.86' @ 12.86 hrs   Surf.Area= 0.201 ac   Storage= 0.578 af

Plug-Flow detention time= 156.5 min calculated for 1.001 af (95% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 138.4 min ( 900.4 - 762.0 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 873.00' 1.623 af 120.0"  Round Pipe Storage

L= 900.0'

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Primary 873.00' 24.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 10.0'   CMP, projecting, no headwall,  Ke= 0.900   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 873.00' / 872.80'   S= 0.0200 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.025  Corrugated metal,  Flow Area= 3.14 sf   

#2 Device 1 873.00' 6.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   
#3 Device 1 877.20' 6.0' long Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir   2 End Contraction(s)   

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.80 cfs @ 12.86 hrs  HW=876.86'   (Free Discharge)
1=Culvert  (Passes 1.80 cfs of 20.20 cfs potential flow)

2=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 1.80 cfs @ 9.15 fps)
3=Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 37HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: UG

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

Inflow Area=4.406 ac
Peak Elev=876.86'

Storage=0.578 af

22.19 cfs

1.80 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  10-yr Rainfall=3.96"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 38HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 74.16% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 2.56"    for  10-yr event
Inflow = 2.12 cfs @ 12.17 hrs,  Volume= 1.032 af
Primary = 2.12 cfs @ 12.17 hrs,  Volume= 1.032 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
2.12 cfs

2.12 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 39HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=18,383 sf   2.52% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.10"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=1.67 cfs  0.074 af

Runoff Area=192,205 sf   23.88% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.81"Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - 
   Flow Length=362'   Tc=17.3 min   CN=70   Runoff=15.62 cfs  1.032 af

Runoff Area=15,949 sf   2.68% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.10"Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=62   Runoff=1.45 cfs  0.064 af

Runoff Area=94,830 sf   84.49% Impervious   Runoff Depth>5.08"Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=92   Runoff=18.47 cfs  0.922 af

Runoff Area=97,106 sf   77.87% Impervious   Runoff Depth>4.86"Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=90   Runoff=18.45 cfs  0.903 af

Runoff Area=2,701 sf   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth>2.02"Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - 
   Tc=6.0 min   CN=61   Runoff=0.23 cfs  0.010 af

   Inflow=16.32 cfs  1.106 afPond 1P: Total Existing Flow
   Primary=16.32 cfs  1.106 af

Peak Elev=877.98'  Storage=0.807 af   Inflow=36.92 cfs  1.825 afPond 2P: UG
   Outflow=15.15 cfs  1.685 af

   Inflow=15.87 cfs  1.760 afPond 4P: Total Proposed Flow
   Primary=15.87 cfs  1.760 af

Total Runoff Area = 9.669 ac   Runoff Volume = 3.005 af   Average Runoff Depth = 3.73"
51.91% Pervious = 5.020 ac     48.09% Impervious = 4.649 ac



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 40HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff = 1.67 cfs @ 12.14 hrs,  Volume= 0.074 af,  Depth> 2.10"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
17,920 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

* 428 98 Walks, HSG B
35 98 Paved parking, HSG B

18,383 62 Weighted Average
17,920 97.48% Pervious Area

463 2.52% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Runoff Area=18,383 sf
Runoff Volume=0.074 af

Runoff Depth>2.10"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

1.67 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 41HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff = 15.62 cfs @ 12.27 hrs,  Volume= 1.032 af,  Depth> 2.81"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
30,908 98 Paved parking, HSG B
10,968 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 4,017 98 Walks, HSG B
146,312 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
192,205 70 Weighted Average
146,312 76.12% Pervious Area
45,893 23.88% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
11.8 130 0.0250 0.18 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.79"
5.5 232 0.0100 0.70 Shallow Concentrated Flow, 

Short Grass Pasture   Kv= 7.0 fps
17.3 362 Total

Subcatchment 2S: Existing Site - Northeast

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Runoff Area=192,205 sf
Runoff Volume=1.032 af

Runoff Depth>2.81"
Flow Length=362'

Tc=17.3 min
CN=70

15.62 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 42HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff = 1.45 cfs @ 12.14 hrs,  Volume= 0.064 af,  Depth> 2.10"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 428 98 Walks, HSG B

15,521 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
15,949 62 Weighted Average
15,521 97.32% Pervious Area

428 2.68% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 4S: Proposed Site - West

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Runoff Area=15,949 sf
Runoff Volume=0.064 af

Runoff Depth>2.10"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=62

1.45 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 43HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 18.47 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.922 af,  Depth> 5.08"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
59,811 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 2,308 98 Walks, HSG B
4,739 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,972 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

94,830 92 Weighted Average
14,711 15.51% Pervious Area
80,119 84.49% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 5S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Runoff Area=94,830 sf
Runoff Volume=0.922 af

Runoff Depth>5.08"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=92

18.47 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 44HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff = 18.45 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 0.903 af,  Depth> 4.86"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
49,779 98 Paved parking, HSG B
18,000 98 Roofs, HSG B

* 7,841 98 Walks, HSG B
12,306 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
9,180 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B

97,106 90 Weighted Average
21,486 22.13% Pervious Area
75,620 77.87% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 6S: Proposed Site to UG

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Runoff Area=97,106 sf
Runoff Volume=0.903 af

Runoff Depth>4.86"
Tc=6.0 min

CN=90

18.45 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 45HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff = 0.23 cfs @ 12.14 hrs,  Volume= 0.010 af,  Depth> 2.02"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"

Area (sf) CN Description
2,701 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
2,701 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

6.0 Direct Entry, Minimum

Subcatchment 8S: Proposed Site - Undetained East

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

0.26
0.25
0.24
0.23
0.22
0.21
0.2

0.19
0.18
0.17
0.16
0.15
0.14
0.13
0.12
0.11
0.1

0.09
0.08
0.07
0.06
0.05
0.04
0.03
0.02
0.01

0

MSE 24-hr 3
100-yr Rainfall=6.18"
Runoff Area=2,701 sf

Runoff Volume=0.010 af
Runoff Depth>2.02"

Tc=6.0 min
CN=61

0.23 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 46HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 22.01% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 2.75"    for  100-yr event
Inflow = 16.32 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.106 af
Primary = 16.32 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.106 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 1P: Total Existing Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
16.32 cfs

16.32 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 47HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: UG

Inflow Area = 4.406 ac, 81.14% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 4.97"    for  100-yr event
Inflow = 36.92 cfs @ 12.13 hrs,  Volume= 1.825 af
Outflow = 15.15 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.685 af,  Atten= 59%,  Lag= 8.2 min
Primary = 15.15 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.685 af

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Peak Elev= 877.98' @ 12.26 hrs   Surf.Area= 0.207 ac   Storage= 0.807 af

Plug-Flow detention time= 125.0 min calculated for 1.685 af (92% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 99.4 min ( 852.0 - 752.6 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 873.00' 1.623 af 120.0"  Round Pipe Storage

L= 900.0'

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Primary 873.00' 24.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 10.0'   CMP, projecting, no headwall,  Ke= 0.900   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 873.00' / 872.80'   S= 0.0200 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.025  Corrugated metal,  Flow Area= 3.14 sf   

#2 Device 1 873.00' 6.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   
#3 Device 1 877.20' 6.0' long Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir   2 End Contraction(s)   

Primary OutFlow  Max=14.79 cfs @ 12.26 hrs  HW=877.96'   (Free Discharge)
1=Culvert  (Passes 14.79 cfs of 23.77 cfs potential flow)

2=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 2.05 cfs @ 10.45 fps)
3=Sharp-Crested Rectangular Weir  (Weir Controls 12.74 cfs @ 2.86 fps)



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 48HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: UG

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

40
38

36

34

32

30

28
26

24

22

20

18
16

14

12

10

8

6
4

2

0

Inflow Area=4.406 ac
Peak Elev=877.98'

Storage=0.807 af

36.92 cfs

15.15 cfs



MSE 24-hr 3  100-yr Rainfall=6.18"Ross Development ALL UG
  Printed  2/12/2018Prepared by Cardinal Engineering LLC

Page 49HydroCAD® 10.00-20  s/n 10123  © 2017 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

[40] Hint: Not Described (Outflow=Inflow)

Inflow Area = 4.834 ac, 74.16% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 4.37"    for  100-yr event
Inflow = 15.87 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.760 af
Primary = 15.87 cfs @ 12.26 hrs,  Volume= 1.760 af,  Atten= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Routing by Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs

Pond 4P: Total Proposed Flow

Inflow
Primary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  (

cf
s)

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=4.834 ac
15.87 cfs

15.87 cfs



 

Section 3 – WinSLAMM Report  January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 

Section 3  
 

WinSLAMM Report 



Ross Development ALL UG - InputData.txt
Data file name:  Y:\Projects\1601316_Ross Site\USE THIS\1601316_Ross Site\Eng 
Data\Hydrology\Ross Development ALL UG.mdb
WinSLAMM Version 10.3.1
Rain file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\Rain Files\WisReg - Madison WI 1981.RAN
Particulate Solids Concentration file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\v10.1 WI_AVG01.pscx
Runoff Coefficient file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_SL06 Dec06.rsvx
Residential Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Res and Other Urban 
Dec06.std
Institutional Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Commercial Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Industrial Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Other Urban Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Res and Other Urban 
Dec06.std
Freeway Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\Freeway Dec06.std
Apply Street Delivery Files to Adjust the After Event Load Street Dirt Mass Balance:
 False
Pollutant Relative Concentration file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_GEO03.ppdx
Source Area PSD and Peak to Average Flow Ratio File:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP Source 
Area PSD Files.csv
Cost Data file name:  
Seed for random number generator:  -42 
Study period starting date:  01/01/81       Study period ending date:  12/31/81
Start of Winter Season:  12/02              End of Winter Season:  03/12
Date:  02-12-2018                           Time:  14:31:44
Site information:  

LU# 1 - Commercial:  5S Proposed to UG     Total area (ac):  2.177
     1 - Roofs 1:  0.413 ac.    Flat    Connected    Source Area PSD File: 
C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     13 - Paved Parking 1:  1.373 ac.    Connected    Source Area PSD File: 
C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     31 - Sidewalks 1:  0.053 ac.    Connected    Source Area PSD File: C:\WinSLAMM 
Files\NURP.cpz
     45 - Large Landscaped Areas 1:  0.229 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     51 - Small Landscaped Areas 1:  0.109 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
              

LU# 2 - Commercial:  4S Proposed to West     Total area (ac):  0.366
     31 - Sidewalks 1:  0.010 ac.    Connected    Source Area PSD File: C:\WinSLAMM 
Files\NURP.cpz
     45 - Large Landscaped Areas 1:  0.356 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
              

Page 1



Ross Development ALL UG - InputData.txt

LU# 3 - Commercial:  6S Proposed Site to UG     Total area (ac):  2.230
     1 - Roofs 1:  0.413 ac.    Flat    Connected    Source Area PSD File: 
C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     13 - Paved Parking 1:  1.143 ac.    Connected    Source Area PSD File: 
C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     31 - Sidewalks 1:  0.180 ac.    Connected    Source Area PSD File: C:\WinSLAMM 
Files\NURP.cpz
     45 - Large Landscaped Areas 1:  0.211 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
     51 - Small Landscaped Areas 1:  0.283 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
              

LU# 4 - Commercial:  8S Proposed to East     Total area (ac):  0.062
     45 - Large Landscaped Areas 1:  0.062 ac.    Normal Silty    Source Area PSD 
File: C:\WinSLAMM Files\NURP.cpz
              

      Control Practice 1:  Wet Detention Pond CP# 1 (DS) - DS Wet Pond # 1
         Particle Size Distribution file name:  Not needed - calculated by program
         Initial stage elevation (ft):   5 
         Peak to Average Flow Ratio:   3.8 
         Maximum flow allowed into pond (cfs):  No maximum value entered
         Outlet Characteristics:
              Outlet type:  Orifice 1
                     1.  Orifice diameter (ft):   0.5 
                     2.  Number of orifices:   1 
                     3.  Invert elevation above datum (ft):   5 
              Outlet type:  Broad Crested Weir
                     1.  Weir crest length (ft):   6 
                     2.  Weir crest width (ft):   0.1 
                     3.  Height from datum to bottom of weir opening:   9.2 
         Pond stage and surface area
                   Entry       Stage     Pond Area   Natural Seepage   Other Outflow
                   Number      (ft)      (acres)              (in/hr)               
  (cfs)
                      0           0.00        0.0000            0.00                
    0.00    
                      1           0.05        0.0291            0.00                
    0.00    
                      2           0.15        0.0502            0.00                
    0.00    
                      3           0.25        0.0645            0.00                
    0.00    
                      4           0.50        0.0901            0.00                

Page 2



Ross Development ALL UG - InputData.txt
    0.00    
                      5           1.00        0.1240            0.00                
    0.00    
                      6           1.50        0.1475            0.00                
    0.00    
                      7           2.00        0.1653            0.00                
    0.00    
                      8           2.50        0.1789            0.00                
    0.00    
                      9           3.00        0.1894            0.00                
    0.00    
                      10           3.50        0.1971            0.00               
     0.00    
                      11           4.00        0.2024            0.00               
     0.00    
                      12           4.50        0.2056            0.00               
     0.00    
                      13           5.00        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      14           5.50        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      15           6.00        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      16           6.50        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      17           7.00        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      18           7.50        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      19           8.00        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    
                      20           8.50        0.2066            0.00               
     0.00    

Page 3



Ross Development ALL UG - Output Summary.txt
SLAMM for Windows Version 10.3.1
(c) Copyright Robert Pitt and John Voorhees 2012
All Rights Reserved

Data file name:  Y:\Projects\1601316_Ross Site\USE THIS\1601316_Ross Site\Eng 
Data\Hydrology\Ross Development ALL UG.mdb
Data file description:  
Rain file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\Rain Files\WisReg - Madison WI 1981.RAN
Particulate Solids Concentration file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\v10.1 WI_AVG01.pscx
Runoff Coefficient file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_SL06 Dec06.rsvx
Residential Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Res and Other Urban 
Dec06.std
Institutional Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Commercial Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Industrial Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Com Inst Indust 
Dec06.std
Other Urban Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_Res and Other Urban 
Dec06.std
Freeway Street Delivery file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\Freeway Dec06.std
Pollutant Relative Concentration file name:  C:\WinSLAMM Files\WI_GEO03.ppdx
Start of Winter Season:  12/02              End of Winter Season:  03/12
Model Run Start Date:  01/01/81    Model Run End Date:  12/31/81
Date of run:  02-12-2018    Time of run:  14:31:31
Total Area Modeled (acres):  4.835
Years in Model Run:  1.00

                                                      Runoff     Percent Particulate
Particulate     Percent
                                                      Volume      Runoff      Solids
     Solids Particulate
                                                     (cu ft)      Volume       Conc.
      Yield      Solids
                                                               Reduction      (mg/L)
      (lbs)   Reduction

Total of all Land Uses without Controls:              283532          -        106.4
       1884          - 
Outfall Total with Controls:                          284261      -0.26%       29.27
      519.4      72.43%
Annualized Total After Outfall Controls:              285042                        
      520.9            

Page 1



 

Section 4 – Project Maps  January 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 

Section 4  
 

Project Maps 



���������� ����	
	���	�����������������������

���
�������������������������
����
����
�	��
������ !"!��#$��%&��'!�#())�$��*'����#��
��'��	��#���!	��'���	��#
�� ��$

+,--.-/012.345.67089:.;5.6:<2=7>.?.
@7A1/=7>.>19:B.@1C:.D:>:E15.F=2A7>2=>5.GH-I.
@1/=/8J:B.4?KLMNOP5.@7>Q=/8J:B.R;;K433SP.

T0:E1/=7>B.;OUKSM.V/II
W��������X�YZ�[�
��
WW��������\�]�

,̂_+̀ .̂aTb_̂_̀-̀ _,+.caTdGT+be.TH̀ _f-̀ TH

���g�����	��h���i����[���	�h�����������!�	�h�Z����	�Y�h�[	����!�����j������h�k��!�l��
�!�mh���!�
\����h�[	����!�n�m��h�]�������o��	�

pqrrh�p��	��!�s�����������	��h��	!�����
�	��h�[���!���

�����i�!���t�������
�	��!�t�[�
��'����	�!�

ĉ./1u801<

v̂HRu12:J.w7=>/.w<:A=w=/1/=7>.V<:x8:>Ay.:2/=91/:2.z=/{.MN|.A7>V=J:>A:.=>/:<E102.}=>.=>A{:2~3

v8<1/=7>
-E:<1Q:.<:A8<<:>A:.=>/:<E10.}y:1<2~

3 ? L 3N ?L LN 3NN ?NN LNN 3NNN

LR9=> NKULN
���������$$$�

NK4NO
�����%���%���

NKLNU
����)����*�&�

NKL;4
���$$�����$%�

NKSMM
���%�����&�%�

NKOMN
���%�%����$�

NK;;4
���*������&�

NKM;N
���**%����$�

3K33
���������%%�

3K?3
�����$������

3NR9=> NKL3U
����&*���*%��

NKLMS
���$*�����%��

NKOUS
���%*����&�*�

NK;LL
���*%%����&�

3KN?
����*�����$�

3K3S
���)$����%��

3K?M
���&������$�

3K44
���&�����&��

3KSU
����*������

3KO;
��������%��

3LR9=> NKS?L
���$)$����&��

NKO?O
���%*����&���

NK;M;
���*&�����$�

3KN4
����&&������

3K?L
���&�&���*��

3K43
��������)*�

3KL;
�����������

3KOL
����&���$��

3KMM
�����������

?K3O
����)����*�

UNR9=> NK;OO
���*�)������

3KN?
����)�����&�

3K?S
���&*&���*��

3K4S
��������)��

3KOS
�����������

3KMM
���$%���*��

?K?U
���%�������

?K4;
���*&���$��

?K;U
���)%���&%�

UK3N
���&��$����

SNR9=> 3K33
���)*����$��

3KU3
��������**�

3KS4
����*����&�

3KMU
���$)���$*�

?KUL
����%����)�

?KS;
���&*���%%�

UKNU
����$�$��)�

UK4N
������$�**�

UKMN
���%%�%�$*�

4KUN
����$�*��*�

?R{< 3KUL
����%���*&�

3KSN
����%������

?KNU
���%)���%%�

?K4N
���)*������

?KM4
��������)��

UKU;
���$&�$�$��

UK;U
����$�%����

4KU3
���&��%�)*�

4KM;
������*�)&�

LKLN
���%*���*)�

UR{< 3K4;
��������)%�

3KOO
����&������

?K?S
����)���)��

?KSM
���������)�

UKU?
���%��$����

UK;4
���)%�%����

4KUO
����%�%��&�

4KM4
���$��*�*��

LKO?
���)����))�

SKUL
�$��$�)�)��

SR{< 3KOL
���$�����*�

?KN;
���**���%*�

?KSL
�����������

UK3L
���$&���&��

UK;M
������$�&)�

4K4M
����&�%�)��

LK3U
����%�*��$�

LK;3
�$��&������

SKOO
�$�%&�&����

OKL?
�$�&�������

3?R{< ?KN;
���*)���%$�

?K4?
���&%���&$�

UKNN
���$����**�

UKL?
���)��$����

4KUN
������%�$%�

4KML
����)�*����

LKSU
�$���������

SKUO
�$�%$�)�$��

OK4N
�%����&�&)�

;K?U
�%�%�������

?4R{< ?K43
���&����&��

?KOO
����*����$�

UK4N
����*�$����

UKMS
������$��&�

4KO;
����&�%�&)�

LK4S
�$����*�))�

SK3;
�$�*$���&��

SKML
�%����&��)�

;KNU
�%�*�������

;KMN
�*��%����&�

?RJ1y ?KOU
����*����%�

UK3S
���*�����*�

UKMN
������$�*%�

4KL4
������%�$��

LK4O
�$��)�*��%�

SK?U
�$�))����%�

OKN?
�%��$�)�))�

OK;S
�%��*������

MKN3
�*��)����)�

MKMU
�*�)%������

URJ1y UKN3
���%����%%�

UK4L
���))�$��&�

4K??
���%��%����

4KMN
�$��$�%�)��

LK;;
�$��$������

SKS;
�%����)��$�

OKL3
�%��%�&�$��

;KUM
�*���������

MKS?
�*�)�����*�

3NKS
���������&�

4RJ1y UK?L
��������)��

UKON
������$��*�

4K4;
����$�%��)�

LK3O
�$��&�*����

SK3O
�%������%��

OKNN
�%�%*�)�*��

OK;S
�*��*�&�)��

;KO;
�*�%�������

3NK3
�����������

33K3
����*��$�%�

ORJ1y UK;L
����*�$�$&�

4KU?
���*%�%����

LK34
�$����*����

LK;S
�$�&��*�)*�

SKM?
�%�*)�)��%�

OKOM
�*��*�&�$)�

;KO3
�*��&����)�

MKSM
����&������

33K3
�)��%��$���

3?K?
�)�*���%���

3NRJ1y 4KUM
����$�%��)�

4KMN
�$����%�*��

LKO;
�$�&��*����

SKLL
�%�%����*��

OKSO
�*����&��)�

;KL;
�*�&�����$�

MKL4
���$&������

3NKS
���&&������

3?KN
�)��*��%���

3UK3
�&��$��*�)�

?NRJ1y SKN3
�%��)�*�)��

SKON
�%��)���*��

OK;4
�*��$�)�&&�

;KOM
���%�������

3NK3
�)�$�����&�

33K3
�&���������

3?K?
�&�**��$���

3UK?
�������*���

34KS
����&��)�$�

3LKO
����$������

UNRJ1y OK4L
�*�$)�)�$*�

;KUN
������&�$��

MKSO
�)���������

3NK;
�&��&������

3?K?
�������$���

3UK4
�������%���

34K4
����%������

3LKL
�������)�&�

3SK;
����*������

3OK;
���������%�

4LRJ1y MKUL
�)��&����%�

3NK4
�&���������

3?KN
����%����*�

3UKU
����*��%���

3LKN
����*������

3SK3
�������)���

3OK?
����&����$�

3;KU
��$��������

3MKL
��$����$���

?NK4
��%����%�%�

SNRJ1y 33KN
�&�������$�

3?K?
����)������

34K3
����$��%�)�

3LKL
����%����%�

3OKU
��$�*��&���

3;KL
��%�$������

3MKS
��%�)������

?NKS
��*����$�*�

?3KO
��*�$��*�%�

??K4
��*����)���

������	
	���	��������������������	 �����	����	����i!������i��������������������!��	����
���	�!������	�����	���������

p� i����	��
��������	������������	 ��������!���������

���i�����������&������	������	������!��l���
�i�i	!	��������
���	
	���	���������������	 ����
�������	���������	�������������������������	������!���	!!�i��������������������

���i�������!�������������!����i�����	��%���X��	 ���������

��
i����������������m������	����
�i�i!�� ��	 � �
���	
	���	����[������	 ��������� ���i���	�����������������!����!	���[����!����

�!�������������pqrr�r�!����$���� ������� ���	��� ��	��

o��m���l


ĉ.Q<1w{=A10



���������� ����	
	���	�����������������������

���
�������������������������
����
����
�	��
������ !"!��#$��%&��'!�#())�$��*'����#��
��'��	��#���!	��'���	��#
�� ��$

+��,���-


./01232/456/71

89/7721:/742;455/6<



���������� ����	
	���	�����������������������

���
�������������������������
����
����
�	��
������ !"!��#$��%&��'!�#())�$��*'����#��
��'��	��#���!	��'���	��#
�� +�$

,-./0123-40150..-67

,-./0123-4018-9

,-./0123-401-0.6-4

:

;
<=8

>86

:

;
?@@=8

A@86

:

;
?@@=8

A@86



���������� ����	
	���	�����������������������

���
�������������������������
����
����
�	��
������ !"!��#$��%&��'!�#())�$��*'����#��
��'��	��#���!	��'���	��#
�� $�$

�
+��,���-


�
�
�

.����
��� ������/  �����
0��	��!�1����	������2� �
���	��2� 	�	�����	��

0��	��!�3�����������	���
0��	��!�3�����/������
�4�%�5����3����6	������
�	!�����
�	��7�8����&���

9����	��"��6��/�9����	��:�������
�

�	��!�	 ���

;

<
=>>?@

A>@B



Aerial View

DISCLAIMER: The information shown on these maps has been obtained from various 
sources, and are of varying age, reliability and resolution. These maps are not intended to be 
used for navigation, nor are these maps an authoritative source of information about legal land 
ownership or public access. No warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, 
applicability for a particular use, completeness, or legality of the information depicted on this 
map. For more information, see the DNR Legal Notices web page: http://dnr.wi.gov/legal/1,980

0.1

1:NAD_1983_HARN_Wisconsin_TM

Miles0.10.03
Notes

Legend

0

Municipality
State Boundaries
County Boundaries
Major Roads

Interstate Highway

State Highway

US Highway

County and Local Roads
County HWY

Local Road

Railroads
Tribal Lands
Rivers and Streams
Intermittent Streams
Lakes and Open water
Index to 
EN_Image_Basemap_Leaf_
Off



Soil Map—Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 1 of 3

47
16

06
0

47
16

09
0

47
16

12
0

47
16

15
0

47
16

18
0

47
16

21
0

47
16

24
0

47
16

27
0

47
16

30
0

47
16

06
0

47
16

09
0

47
16

12
0

47
16

15
0

47
16

18
0

47
16

21
0

47
16

24
0

47
16

27
0

47
16

30
0

383980 384010 384040 384070 384100 384130 384160

383980 384010 384040 384070 384100 384130 384160

42°  35' 25'' N
88

° 
 2

4'
 5

1'
' W

42°  35' 25'' N

88
° 
 2

4'
 4

2'
' W

42°  35' 17'' N

88
° 
 2

4'
 5

1'
' W

42°  35' 17'' N

88
° 
 2

4'
 4

2'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84
0 50 100 200 300

Feet
0 15 30 60 90

Meters
Map Scale: 1:1,270 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:15,800.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Walworth County, Wisconsin
Survey Area Data: Version 14, Oct 6, 2017

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Apr 29, 2011—Mar 
28, 2012

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Soil Map—Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 2 of 3



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

CyA Conover silt loam, 1 to 3 
percent slopes

1.2 19.8%

MpB McHenry silt loam, 2 to 6 
percent slopes

3.2 51.6%

MxC2 Miami loam, sandy loam 
substratum, 6 to 12 percent 
slopes, eroded

1.8 28.6%

Totals for Area of Interest 6.3 100.0%

Soil Map—Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 3 of 3



Walworth County, Wisconsin

CyA—Conover silt loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: g8w9
Elevation: 660 to 980 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 30 to 38 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 43 to 48 degrees F
Frost-free period: 150 to 190 days
Farmland classification: Prime farmland if drained

Map Unit Composition
Conover and similar soils: 100 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of 

the mapunit.

Description of Conover

Setting
Landform: Till plains
Parent material: Thin loess over loamy till

Typical profile
Ap,E - 0 to 11 inches: silt loam
Bt - 11 to 23 inches: clay loam
2Bt,2BC,2C - 23 to 60 inches: loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 1 to 3 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Somewhat poorly drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): 

Moderately low to moderately high (0.14 to 0.57 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 0 to 24 inches
Frequency of flooding: Occasional
Frequency of ponding: Occasional
Calcium carbonate, maximum in profile: 30 percent
Available water storage in profile: Moderate (about 8.9 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 2w
Hydrologic Soil Group: C/D
Other vegetative classification: Mod AWC, high water table 

(G095BY004WI)
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Pella
Percent of map unit: 
Landform: Depressions

Map Unit Description: Conover silt loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes---Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 1 of 2



Hydric soil rating: Yes

Data Source Information

Soil Survey Area: Walworth County, Wisconsin
Survey Area Data: Version 14, Oct 6, 2017

Map Unit Description: Conover silt loam, 1 to 3 percent slopes---Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 2 of 2



Walworth County, Wisconsin

MpB—McHenry silt loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: 2tjyr
Elevation: 820 to 1,490 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 31 to 37 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 45 to 48 degrees F
Frost-free period: 126 to 181 days
Farmland classification: All areas are prime farmland

Map Unit Composition
Mchenry and similar soils: 90 percent
Minor components: 10 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of 

the mapunit.

Description of Mchenry

Setting
Landform: Moraines
Landform position (two-dimensional): Backslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Convex
Parent material: Loess over loamy till

Typical profile
Ap - 0 to 5 inches: silt loam
E - 5 to 10 inches: silt loam
Bt1 - 10 to 22 inches: silty clay loam
2Bt2 - 22 to 32 inches: loam
2Bt3 - 32 to 37 inches: fine sandy loam
2C - 37 to 79 inches: gravelly sandy loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 2 to 6 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: Low
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): 

Moderately high to high (0.60 to 2.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Calcium carbonate, maximum in profile: 30 percent
Salinity, maximum in profile: Nonsaline to very slightly saline (0.0 

to 2.0 mmhos/cm)
Available water storage in profile: High (about 9.2 inches)

Map Unit Description: McHenry silt loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes---Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 1 of 2



Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 2e
Hydrologic Soil Group: B
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Dodge, eroded
Percent of map unit: 5 percent
Landform: Moraines
Landform position (two-dimensional): Backslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Convex
Hydric soil rating: No

Elburn
Percent of map unit: 3 percent
Landform: Drainageways
Landform position (two-dimensional): Backslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Convex
Hydric soil rating: No

Fox
Percent of map unit: 2 percent
Landform: Moraines
Landform position (two-dimensional): Backslope
Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Convex
Hydric soil rating: No

Data Source Information

Soil Survey Area: Walworth County, Wisconsin
Survey Area Data: Version 14, Oct 6, 2017

Map Unit Description: McHenry silt loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes---Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 2 of 2



Walworth County, Wisconsin

MxC2—Miami loam, sandy loam substratum, 6 to 12 percent 
slopes, eroded

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: g8xp
Elevation: 660 to 980 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 30 to 38 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 43 to 48 degrees F
Frost-free period: 150 to 190 days
Farmland classification: Farmland of statewide importance

Map Unit Composition
Miami and similar soils: 100 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of 

the mapunit.

Description of Miami

Setting
Landform: Till plains
Parent material: Loamy lodgment till

Typical profile
Ap - 0 to 10 inches: loam
Bt - 10 to 36 inches: clay loam
C - 36 to 60 inches: gravelly sandy loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 6 to 12 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Natural drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): 

Moderately high to high (0.57 to 1.98 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 60 to 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Calcium carbonate, maximum in profile: 50 percent
Available water storage in profile: Moderate (about 8.5 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 3e
Hydrologic Soil Group: B
Other vegetative classification: Mod AWC, adequately drained 

(G095BY005WI)

Map Unit Description: Miami loam, sandy loam substratum, 6 to 12 percent slopes, eroded---
Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 1 of 2



Hydric soil rating: No

Data Source Information

Soil Survey Area: Walworth County, Wisconsin
Survey Area Data: Version 14, Oct 6, 2017

Map Unit Description: Miami loam, sandy loam substratum, 6 to 12 percent slopes, eroded---
Walworth County, Wisconsin

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

2/12/2018
Page 2 of 2



Wetland Inventory

DISCLAIMER: The information shown on these maps has been obtained from various 
sources, and are of varying age, reliability and resolution. These maps are not intended to be 
used for navigation, nor are these maps an authoritative source of information about legal land 
ownership or public access. No warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, 
applicability for a particular use, completeness, or legality of the information depicted on this 
map. For more information, see the DNR Legal Notices web page: http://dnr.wi.gov/legal/1,980

0.1

1:NAD_1983_HARN_Wisconsin_TM

Miles0.10.03
Notes

Legend

0

Wetland Class Points
Dammed pond

Excavated pond

Filled excavated pond

Filled/drained wetland

Wetland too small to delineate

Filled Points
Wetland Class Areas

Wetland

Upland

Filled Areas
Municipality
State Boundaries
County Boundaries
Major Roads

Interstate Highway

State Highway

US Highway

County and Local Roads
County HWY

Local Road

Railroads
Tribal Lands
Rivers and Streams
Intermittent Streams
Lakes and Open water



Wetland Indicators

DISCLAIMER: The information shown on these maps has been obtained from various 
sources, and are of varying age, reliability and resolution. These maps are not intended to be 
used for navigation, nor are these maps an authoritative source of information about legal land 
ownership or public access. No warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, 
applicability for a particular use, completeness, or legality of the information depicted on this 
map. For more information, see the DNR Legal Notices web page: http://dnr.wi.gov/legal/1,980

0.1

1:NAD_1983_HARN_Wisconsin_TM

Miles0.10.03
Notes

Legend

0

NRCS Wetspots
Wetland Indicators
Municipality
State Boundaries
County Boundaries
Major Roads

Interstate Highway

State Highway

US Highway

County and Local Roads
County HWY

Local Road

Railroads
Tribal Lands
Rivers and Streams
Intermittent Streams
Lakes and Open water



 

Section 5 – Storm Sewer Calculations  March 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 

Section 5 
 

Storm Sewer Calculations 































 

Section 6 – Maintenance Agreement  March 2018 

262-757-8776 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
WWW.CARDINALENGINEERINGWI.COM 

 

 

 
 

Section 6 
 

Maintenance Agreement 



 1 of 4 

 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), entered into this _____ 
day of _____________, by and between Core Commercial, Inc. 
(the "Owner"), and CITY OF LAKE GENEVA a Wisconsin 
Municipal Corporation (the "City"), collectively, the “Parties”. 
 
RECITALS 
A.  The Owner is developing certain real property located in the 
City of Lake Geneva legally described in paragraph 2 herein (the 
“Property”). 
 
B.  The WI DNR requires owner to record this Declaration 
regarding maintenance of stormwater management measures to 
be located on the Property.  Owner agrees to maintain the 
Stormwater Management Measures and to grant to the City the 
rights set forth below.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants 
herein set forth and other good and valuable consideration the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
Parties hereby agree as follows. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recording area (Walworth Co. Register of Deeds) 

 
      Send To: City Clerk 
                             City of Lake Geneva 
  626 Geneva Street 
  Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 
Lot 2 & 3 of CSM _______ 

Parcel Identification Number 

 
1. Sole Agreement.  This agreement is the sole applicable agreement pertaining to storm water management for the 
described Property.    
 
2. Site Legal Description.  The Property subject to this agreement is legally described as follows:  Lot 2 & Lot 3 of 
CSM_____being a part of the Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE ¼ of the NW ¼, the SW ¼ 
of the NE ¼, the NW1/4 of the SE ¼, the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ and the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 31 Township 2N 
Range 18E, the “Site.” 
 
3. Responsible Party. 
a. CONSTRUCTION PHASE MAINTENANCE.   The Owner is responsible for satisfying the provisions of this 
agreement throughout the Property for the duration of the construction and warranty period.    
 
b. POST-CONSTRUCTION PERPETUAL MAINTENANCE.  Upon completion of all construction phases and 
expiration of the warranty period, the Owner shall assume responsibility for maintaining the storm water 
management system in perpetuity. 
 
4. Permanent Components Of The Storm Water Management System. 
a. The storm water management system for the property consists of the following management practices or 
components: 
+ Storm Sewer Pipes and Structures + Underground Storm water detention facility 
+ Detention pond outfall control structures 
  
b. The drainage areas served by the storm water management practices components on this site Include Structures 
and Infrastructure on Lots 1 & 2. 
 



 2 of 4 

 
5. Inspection And Maintenance Schedule. 
a. All components of the storm water management system shall be inspected by the Responsible Party: 
   - at least semiannually in early Spring and early Autumn; and 
   - within 72 hours following any major storm or flood event of sufficient intensity or duration to pose significant 
risk of damage to the system. 
 
b. Components to be more frequently inspected by the Responsible Party are listed in the attached table for 
Maintenance Tasks and Scheduled During Construction, if any.  
 
c. The Responsible Party shall make the appropriate repairs whenever the performance of a storm water management 
practice or component is compromised due to sediment or debris. 
 
6. Regulations. 
a. Mowing in areas of underground storage facility, and drainage ways shall be minimized to the greatest extent 
possible in order to maximize filtration of runoff.  If occasional mowing is necessary, the mowing height shall be no 
shorter than six inches. 
 
b. Applications of fertilizers, herbicides, pesticide or other chemical applications are prohibited in buffer areas, over 
detention facility and along drainage ways, unless specifically authorized by the City Engineer on an individual 
event basis, and provided that the application is performed by professional personnel certified for that purpose. 
 
c. Snow shall not be dumped directly onto conditioned planting beds designed for infiltration or for bioretention, or 
on sites designated as buffer areas. 
 
7. Maintenance Of Inspection Records and Reporting. 
 
The Owner shall maintain records of the results of all site inspections and any enforcement actions, correction 
actions or other documented contacts and any follow-up actions taken by or at the direction of Owner or Responsible 
Party for seven years after such action.   
 
8. Default by Responsible Party  
 
If Owner fails to maintain the Stormwater Management Measures as required in Section 5, the City shall have  the 
right, if deemed necessary, after providing Owner with written notice of the maintenance issue (“Maintenance 
Notice”) and thirty (30) days to comply with the City’s Maintenance Notice, to enter the Property in order to conduct 
the maintenance specified in the Maintenance Notice. No such Maintenance Notice need be given by the City to 
Owner for such maintenance or repair work, however, in the event emergency maintenance or repairs are needed. 
The City will conduct such maintenance work in accordance with all applicable laws, codes, regulations, and similar 
requirements and will not unreasonably interfere with Owner’s use of Property. All costs and expenses incurred by 
the City in conducting such maintenance may be charged to the Owner of the Property by placing the amount on the 
tax roll for the Property as a special charge under the provisions of Section 66.0627, Wisconsin Statutes (or similar 
statutes or City of Burlington ordinances). Owner hereby waives any and all rights to any condition precedents, 
procedures, notices, and/or public hearings otherwise normally required under the laws of the State of Wisconsin for 
the placement of the said special charge on the tax roll of the Property. 
 
9. Severability.  All provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any one or more provision is deemed 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
10. Binding Agreement.  All provisions of this Agreement, including the benefits and burdens hereunder, run with 
the property and are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 
 
11. Amendment; Termination. This Agreement may be amended or terminated by a document signed by the Owner 
and the City. 
 
12. Requirement to Record.  This Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto shall be recorded at the 
Walworth County Register of Deeds. 
 



 3 of 4 

13. Governing Law.  This Agreement at all times shall be enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Wisconsin. 
 
14. Assignment.  A Responsible Party’s obligations may not be assigned to another party without the prior written 
consent of City except that such consent is not required when a Responsible Party as property owner transfers fee 
simple title to a buyer who will assume the maintenance responsibilities of the owner / responsible party. 
 
15. Notices.  All notices to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the person 
serving the notice and shall be sent registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or hand 
delivered to the addresses of the parties listed below: 
 
FOR THE CITY:    FOR THE OWNER: 
 

City of Lake Geneva   Core Commercial, Inc. 
 626 Geneva Street   4004 E Appleseed Drive 
 Lake Geneva, WI   5314   Appleton, WI 54913 
 262-248-3673    920-882-0759 
       
 



 4 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
 FOR THE OWNER: 
 
 
 By:  
 
 Name:  
 
 Title:  
 
 Date:  
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 
 
 Personally came before me this          day of                             , 20__, the above-named 
____________________________, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing and acknowledged the 
same. 
 
   
 Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
 My Commission:   
 
 
 
 CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
 
 
By: _______________________________________  By: ________________________________________ 
 
Name:                                      Name:                                   
        
                                
Title:   City Manager                                                     Title:    City Clerk                                                        . 
 
Date: ______________________________________  Date: ______________________________________ 
 

 



Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 
Store #910-02 

 
AMENDMENT 

ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Access Easement Agreement is made and 
entered into as of the _____ day of ___________________, 2017 (the “Effective Date”) by and 
among LAKE GENEVA SHOPPING CENTER L.L.C., a Missouri limited liability company, 
(a/k/a Geneva Shopping Center L.L.C.) the address of which is c/o Raul Walters Properties, 2101 
West Broadway, Suite 200, Columbia, Missouri 65203 (“GSC”), WAL-MART REAL 
ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST, a Delaware statutory trust, the address of which is 702 S.W. 
Eighth Street, Bentonville, Arkansas 72716-0550, Attention:  Realty Management – Wisconsin 
(“Wal-Mart”) and GENEVA BUSINESS CENTER, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability 
company, the address of which is 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147 
(“GBC”) (referred to collectively as the “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, GSC is the owner of a certain tract of land situated in the City of Lake 
Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, the legal description of which is attached as Exhibit A 
(the “GSC Property”);   
 
 WHEREAS, Wal-Mart leases the GSC Property from GSC pursuant to that certain 
Ground Lease dated November 12, 2002; 
 
 WHEREAS, GBC is the owner of a certain tract of land adjacent to the GSC Property 
situated in the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, the legal description of 
which is attached as Exhibit B (the “GBC Property”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the GSC Property and the GBC Property are depicted on the Exhibit C (the 
“Site Plan”) as set forth in the original Access Easement Agreement described below; 
 
 WHEREAS, GSC, Wal-Mart and GBC entered into an Access Easement Agreement 
(“Original Access Easement”), dated December 10, 2002 and recorded as Document Number 
0537148 in the Walworth County Register of Deeds Office for the purposes of granting an 
easement for ingress and egress over the GSC Property to benefit the GBC Property; 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to paragraph 13 (g) of the Original Access Easement, the Original 
Access Easement shall only be amended by the mutual written agreement of the Parties; 
 
 WHEREAS, GBC requires that the location of the Original Access Easement area be 
moved in order to provide better traffic flow between the GSC Property and GBC Property, and 
GSC and Wal-Mart have agreed to modify the easement area and amend the Original Access 
Easement in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Amendment; 



 
 WHEREAS, GBC desires to provide additional cross-access for parking as identified on 
Exhibit D-1 as consideration for removal of parking stalls on the GSC Property as necessitated 
by the relocation of the Original Access Easment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Original Access Easement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, GSC, Wal-Mart and 
GBC hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Incorporation.  The Recitals above  are hereby incorporated into the terms of this 
Amendment by reference as if fully stated herein. Any capitalized terms not specifically defined 
herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Original Access Easement. 
 
 2. Amendment.  Paragraph 2 of the Original Access Easement is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
GSC and Wal-Mart hereby grant and convey for the benefit of GBC, its successors and assigns, 
and the GBC Property a non-exclusive perpetual easement and right to the use of the easement 
area located on the GSC Property identified on Exhibit D-1 and more particularly described on 
Exhibit E-1 attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Cross-Easement Area”).  GBC 
hereby grants and conveys for the benefit of GSC, Wal-Mart and the GSC Property a non-
exclusive perpetual easement and right to the use of the Cross Easement Area located on the 
GBC Property identified on Exhibit D-1 and more particularly described on Exhibit E-1.  The 
perpetual easements are for the purpose of ingress, egress, parking and passage and delivery by 
vehicles and pedestrians.   The perpetual easements grated in this Agreement, shall be for the 
benefit of, and restricted solely to, GBC, GSC, Wal-Mart, and each of their customers, 
employees, agents, business invitees as the same may use the GBC Property or the GSC 
Property.  GSC and Wal-Mart may grant the benefit of such easement to other parties, and to the 
customers, employees, agents and business invitees thereof, in other documents but such grant is 
not intended nor shall it be construed as creating any rights in or for the benefit of the general 
public. 
 
 3. Temporary Construction Easement.  In connection with the additional 
construction work to be performed by GBC, its successors and assigns, in the Cross Easement 
Area required as a result of the relocation of the easement area, GSC and Wal-Mart hereby grant 
to GBC, its successors and assigns, temporary construction easements for incidental 
encroachments upon the GSC Property which may occur as a result of construction consistent 
with the provisions of Paragraph 3 as set forth in the original Access Easement Agreement, so 
long as such encroachments are kept within the reasonable requirements of construction work 
expeditiously pursued and customary insurance is maintained protecting GSC and Wal-Mart 
from the risks involved. GBC .  GBC shall not interfere with or disturb Wal-Mart’s business on 
the GSC Property and shall promptly restore the GSC Property affected by such work to the 
condition existing prior to entry by GBC upon the GSC Property with such modifications as 
agreed to by the Parties hereto and as identified on Exhibit D-1 and described on Exhibit E-1.  



 
 4. Construction, Maintenance and Repair.  GBC, its successors and assigns, shall 
be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for the construction and/or modification of the paved 
portion of the Cross Easement Area as identified on Exhibit D-1.  GBC, its successors and 
assigns, shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits, approvals and for all costs 
associated with the construction and/or modification of the Cross Easement Area as identified on 
the Exhibit D-1.  Prior to any such construction by GBC, its successors and assigns, GBC shall 
submit its plans and specifications (the “Plans”) to Wal-Mart for Wal-Mart’s review and 
approval.   Wal-Mart shall provide GBC with written approval or disapproval of the Plans 
within ninety (90) days after Wal-Mart’s receipt of the same from GBC.  GBC shall not 
commence any such work in the Cross Easement Area until Wal-Mart has provided its written 
approval to the Plans.  GBC shall send GSC and Wal-Mart notice upon completion of 
construction related to the Cross Easement Area.  After completion of construction, Wal-Mart 
and GSC shall maintain, repair and replace the Cross Easement Area solely on its property and 
GBC shall maintain, repair and replace all other areas in the Cross Easement Area. 
 
 5. Miscellaneous. 

(a) If any term, covenant or condition of this Amendment, or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Amendment shall not be affected, and each and every remaining term, covenant or condition 
of this Amendment shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

(b) All terms and conditions of the Original Access Easement not amended pursuant to 
this Amendment are hereby ratified and confirmed and shall remain in full force and effect. In 
the event of any inconsistency between this Amendment and the Original Access Easement, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 

(c) This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

(d) This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same Amendment. 
Facsimile and email signatures shall be deemed valid on all documents related to this 
Amendment. 

(e) The Parties represent and warrant that each has the authority and right to enter into 
this Amendment without the consent, approval or joinder of any party, and, if such consent is 
required, such consent has been obtained. Each person executing this Amendment is fully 
authorized and empowered to do so. 

 
  



 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be 
executed as of the day and year first above written. 
 
      GSC: 
 
      LAKE GENEVA SHOPPING CENTER, L.L.C. 
      a Missouri limited liability company 
 
 
 
      By:______________________________________ 
      Print Name:_______________________________ 

One of its Managers authorized to sign for the 
company 
Dated:____________________________________ 
 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 
 
 This document was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________________, 
2017 by __________________________, the __________________ of LAKE GENEVA 
SHOPPING CENTER L.L.C., a Missouri limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Printed:__________________________________ 
      Notary Public, ______________ County, Missouri 
      My Commission Expires:_____________________ 
  



     WAL-MART: 
 
     WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST 
     a Delaware statutory trust 
 
 
 
     By:____________________________________________ 
     Printed_________________________________________ 
     Its:____________________________________________ 
     Dated:__________________________________________’ 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARKANSAS ) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF BENTON ) 
 
 
 This document was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________________, 
2017 by __________________________, the __________________ of WAL-MART REAL 
ESTATE BUSINESS TRUST, a Delaware statutory trust, on behalf of the Trust. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Printed:__________________________________ 
      Notary Public, ______________ County, Arkansas 
      My Commission Expires:_____________________ 
  



     GBC: 
 
     GENEVA BUSINESS CENTRE, LLC 
     a Wisconsin limited liability company 
 
 
 
     By:____________________________________________ 
     Printed_________________________________________ 
     Its:____________________________________________ 
     Dated:__________________________________________’ 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF WALWORTH ) 
 
 
 This document was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________________, 
2017 by __________________________, the __________________ of GENEVA BUSINESS 
CENTRE, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Printed:__________________________________ 
      Notary Public, ______________ County, Wisconsin 
      My Commission Expires:_____________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This Instrument Drafted By: 
Atty. Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of GSC Property 
 
 

A tract of land being Lots 2 thru 10 of Lake Geneva Business Park as per Plat recorded on 
February 28, 1992 in Cabinet B of Plats, Slide 117, Document No. 227992, part of Geneva 
Business Centre Condominium (formally Lot 1 of said Lake Geneva Business Park) as per Plat 
recorded on September 20, 1995, in Volume 636, Page 9119, Document No. 313696, all of Lots 
2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 2973 as recorded in Volume 15, Page 293, all in the Office 
the Register of Dees for Walworth County, Wisconsin, being in the North Half of Section 31, 
Township 2 North, Range 18 East of the 4th P.M., City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, 
Wisconsin, to wit: 
 
Beginning at a found spike in the southwest corner of said Lot 2, also being the northwest corner 
Geneva Business Centre Condominium (formally Lot 1 of said Lake Geneva Business Park), 
also being in the east right-of way line of Edwards Boulevard (State Route 120); thence along the 
west line of said Lot 2 and said east right-of-way line N01°-05'-02"W 659.96 ft. to a found spike 
at the northwest corner of said Lot 2; thence leaving said east right-of-way line along the north 
line of said Lot 2 N88°-56'-20"E 218.03 ft. to a found spike, thence N01°-06'-25"W 245.19 ft. to 
a set iron rod, in the south right-of-way line of State Route 50; thence along said north line and 
the north line of Lot 3 of said Certified Survey Map and said south right-of-way line N87°-34'-
51"E 483.18 ft. to a set rod at the northeast corner of said Lot 3 also being at the intersection of 
said south right-of-way line and the west right-of-way line of State Highway No. 12; thence 
leaving said south right-of-way line along the east line of said Lot 3 and the west right-of-way 
line S45°-53'-17"E 425.47 ft. to a set iron rod, thence S82°-31'-45"E 72.18 ft. to a round iron rod, 
thence leaving said south right-of-way line along the east line of said Lot 3 S01°-00'-57"E 
549.74 ft. to a set iron rod at the southeast corner of said Lot 3 also being the north line of said 
Lot 10; thence along said south line S89°-54'-22"W 42.99 ft. to a set iron rod; thence leaving 
said south line S00°-57'-08"E 96.01 ft. to a set iron rod; thence S89°-54'-22"W 390.60 ft. to a set 
iron rod; thence S47°-37'-47"W 99.04 ft. to a set iron rod in the east line of said Lot 2; thence S 
88°-54'-19"W 563.35 ft. to a set iron rod in the west line of said Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium also being in said east right-of-way line of State Route 120 (Edwards Boulevard); 
thence along said line N01°-05'-02"W 100.00 ft. to the point of beginning, containing 21.35 
acres.   A Subdivision Plat or Certified Survey Map might be required by the City of Lake 
Geneva before the property can be transferred. 
  



EXHIBIT B 
 

Legal Description of GBC Property 
 
 

PARCEL I:  Geneva Business Centre Condominium, a condominium declared and existing 
under and by virtue of the Condominium Ownership Act of the State of Wisconsin and recorded 
by a Declaration as such condominium in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Walworth 
County, Wisconsin on September 20, 1995 in Volume 636 of Records, page 9119 to 9128, 
inclusive, as Document No. 313696, and First Amendment to Declaration for Geneva Business 
Centre Condominium, dated March 4, 1996 and recorded on March 4, 1996 in Volume 639 of 
Records, Page 4846, as Document No. 324084, said condominium being located in the City of 
Lake Geneva, County of Walworth, State of Wisconsin on the real estate described in said 
Declaration and incorporated herein by this reference thereto, excepting the North 100 feet 
thereof.  (End of legal description). 
 
PARCEL II:  Lot 2 of the Lake Geneva Business Park, a Subdivision located in the SE 1/4 of the 
NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 and the 
SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, including a replat of Lot 2 of Certified Survey 
Map No. 2010, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, excepting the North 100 
feet thereof.  (End of legal description). 
  



EXHIBIT C 
 

The Site Plan 
 
 

Exhibit C remains the same as recorded in the original Access Easement Agreement dated 
December 10, 2002 and recorded as Document Number 0537148 in the Walworth County 
Register of Deeds Office. 
  



EXHIBIT D-1 
 

Cross Easement Area Depiction 
  



EXHIBIT E-1 
 

Legal Description – Cross Easement Area 



1 
 

 
 

RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Reciprocal Easement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into as of the ______ day of 
___________________, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and 
between Geneva Business Centre, LLC, a Wisconsin limited 
liability company (“GBC”) and Core Commercial, Inc., a 
Wisconsin corporation (“Core”). 

RECITALS 

A. GBC is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 
referred to as “Parcel A”). 

B. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit B, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as “Parcel B”). 

C. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in the City of Lake Geneva, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as “Parcel C”). 

D. GBC and Core propose to grant reciprocal easements to share the right of ingress, egress 
and parking over and across all paved portions of Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C as set 
forth on the site plan attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit D (“Site 
Plan”). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, GBC and Core 
hereby agree as follows: 

 1. Incorporation.  Recitals A through D above are hereby incorporated into the 
terms of this Agreement by reference as if fully restated herein. 

 2. Definitions.   For purposes herof: 
 
(a) The term "Owner" shall mean GBC and Core, in respect to their individual 

Parcels, and any and all successors or assigns of such persons as the owner or owners of 
fee simple title to all or any portion of the real property covered hereby, whether by sale, 

 

Return to:   
 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 

 
Tax Parcel No.:  __________________________ 



2 
 

assignment, inheritance, operation of law, trustee’s sale, foreclosure, or otherwise, but not 
including the holder of any lien or encumbrance on such real property. 

 
(b) The term "Parcel" or "Parcels" shall mean each separately identified parcel 

of real property now constituting a part of the real property subjected to this Agreement as 
described on Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C, that is, Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C, 
and any future subdivisions thereof. 

 
(c) The term "Permittees" shall mean the tenant(s) or occupant(s) of a Parcel, 

and the respective employees, agents, contractors, customers, invitees and licensees of (i) 
the Owner of such Parcel, and/or (ii) such tenant(s) or occupant(s). 

 
(d) The term "Site Plan" shall mean that site plan of the Parcels attached hereto 

as Exhibit D and by reference made a part hereof. The Site Plan shown on the Site Plan has 
been approved by GBC and Core.   
 

(e) The term "Paved Areas” shall mean any area on Parcel A, Parcel B or Parcel 
C, identified as paved areas, whether presently existing or to be constructed upon any 
Parcel, as indicated on the Site Plan, including without limitation all parking areas and 
driveways. 

2. Temporary Construction Easement and Construction of Paved Areas.   In 
connection with any construction of proposed Paved Areas as identified on the Site Plan, to be 
performed by and at the sole cost of Core on Parcel A, GBC hereby grants to Core temporary 
easements for incidental encroachments upon Parcel A which may occur as a result of such 
construction, so long as such encroachments are kept within the reasonable requirements of 
construction work expeditiously pursued and so long as customary insurance is maintained 
protecting GBC from the risks involved.   In connection with any work performed by Core 
related to the foregoing, Core shall not interfere with or disturb GBC’s business on Parcel A and 
shall promptly restore the GBC Property affected by such work to the condition existing prior to 
entry by GBC upon Parcel A.  Core shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits, 
approvals and for all costs to Core to construct and connect the Paved Areas and any other 
improvements on Parcel A as identified on the Site Plan.   

3. Grants of Easement.  GBC and Core hereby grant, establish, covenant and agree 
that the Parcels, all Owners and Permittees of the Parcels and their respective employees, agents, 
contractors, customers, invitees and licensees, shall be benefited and burdened by the following 
nonexclusive, perpetual and reciprocal easement which are hereby imposed upon the Parcels and 
all present and future owners, tenants or occupants of the Parcels: 

 (a) An easement for (i) reasonable access, ingress and egress over all Paved 
Areas constituting a part of any of the Parcels as indicated on the Site Plan; and (ii) 
parking of pedestrian vehicles on and over areas designated as parking as presently or 
hereafter constructed and constituting a part of any of the Parcels, so as to provide for the 
passage of motor vehicles and pedestrians between all portions of such Parcels intended 
for such purposes, and to and from all abutting streets or rights of way furnishing access 
to such Parcels.   Notwithstanding that all parking shall be used on a nonexclusive basis 



3 
 

in common with all Owners and Permittees of the Parcels, each individual Parcel shall be 
developed and utilized such that any building located on each Parcel shall comply with 
the number of parking stalls required by local codes. 
 

 4. Maintenance and Repair. Throughout the term of this Agreement each Parcel 
Owner shall be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for the maintenance, repair and 
replacement of the Paved Areas and any other improvements on each owner’s respective Parcel.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parcel B Owner shall be solely responsible for the clearing of 
snow and removal of debris from all Paved Areas identified on the Site Plan.   Each Parcel Owner 
shall proportionately share in the cost of the clearing of snow and removal of debris from the paved 
areas, which share shall be determined by taking the total acreage of said Owner’s Parcel, as set 
forth on the Site Plan, divided by the total acreage of all Parcels.   The Parcel B Owner, at least 
quarterly basis but more often as necessary in Parcel B Owner’s discretion, shall provide the 
Owners of Parcel A and Parcel C with a statement of shared expenses, including an administrative 
fee equal to 15% of the shared expenses, which statement identifies the costs incurred by the 
Owner of Parcel B and identifies the proportionate share of each Parcel Owner.   The Owners of 
Parcel A and Parcel C agree to pay their proportionate share directly to the Owner of Parcel B 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of said statement.   
 
 5. Indemnification and Insurance. 
 

 (a) Indemnification.  All Owners shall indemnify and save harmless the other 
Owners from all liability, damage, expense, causes of action, suits, claims or judgments 
arising from personal injury, death, or property damage occurring or arising from the use 
of the Paved Areas within the Owner’s Parcel, except if caused by the act or negligence of 
the indemnified Owner its Permitees. 

(b) Insurance.  Each Owner shall procure and maintain in full force and effect 
throughout the term of this Agreement general public liability insurance against claims for 
personal injury, death or property damage occurring upon in or about the Paved Areas on 
said Owner’s Parcel, such insurance to afford protection to the limit of not less than Three 
Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) for injury or death of a single person, and to the limit of 
not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) for property damage.  The 
indemnifying Owner shall provide the indemnified Owners with certificates of such 
insurance from time to time upon written request to evidence that such insurance is in force.   
Such insurance may be written by additional premises endorsement on any master policy 
of insurance carried by the indemnifying Owner which may cover other property in 
addition to the property covered by this Agreement.   Such insurance shall provide that the 
same may not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the indemnified 
Owners. 

 
 6. Term.  This Agreement and the easements, rights, obligations and liabilities 
created hereby shall be effective commencing on the date of recording this Agreement in the 
Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County Wisconsin, and, to the extent permitted by law, 
remain in full force and effect thereafter in perpetuity unless otherwise modified, amended, 
canceled or terminated by the written consent of all then record owners of Parcel A, Parcel B and 
Parcel C in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 



4 
 

 
 7. Subordination.  Any mortgage or deed of trust affecting the Parcels shall at all 
times be subject and subordinate to the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent provided 
herein, and anyone foreclosing any such mortgage or deed of trust, or acquiring title by deed in 
lieu of foreclosure or trustee’s sale shall acquire title subject to all of the terms and provisions of 
this Agreement. 
 
 8. Non-Dedication.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a 
gift or dedication of any portion of the Paved Area to the general public or for any public use or 
purpose whatsovever, it being the intention of the Owners and their successors and assigns that 
nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, shall confer upon any person, other than the 
Owners and their successors and assigns, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this 
Agreement. 
 
 9. Remedies and Enforcement. 
 

(a) All Legal and Equitable Remedies Available.  In the event of a breach or 
threatened breach by any Owner or its Permittees of any of the terms, covenants, 
restrictions or conditions hereof, the other Owner(s) shall be entitled forthwith to full and 
adequate relief by injunction and/or all such other available legal and equitable remedies 
from the consequences of such breach, including payment of any amounts due and/or 
specific performance.   

 
(b) Self-Help.  In addition to all other remedies available at law or in equity, 

upon the failure of a defaulting Owner to cure a breach of this Agreement within thirty (30) 
days following written notice thereof by an Owner (unless, with respect to any such breach 
the nature of which cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period, the defaulting 
Owner commences such cure within such 30-day period and thereafter diligently 
prosecutes such cure to completion), any Owner shall have the right to perform such 
obligation contained in this Agreement on behalf of such defaulting Owner and be 
reimbursed by such defaulting Owner upon demand for the reasonable costs thereof 
together with interest at the prime rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal from time 
to time, plus two percent (2%) (not to exceed the maximum rate of interest allowed by 
law).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency an Owner may 
immediately cure the same and be reimbursed by the other Owner upon demand for the 
reasonable cost thereof together with interest at the prime rate, plus two percent (2%), as 
above described. 

 
(c) Lien Rights.  Any claim for reimbursement, including interest as aforesaid, 

and all costs and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees awarded to any Owner in 
enforcing any payment in any suit or proceeding under this Agreement shall be assessed 
against the defaulting Owner in favor of the prevailing party and shall constitute a lien (the 
"Assessment Lien") against the Parcel of the defaulting Owner until paid, effective upon 
the recording of a notice of lien with respect thereto in the Register of Deeds Office of 
Walworth County, Wisconsin; provided, however, that the nondefaulting Owner shall 
provide the defaulting Owner with five (5) days written notice that it will record a notice 



5 
 

of the Assessment Lien and such default remains uncured after such 5 day period, and 
further provided that any such Assessment Lien shall be subject and subordinate to (i) liens 
for taxes and other public charges which by applicable law are expressly made superior, 
(ii) all liens recorded in the Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin prior 
to the date of recordation of said notice of lien, and (iii) all leases entered into, whether or 
not recorded, prior to the date of recordation of said notice of lien.  All liens recorded 
subsequent to the recordation of the notice of lien described herein shall be junior and 
subordinate to the Assessment Lien.  Upon the timely curing by the defaulting Owner of 
any default for which a notice of lien was recorded, the party recording same shall record 
an appropriate release of such notice of lien and Assessment Lien. 

 
(d) Remedies Cumulative.  The remedies specified herein shall be cumulative 

and in addition to all other remedies permitted at law or in equity. 
 
 10. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event a party institutes any legal action or 
proceeding for the enforcement of any right or obligation herein contained, the prevailing 
party after a final adjudication shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred in the preparation and prosecution  of such action or proceeding. 
 

(b) Amendment.  The parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement may 
be modified or amended, in whole or in part, or terminated, only by the written consent of 
all record Owners of Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C, evidenced by a document that has 
been fully executed and acknowledged by all such record Owners and recorded in the 
Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin.  No modification, waiver, 
amendment, discharge, or change of this Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in 
writing and signed by the Owner of Parcel A, the Owner of Parcel B and the Owner of 
Parcel C.  No consent or approval of any Owner or Permitee other than the Owner of Parcel 
A, the Owner of Parcel B and the Owner of Parcel C shall be required in order to modify 
or amend any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 (c) Consents.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of an Owner 
is required, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, such consent or approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Any request for consent or approval shall: (a) be in 
writing; (b) specify the section hereof which requires that such notice be given or that such 
consent or approval be obtained; and (c) be accompanied by such background data as is 
reasonably necessary to make an informed decision thereon.  The consent of an Owner 
under this Agreement, to be effective, must be given, denied or conditioned expressly and 
in writing.   

 
(d) No Wavier.  No wavier of any default of any obligation by any party hereto 

shall be implied from any omission by the other party to take any action with respect to 
such default. 
 



6 
 

(e) No Agency.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by 
either party or by any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of 
limited or general partners or of joint venturers or of any other association between the 
parties. 
 

(f) Covenants to Run with Land.  It is intended that each of the easements, 
covenants, conditions, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run with the land and 
create equitable servitude in favor of the real property benefited thereby, shall bind every 
person having any fee, leasehold or other interest therein and shall inure to the benefit of 
the respective parties and their successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives. 
 
 (g) Grantee’s Acceptance.  The grantee of any Parcel or any portion thereof, by 
acceptance of a deed conveying title thereto or the execution of a contract for the purchase 
thereof, whether from an original party or from a subsequent owner of such Parcel, shall 
accept such deed or contract upon and subject to each and all of the easements, covenants, 
conditions, restrictions and obligations contained herein.  By such acceptance, any such 
grantee shall for himself and his successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives, 
covenant, consent, and agree to and with the other party, to keep, observe, comply with, 
and perform the obligations and agreements set forth herein with respect to the property so 
acquired by such grantee. 
 
 (h) Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement and the application thereof 
to Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C are hereby declared to be independent of and severable 
from the remainder of this Agreement.  If any provision contained herein shall be held to 
be invalid or to be unenforceable or not to run with the land, such holding shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.  In the event the validity 
or enforceability of any provision of this Agreement is held to be dependent upon the 
existence of a specific legal description, the parties agree to promptly cause such legal 
description to be prepared.  Ownership of the Parcels by the same person or entity shall not 
terminate this Agreement, merge obligations, nor in any manner affect or impair the 
validity or enforceability of this Agreement. 
 
 (i) Time of Essence.  Time if of the essence of this Agreement. 
 

(j) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the complete understanding 
and agreement of the parties hereto with respect to all matters referred to herein, and all 
prior representations, negotiations, and understandings are superseded hereby. 
 

(k) Notices.  Notices or other communication hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be sent certified or registered mail, return receipt request, or by other national 
overnight courier company, or personal delivery.  Notice shall be deemed given upon 
receipt or refusal to accept delivery.  Each may change from time to time their respective 
address for notice hereunder by like notice to the other parties.  The notice addresses of the 
Parcel A Owner, the Parcel B Owner and the Parcel C Owner are as follows: 
 

   Parcel A Owner: Geneva Business Centre LLC 



7 
 

      c/o Keefe & Associates, Inc. 
      751 Geneva Parkway N 
      Lake Geneva WI 53147-4579 
 
   Parcel B Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 
      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 
   Parcel C Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 
      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 

(l) Governing Law.  The laws of the State in which the Parcels are located shall 
govern the interpretation, validity, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement. 
 

(m) Estoppel Certificate.  Each Owner, within twenty (20) days of its receipt of 
a written request from the other Owner(s), shall from time to time provide the requesting 
Owner, a certificate binding upon such Owner stating: (a) to the best of such Owner’s 
knowledge, whether any party to this Agreement is in default or violation of this Agreement 
and if so identifying such default or violation; and (b) that this Agreement is in full force 
and effect and identifying any amendments to the Agreement as of the date of such 
certificate. 
 

(n) Bankruptcy.  In the event of any bankruptcy affecting any Owner or 
occupant of any Parcel, the parties agree that this Agreement shall, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, be considered an agreement that runs with the land and that is not 
rejectable, in whole or in part, by the bankrupt person or entity. 
 

(o) No Partnership.  Neither this Agreement nor any acts of the Owners hereto 
shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto, or any of them, or any third person, to 
create the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of 
any association between any of the Owners to this Agreement. 

 
(p) Capitalized Terms.  All initially capitalized terms used but not otherwise 

defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Agreement.   
 

(q) Joint and Several Liability.  All of the entities comprising an Owner, shall 
be jointly and severally liable under this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

written above. 
 
Signature Pages of Owners to follow 
 
 
 



8 
 

PARCEL A OWNER: 
Geneva Business Centre, LLC 
 
 
 
By:____________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
 Thomas Keefe, Member    Roger Wolff, Member 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF WALWORTH ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Thomas Keefe and Roger Wolff, known to me to be the only 
Members of Geneva Business Center, LLC, on behalf of the limited liability company. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
  



9 
 

PARCEL B OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
  



10 
 

PARCEL C OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Instrument drafted by: 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL A 
 
 

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL B 
 
 

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 
 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL C 
 
 

Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 



EXHIBIT D



1 
 

 
 

STORMWATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
 

THIS EASEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into 
this _____ day of  __________________, 2018, (“Effective 
Date”) by Core Commercial Inc., Wisconsin corporation 
(“Core”). 

RECITALS 

A. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 
referred to as “Parcel A”). 

B. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit B, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 
referred to as “Parcel B”). 

 
C. Core proposes to provide a nonexclusive easement for the 

drainage of storm water through underground drainage lines and into an underground 
detention pond (“Detention Area”) and related facilities which are used for the holding of 
storm water from Parcel A and Parcel B.  The location of the storm water lines, facilities 
and Detention Area are set forth on the site plan, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference as “Exhibit C” (“Site Plan”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Core hereby agrees 
as follows: 

 1. Incorporation.  Recitals A through C above are hereby incorporated into the 
terms of this Agreement by reference as if fully restated herein. 

 2. Definitions.   For purposes hereof: 
 
(a) The term "Owner" shall mean Core, in respect to its individual Parcels, and 

any and all successors or assigns of such persons as the owner or owners of fee simple title 
to all or any portion of the real property covered hereby, whether by sale, assignment, 
inheritance, operation of law, trustee’s sale, foreclosure, or otherwise, but not including the 
holder of any lien or encumbrance on such real property. 

 
(b) The term "Parcel" or "Parcels" shall mean each separately identified parcel 

of real property now constituting a part of the real property subjected to this Agreement as 

 

Return to:   
 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 

 
Tax Parcel No.:  __________________________ 



2 
 

described on Exhibit A and Exhibit B, that is, Parcel A and Parcel B, and any future 
subdivisions thereof. 

 
(c) The term "Permittees" shall mean the tenant(s) or occupant(s) of a Parcel, 

and the respective employees, agents, contractors, customers, invitees and licensees of (i) 
the Owner of such Parcel, and/or (ii) such tenant(s) or occupant(s). 

 
(d) The term "Site Plan" shall mean that site plan of the Parcels attached hereto 

as Exhibit C and by reference made a part hereof.  

2. Grants of Easement.  Core hereby grants, establishes, covenants and agrees that 
the Parcels, all Owners, their heirs, successors and assigns shall be benefited and burdened by the 
following nonexclusive, private easement to discharge storm water into the Detention Area 
which is hereby imposed upon the Parcels and all present and future owners, tenants or 
occupants of the Parcels.  The purpose of this easement grant is to provide for the drainage of 
storm water collected on Parcel A and Parcel B through the storm water lines and facilities 
installed by Core, and as identified on the Site Plan, and the discharge of such collected storm 
water into the Detention Area located on Parcel A.  The Parcel A Owner hereby reserves and 
retains all of the property rights in and to Parcel A, including without limitation, the right to use 
such areas for any purpose whatsoever, so long as such use does not unreasonably interfere with 
any rights as created herein. 

3. Maintenance and Repair. The Parcel A Owner and the Parcel B Owner shall 
proportionately share the cost of maintenance, repair and replacement of any of the facilities and 
Detention Area shown on the Site Plan, which maintenance, repair and replacement shall be 
performed in a timely manner by the Owner on whose Parcel such improvements are located 
(“Responsible Owner”).   Each Owner’s proportionate share of such costs shall be determined by 
dividing the total acreage of the Owner’s Parcel by the total acreage contained in Parcel A and 
Parcel B.   The Owner not responsible for the work as identified above (“Nonresponsible 
Owner”) agrees to pay the Responsible Owner said Nonresponsible Owner’s proportionate share 
of costs within thirty (30) days of receipt of a statement for costs of such maintenance, repair or 
replacement from the Responsible Owner. 
 
  4. Term.  This Agreement and the easements, rights, obligations and liabilities created 
hereby shall be effective commencing on the date of recording this Agreement in the Register of 
Deeds Office of Walworth County Wisconsin, and, to the extent permitted by law, remain in full 
force and effect thereafter in perpetuity unless otherwise modified, amended, canceled or 
terminated by the written consent of all then record owners of Parcel A and Parcel B in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Subordination.  Any mortgage or deed of trust affecting the Parcels shall at all 
times be subject and subordinate to the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent provided 
herein, and anyone foreclosing any such mortgage or deed of trust, or acquiring title by deed in 
lieu of foreclosure or trustee’s sale shall acquire title subject to all of the terms and provisions of 
this Agreement. 
 
 



3 
 

 6. Remedies and Enforcement. 
 

(a) All Legal and Equitable Remedies Available.  In the event of a breach or 
threatened breach by any Owner or its Permittees of any of the terms, covenants, 
restrictions or conditions hereof, the other Owner(s) shall be entitled forthwith to full and 
adequate relief by injunction and/or all such other available legal and equitable remedies 
from the consequences of such breach, including payment of any amounts due and/or 
specific performance.   

 
(b) Self-Help.  In addition to all other remedies available at law or in equity, 

upon the failure of a defaulting Owner to cure a breach of this Agreement within thirty (30) 
days following written notice thereof by an Owner (unless, with respect to any such breach 
the nature of which cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period, the defaulting 
Owner commences such cure within such 30-day period and thereafter diligently 
prosecutes such cure to completion), any Owner shall have the right to perform such 
obligation contained in this Agreement on behalf of such defaulting Owner and be 
reimbursed by such defaulting Owner upon demand for the reasonable costs thereof 
together with interest at the prime rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal from time 
to time, plus two percent (2%) (not to exceed the maximum rate of interest allowed by 
law).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency an Owner may 
immediately cure the same and be reimbursed by the other Owner upon demand for the 
reasonable cost thereof together with interest at the prime rate, plus two percent (2%), as 
above described. 

 
(c) Lien Rights.  Any claim for reimbursement, including interest as aforesaid, 

and all costs and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees awarded to any Owner in 
enforcing any payment in any suit or proceeding under this Agreement shall be assessed 
against the defaulting Owner in favor of the prevailing party and shall constitute a lien (the 
"Assessment Lien") against the Parcel of the defaulting Owner until paid, effective upon 
the recording of a notice of lien with respect thereto in the Register of Deeds Office of 
Walworth County, Wisconsin; provided, however, that the nondefaulting Owner shall 
provide the defaulting Owner with five (5) days written notice that it will record a notice 
of the Assessment Lien and such default remains uncured after such 5 day period, and 
further provided that any such Assessment Lien shall be subject and subordinate to (i) liens 
for taxes and other public charges which by applicable law are expressly made superior, 
(ii) all liens recorded in the Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin prior 
to the date of recordation of said notice of lien, and (iii) all leases entered into, whether or 
not recorded, prior to the date of recordation of said notice of lien.  All liens recorded 
subsequent to the recordation of the notice of lien described herein shall be junior and 
subordinate to the Assessment Lien.  Upon the timely curing by the defaulting Owner of 
any default for which a notice of lien was recorded, the party recording same shall record 
an appropriate release of such notice of lien and Assessment Lien. 

 
(d) Remedies Cumulative.  The remedies specified herein shall be cumulative 

and in addition to all other remedies permitted at law or in equity. 
 



4 
 

 7. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event a party institutes any legal action or 
proceeding for the enforcement of any right or obligation herein contained, the prevailing 
party after a final adjudication shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred in the preparation and prosecution  of such action or proceeding. 
 

(b) Amendment.  The parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement may 
be modified or amended, in whole or in part, or terminated, only by the written consent of 
all record Owners of Parcel A and Parcel B, evidenced by a document that has been fully 
executed and acknowledged by all such record Owners and recorded in the Register of 
Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin.  No modification, waiver, amendment, 
discharge, or change of this Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and 
signed by the Owner of Parcel A and the Owner of Parcel B.  No consent or approval of 
any Owner or Permitee other than the Owner of Parcel A and the Owner of Parcel B shall 
be required in order to modify or amend any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 (c) Consents.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of an Owner 
is required, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, such consent or approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Any request for consent or approval shall: (a) be in 
writing; (b) specify the section hereof which requires that such notice be given or that such 
consent or approval be obtained; and (c) be accompanied by such background data as is 
reasonably necessary to make an informed decision thereon.  The consent of an Owner 
under this Agreement, to be effective, must be given, denied or conditioned expressly and 
in writing.   

 
(d) No Wavier.  No wavier of any default of any obligation by any party hereto 

shall be implied from any omission by the other party to take any action with respect to 
such default. 
 

(e) No Agency.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by 
either party or by any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of 
limited or general partners or of joint venturers or of any other association between the 
parties. 
 

(f) Covenants to Run with Land.  It is intended that each of the easements, 
covenants, conditions, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run with the land and 
create equitable servitude in favor of the real property benefited thereby, shall bind every 
person having any fee, leasehold or other interest therein and shall inure to the benefit of 
the respective parties and their successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives. 
 
 (g) Grantee’s Acceptance.  The grantee of any Parcel or any portion thereof, by 
acceptance of a deed conveying title thereto or the execution of a contract for the purchase 
thereof, whether from an original party or from a subsequent owner of such Parcel, shall 
accept such deed or contract upon and subject to each and all of the easements, covenants, 
conditions, restrictions and obligations contained herein.  By such acceptance, any such 



5 
 

grantee shall for himself and his successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives, 
covenant, consent, and agree to and with the other party, to keep, observe, comply with, 
and perform the obligations and agreements set forth herein with respect to the property so 
acquired by such grantee. 
 
 (h) Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement and the application thereof 
to Parcel A and Parcel B are hereby declared to be independent of and severable from the 
remainder of this Agreement.  If any provision contained herein shall be held to be invalid 
or to be unenforceable or not to run with the land, such holding shall not affect the validity 
or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.  In the event the validity or 
enforceability of any provision of this Agreement is held to be dependent upon the 
existence of a specific legal description, the parties agree to promptly cause such legal 
description to be prepared.  Ownership of the Parcels by the same person or entity shall not 
terminate this Agreement, merge obligations, nor in any manner affect or impair the 
validity or enforceability of this Agreement. 
 
 (i) Time of Essence.  Time if of the essence of this Agreement. 
 

(j) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the complete understanding 
and agreement of the parties hereto with respect to all matters referred to herein, and all 
prior representations, negotiations, and understandings are superseded hereby. 
 

(k) Notices.  Notices or other communication hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be sent certified or registered mail, return receipt request, or by other national 
overnight courier company, or personal delivery.  Notice shall be deemed given upon 
receipt or refusal to accept delivery.  Each may change from time to time their respective 
address for notice hereunder by like notice to the other parties.  The notice addresses of the 
Parcel A Owner and the Parcel B Owner are as follows: 
 

   Parcel A Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 
      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 
   Parcel B Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 
      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 

(l) Governing Law.  The laws of the State in which the Parcels are located shall 
govern the interpretation, validity, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement. 
 

(m) Estoppel Certificate.  Each Owner, within twenty (20) days of its receipt of 
a written request from the other Owner(s), shall from time to time provide the requesting 
Owner, a certificate binding upon such Owner stating: (a) to the best of such Owner’s 
knowledge, whether any party to this Agreement is in default or violation of this Agreement 
and if so identifying such default or violation; and (b) that this Agreement is in full force 



6 
 

and effect and identifying any amendments to the Agreement as of the date of such 
certificate. 
 

(n) Bankruptcy.  In the event of any bankruptcy affecting any Owner or 
occupant of any Parcel, the parties agree that this Agreement shall, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, be considered an agreement that runs with the land and that is not 
rejectable, in whole or in part, by the bankrupt person or entity. 
 

(o) No Partnership.  Neither this Agreement nor any acts of the Owners hereto 
shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto, or any of them, or any third person, to 
create the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of 
any association between any of the Owners to this Agreement. 

 
(p) Capitalized Terms.  All initially capitalized terms used but not otherwise 

defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Agreement.   
 

(q) Joint and Several Liability.  All of the entities comprising an Owner, shall 
be jointly and severally liable under this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

written above. 
 
Signature Pages of Owners to follow 
 
 
 
 
 
  



7 
 

PARCEL A OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
  



8 
 

PARCEL B OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Instrument drafted by: 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL A 
 
 

Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 
 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL B 
 
 

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 





1 
 

 
 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

AND WATERMAIN SYSTEM 
 
 

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made 
and entered into this _____ day of  __________________, 2018, 
(“Effective Date”) by and between Geneva Business Centre, 
LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company  (”GBC”) and 
Core Commercial Inc., Wisconsin corporation (“Core”). 

RECITALS 

A. GBC is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 
referred to as “Parcel A”). 

B. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in 
the City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 
more particularly described on Exhibit B, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as “Parcel B”). 

C. Core is the owner of that certain real property situated in the City of Lake Geneva, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit C, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as “Parcel C”). 

 
D. GBC and Core propose to provide a nonexclusive easements for the tapping into and 

drainage of sanitary sewerage and for tapping into and obtaining water from the existing 
lines and lines to be constructed on Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel as set forth on the site 
plan attached hereto an incorporated by reference as “Exhibit D” (“Site Plan”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, GBC and Core 
hereby agree as follows: 

 1. Incorporation.  Recitals A through D above are hereby incorporated into the 
terms of this Agreement by reference as if fully restated herein. 

 2. Definitions.   For purposes hereof: 
 
(a) The term "Owner" shall mean GBC and Core, in respect to their individual 

Parcels, and any and all successors or assigns of such persons as the owner or owners of 
fee simple title to all or any portion of the real property covered hereby, whether by sale, 

 

Return to:   
 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 

 
Tax Parcel No.:  __________________________ 



2 
 

assignment, inheritance, operation of law, trustee’s sale, foreclosure, or otherwise, but not 
including the holder of any lien or encumbrance on such real property. 

 
(b) The term "Parcel" or "Parcels" shall mean each separately identified parcel 

of real property now constituting a part of the real property subjected to this Agreement as 
described on Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C, that is, Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C, 
and any future subdivisions thereof. 

 
(c) The term "Permittees" shall mean the tenant(s) or occupant(s) of a Parcel, 

and the respective employees, agents, contractors, customers, invitees and licensees of (i) 
the Owner of such Parcel, and/or (ii) such tenant(s) or occupant(s). 

 
(d) The term "Site Plan" shall mean that site plan of the Parcels attached hereto 

as Exhibit D and by reference made a part hereof. The Site Plan shown on the Site Plan has 
been approved by GBC and Core.   
 

(e) The term "Sanitary Sewer Easement Area” shall mean a fifteen foot (15’) 
wide area as identified on the Site Plan, and legally described on “Exhibit E” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
(f) The term “Watermain Easement Area” shall mean a twenty foot (20’) wide 

area as identified on the Site Plan, and legally described on “Exhibit F” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Grants of Easement.  GBC and Core hereby grant, establish, covenant and agree 
that the Parcels, all Owners and Permittees of the Parcels and their respective employees, agents, 
contractors, customers, invitees and licensees, shall be benefited and burdened by the following 
nonexclusive, perpetual and reciprocal easement which are hereby imposed upon the Parcels and 
all present and future owners, tenants or occupants of the Parcels: 

 (a) Sanitary Sewer Easement.  A fifteen foot (15’) wide permanent 
nonexclusive easement within the Sanitary Sewer Easement Area, including the right and 
authority to allow Core, its heirs, successors and assigns, at its cost, to tap into and drain 
sanitary sewage from Parcel B and Parcel C through the existing private sanitary sewer 
pipe located on Parcel A.  Core hereby represents, agrees and warrants that Core’s 
connection to the present underground sanitary sewer system located on Parcel A shall be 
constructed, reconstructed, maintained, repaired, used and operated in accordance with all 
laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations (“Laws”) including those of the 
City of Lake Geneva, Walworth County and the State of Wisconsin.  Core further 
represents that all inspections necessary for the completion of such installation will be 
undertaken as required.   Notwithstanding anything else set forth herein, except as 
otherwise specifically agreed to in writing between the Parties and recorded in the 
records of Walworth County, no portion of the sanitary sewer system shall be located 
above the surface of the ground. 

 



3 
 

 (b) Watermain Easement.  A twenty foot (20’) wide permanent 
nonexclusive easement within the Watermain Easement Area, including the right and 
authority to allow Core, its heirs, successors and assigns, at its cost, to tap into and access 
water for Parcel B and Parcel C through the existing water line pipe located on Parcel A, 
and the right of GBC, its heirs, successors and assigns to access water for Parcel A 
through the water line loop to be constructed on Parcel B and Parcel C, as identified on 
the Site Plan.  Core hereby represents, agrees and warrants that Core’s connection to the 
present watermain system located on Parcel A shall be constructed, reconstructed, 
maintained, repaired, used and operated in accordance with all laws, statutes, codes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations (“Laws”) including those of the City of Lake Geneva, 
Walworth County and the State of Wisconsin.  Core further represents that all inspections 
necessary for the completion of such installation will be undertaken as required.   
Notwithstanding anything else set forth herein, except as otherwise specifically agreed to 
in writing between the Parties and recorded in the records of Walworth County, no 
portion of the sanitary sewer system shall be located above the surface of the ground. 

 3. Maintenance and Repair.  
 
  (a) Core will, at its sole cost and expense and promptly after completion of its 

work replace the surface (including, without limitation, the surface paving) and subsurface 
of the soil as may be disturbed in tapping into the present sanitary sewer pipe and 
watermain line located within the Sanitary Sewer Easement Area and Watermain Easement 
Area, respectively.   Core covenants and agree that it shall be responsible for initiating, 
maintaining, and providing supervisions of safety precautions and programs in connection 
with the location, construction, installation, inspection, maintenance, relocation and 
replacement of Core’s facilities within the easement.   Core shall erect and maintain, as 
required by existing conditions and the work being undertaking by Core, reasonable 
safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of 
adjacent property and utilities.   Core shall also be responsible for all measures reasonably 
necessary to protect any property adjacent to the easement and the Parcel A property and 
Parcel A improvements therein from damage due to the activities of Core and Core’s 
contractors and agents under this easement.   Any damage to such property or 
improvements shall be promptly repaired by Core.   In the event Core fails to take any 
action required by this Paragraph, GBC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
perform any such action, and the cost thereof shall be payable on demand by the Core. 

 
  (b) Upon completion of the connection to the private sanitary sewer and 

watermain loop, GBC, Core, and their heirs, successors and assigns, shall thereafter share 
proportionately in all expenses necessary for the maintenance and repair of the private 
sanitary sewer and watermain loop.  Proportionate share shall be determined by a fraction, 
the numerator of which is square footage of the completed improvements on each Owner’s 
respective Parcel(s) and the denominator of which is the square footage of all Parcels. 

  4. Term.  This Agreement and the easements, rights, obligations and liabilities 
created hereby shall be effective commencing on the date of recording this Agreement in the 
Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County Wisconsin, and, to the extent permitted by law, 



4 
 

remain in full force and effect thereafter in perpetuity unless otherwise modified, amended, 
canceled or terminated by the written consent of all then record owners of Parcel A, Parcel B and 
Parcel C in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Subordination.  Any mortgage or deed of trust affecting the Parcels shall at all 
times be subject and subordinate to the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent provided 
herein, and anyone foreclosing any such mortgage or deed of trust, or acquiring title by deed in 
lieu of foreclosure or trustee’s sale shall acquire title subject to all of the terms and provisions of 
this Agreement. 
 
 6. Remedies and Enforcement. 
 

(a) All Legal and Equitable Remedies Available.  In the event of a breach or 
threatened breach by any Owner or its Permittees of any of the terms, covenants, 
restrictions or conditions hereof, the other Owner(s) shall be entitled forthwith to full and 
adequate relief by injunction and/or all such other available legal and equitable remedies 
from the consequences of such breach, including payment of any amounts due and/or 
specific performance.   

 
(b) Self-Help.  In addition to all other remedies available at law or in equity, 

upon the failure of a defaulting Owner to cure a breach of this Agreement within thirty (30) 
days following written notice thereof by an Owner (unless, with respect to any such breach 
the nature of which cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period, the defaulting 
Owner commences such cure within such 30-day period and thereafter diligently 
prosecutes such cure to completion), any Owner shall have the right to perform such 
obligation contained in this Agreement on behalf of such defaulting Owner and be 
reimbursed by such defaulting Owner upon demand for the reasonable costs thereof 
together with interest at the prime rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal from time 
to time, plus two percent (2%) (not to exceed the maximum rate of interest allowed by 
law).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency an Owner may 
immediately cure the same and be reimbursed by the other Owner upon demand for the 
reasonable cost thereof together with interest at the prime rate, plus two percent (2%), as 
above described. 

 
(c) Lien Rights.  Any claim for reimbursement, including interest as aforesaid, 

and all costs and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees awarded to any Owner in 
enforcing any payment in any suit or proceeding under this Agreement shall be assessed 
against the defaulting Owner in favor of the prevailing party and shall constitute a lien (the 
"Assessment Lien") against the Parcel of the defaulting Owner until paid, effective upon 
the recording of a notice of lien with respect thereto in the Register of Deeds Office of 
Walworth County, Wisconsin; provided, however, that the nondefaulting Owner shall 
provide the defaulting Owner with five (5) days written notice that it will record a notice 
of the Assessment Lien and such default remains uncured after such 5 day period, and 
further provided that any such Assessment Lien shall be subject and subordinate to (i) liens 
for taxes and other public charges which by applicable law are expressly made superior, 
(ii) all liens recorded in the Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin prior 



5 
 

to the date of recordation of said notice of lien, and (iii) all leases entered into, whether or 
not recorded, prior to the date of recordation of said notice of lien.  All liens recorded 
subsequent to the recordation of the notice of lien described herein shall be junior and 
subordinate to the Assessment Lien.  Upon the timely curing by the defaulting Owner of 
any default for which a notice of lien was recorded, the party recording same shall record 
an appropriate release of such notice of lien and Assessment Lien. 

 
(d) Remedies Cumulative.  The remedies specified herein shall be cumulative 

and in addition to all other remedies permitted at law or in equity. 
 
 7. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event a party institutes any legal action or 
proceeding for the enforcement of any right or obligation herein contained, the prevailing 
party after a final adjudication shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred in the preparation and prosecution  of such action or proceeding. 
 

(b) Amendment.  The parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement may 
be modified or amended, in whole or in part, or terminated, only by the written consent of 
all record Owners of Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C, evidenced by a document that has 
been fully executed and acknowledged by all such record Owners and recorded in the 
Register of Deeds Office of Walworth County, Wisconsin.  No modification, waiver, 
amendment, discharge, or change of this Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in 
writing and signed by the Owner of Parcel A, the Owner of Parcel B and the Owner of 
Parcel C.  No consent or approval of any Owner or Permitee other than the Owner of Parcel 
A, the Owner of Parcel B and the Owner of Parcel C shall be required in order to modify 
or amend any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 (c) Consents.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of an Owner 
is required, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, such consent or approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Any request for consent or approval shall: (a) be in 
writing; (b) specify the section hereof which requires that such notice be given or that such 
consent or approval be obtained; and (c) be accompanied by such background data as is 
reasonably necessary to make an informed decision thereon.  The consent of an Owner 
under this Agreement, to be effective, must be given, denied or conditioned expressly and 
in writing.   

 
(d) No Wavier.  No wavier of any default of any obligation by any party hereto 

shall be implied from any omission by the other party to take any action with respect to 
such default. 
 

(e) No Agency.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by 
either party or by any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of 
limited or general partners or of joint venturers or of any other association between the 
parties. 
 



6 
 

(f) Covenants to Run with Land.  It is intended that each of the easements, 
covenants, conditions, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run with the land and 
create equitable servitude in favor of the real property benefited thereby, shall bind every 
person having any fee, leasehold or other interest therein and shall inure to the benefit of 
the respective parties and their successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives. 
 
 (g) Grantee’s Acceptance.  The grantee of any Parcel or any portion thereof, by 
acceptance of a deed conveying title thereto or the execution of a contract for the purchase 
thereof, whether from an original party or from a subsequent owner of such Parcel, shall 
accept such deed or contract upon and subject to each and all of the easements, covenants, 
conditions, restrictions and obligations contained herein.  By such acceptance, any such 
grantee shall for himself and his successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives, 
covenant, consent, and agree to and with the other party, to keep, observe, comply with, 
and perform the obligations and agreements set forth herein with respect to the property so 
acquired by such grantee. 
 
 (h) Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement and the application thereof 
to Parcel A, Parcel B and Parcel C are hereby declared to be independent of and severable 
from the remainder of this Agreement.  If any provision contained herein shall be held to 
be invalid or to be unenforceable or not to run with the land, such holding shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.  In the event the validity 
or enforceability of any provision of this Agreement is held to be dependent upon the 
existence of a specific legal description, the parties agree to promptly cause such legal 
description to be prepared.  Ownership of the Parcels by the same person or entity shall not 
terminate this Agreement, merge obligations, nor in any manner affect or impair the 
validity or enforceability of this Agreement. 
 
 (i) Time of Essence.  Time if of the essence of this Agreement. 
 

(j) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the complete understanding 
and agreement of the parties hereto with respect to all matters referred to herein, and all 
prior representations, negotiations, and understandings are superseded hereby. 
 

(k) Notices.  Notices or other communication hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be sent certified or registered mail, return receipt request, or by other national 
overnight courier company, or personal delivery.  Notice shall be deemed given upon 
receipt or refusal to accept delivery.  Each may change from time to time their respective 
address for notice hereunder by like notice to the other parties.  The notice addresses of the 
Parcel A Owner, the Parcel B Owner and the Parcel C Owner are as follows: 
 

   Parcel A Owner: Geneva Business Centre LLC 
      c/o Keefe & Associates, Inc. 
      751 Geneva Parkway N 
      Lake Geneva WI 53147-4579 
 
   Parcel B Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 



7 
 

      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 
   Parcel C Owner: Core Commercial, Inc. 
      4004 E. Appleseed Drive 
      Appleton WI 54913 
 

(l) Governing Law.  The laws of the State in which the Parcels are located shall 
govern the interpretation, validity, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement. 
 

(m) Estoppel Certificate.  Each Owner, within twenty (20) days of its receipt of 
a written request from the other Owner(s), shall from time to time provide the requesting 
Owner, a certificate binding upon such Owner stating: (a) to the best of such Owner’s 
knowledge, whether any party to this Agreement is in default or violation of this Agreement 
and if so identifying such default or violation; and (b) that this Agreement is in full force 
and effect and identifying any amendments to the Agreement as of the date of such 
certificate. 
 

(n) Bankruptcy.  In the event of any bankruptcy affecting any Owner or 
occupant of any Parcel, the parties agree that this Agreement shall, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, be considered an agreement that runs with the land and that is not 
rejectable, in whole or in part, by the bankrupt person or entity. 
 

(o) No Partnership.  Neither this Agreement nor any acts of the Owners hereto 
shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto, or any of them, or any third person, to 
create the relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of 
any association between any of the Owners to this Agreement. 

 
(p) Capitalized Terms.  All initially capitalized terms used but not otherwise 

defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Agreement.   
 

(q) Joint and Several Liability.  All of the entities comprising an Owner, shall 
be jointly and severally liable under this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

written above. 
 
Signature Pages of Owners to follow 
 
 
 
 
 
  



8 
 

PARCEL A OWNER: 
Geneva Business Centre, LLC 
 
 
 
By:____________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
 Thomas Keefe, Member    Roger Wolff, Member 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF WALWORTH ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Thomas Keefe and Roger Wolff, known to me to be the only 
Members of Geneva Business Center, LLC, on behalf of the limited liability company. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
  



9 
 

PARCEL B OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
  



10 
 

PARCEL C OWNER: 
Core Commercial Inc. 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kim Pischke, President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2018 by Kim Pischke, known to me to be the President of Core 
Commercial, Inc, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Printed:________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My commission expires/is_________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Instrument drafted by: 
Attorney Jennifer W. Koeppl 
Koeppl Law Offices, S.C. 
P.O. Box 270 
Wild Rose WI 54984-0270 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL A 
 
 

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL B 
 
 

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 
 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION – PARCEL C 
 
 

Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. _____, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Walworth County, Wisconsin on ____________________, 2018, as Document No. 
___________, being part of Units 1, 2 and Expansion units in Geneva Business Centre 
Condominium and part of Lot 2 of Lake Geneva Business Park, a subdivision located in the SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4, the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 
and the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 31, T2N, R18E, City of Lake Geneva, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin. 
 



Exhibit D



 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division: 

The applicant is proposing to re-divide a single site into three separate lots. The subject property 

is located on the north side of Geneva Parkway, east of Edwards Boulevard and south of Wal-

Mart. A Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division has been submitted to accomplish this 

purpose. The subject property contains just over six acres and the multi-tenant office building 

housing Keefe Real Estate and other businesses. 

The northern part of subject property was recently rezoned from the Planned Business Park 

(PBP) zoning district to the Planned Business (PB) zoning district. The proposed lot sizes are: 

• Lot 1 of 1.54 acres, zoned Planned Business Park (PBP); 

• Lot 2 of 1.51 acres, zoned Planned Business (PB); and, 

• Lot 3 of 2.54 acres, zoned Planned Business. 

Please note that development in the form of new buildings and paved areas is proposed on Lots 2 

and 3. Revised paved areas are proposed on Lot 1. The current building will remain. These 

proposed development projects will be reviewed independently of this land division. 

Specifically, they appear as Items 9, 10, and 11 on this Plan Commission agenda. 

 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) as it complies with the Land Division and 

Zoning provisions of the Municipal Code, and recommendation to the Common Council. 

 

Staff Review and Recommendation on the Proposed Land Division: 

1. Staff has reviewed the proposed Certified Survey Map land division. Staff notes that each 

of the proposed Lots 1-3 meets all requirements of its respective zoning districts. 

2. Staff further notes the provision of easements for shared cross-access between the three 

proposed lots, as depicted on page 2 of the CSM. 

3. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Certified 

Survey Map (CSM), as submitted for the property. 

Agenda Item:8 

Applicant: 

Kim Pischke, Core Commercial, Inc. 

P.O. Box 1154 

Appleton, WI 54912 

Request: 

Certified Survey Map CSM Land Division 

At 751 Geneva Parkway for Tax Key Nos. 

ZGBC00001, ZGBC00001A, & ZGBC00002 

intended for commercial development. 



City of Lake Geneva 
 

APPLICATION FOR LAND DIVISION REVIEW 
 
 

               CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  or          SUBDIVISION PLAT 

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CURRENT OWNER: 

 Roger Wolff, Member            

 GBC Business Centre, LLC.           

 P.O. BOX 460, Lake Geneva, WI  53147         

TELEPHONE NUMBER OF CURRENT OWNER:  (262) 903-3222       

EMAIL ADDRESS:    roger@rogerwolff.com         

PROJECT ADDRESS:   751 and 753 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, WI  53147    

TAX KEY NUMBER(S):  ZGBC 00001A, ZGBC 00001, ZGBC 00002 and ZLGBP 00002   

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF APPLICANT: 

 Kim Pischke             

 Core Commercial, Inc.           

 P.O. Box 1154, Appleton, WI  54912          

TELEPHONE NUMBER OF APPLICANT:  (920) 205-9505        

EMAIL ADDRESS:   kimp@corewis.com          
 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SURVEYOR: 

 Mike Greason, PLS            

 V2G Surveying, LLC.            

 123 Wolf Run, Suite 4, Mukwonago, WI  53149       
         
TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SURVEYOR:  (262) 378-5097        

EMAIL ADDRESS:    MikeG@V2G-Surveying.com        
 
SHORT STATEMENT DESCRIBING PURPOSE OF APPLICATION: 

Combining current parcels owned by Geneva Business Centre, LLC. and separating into three separate 

parcels; parcel #1 – existing Keefe office building located at 751 Geneva Parkway, parcel #2 – new  

22,000 square foot single tenant building and parcel #3 – new construction of a 13,915 square foot single 

tenant building.  Parcel #1 will remain in the Lake Geneva Business Park and parcels 2 & 3 have been  

removed from the business park and rezoned Planned Business.       

X  

















HARDWOOD

FORM
SAUCER

(CEDAR) MULCH

VA
RI

ES

6"

3"

MIN.
12"

3"

NTS

COMPACTED SOIL MIX TO FORM

FORM SAUCER WITH

8"8" VARIES

SHRUB PLANTING

3

MIN. MIN.
BREAK SUBGRADE
WITH PICK

COMPACTED SOIL MIX 
TO FORM PEDESTAL 
AS SHOWN

CONTINUOUS RIM

2

NTS

TREE PLANTING

MIN.

MIN.
12"

MIN.
12"

REMOVE BURLAP FROM
UPPER 1/3 OF BALL.

BREAK SUBGRADE WITH PICK
PEDESTAL AS SHOWN

IF NECESSARY

6"

2" X 2" X 8' CEDAR STAKES
2 REQUIRED FOR 1 1/2"CAL.
AND LARGER; 3 REQ. FOR 3" 
CAL. AND LARGER TREE

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

ROLL BACK TOP HALF OF
BURLAP WRAP

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

2 STRAND TWISTED 12 GUAGE
GAL. WIRE ENCASED IN 1" DIA.
RUBBER HOSE

3" MULCH 

PLANT SPACING AS 
SHOWN ON PLAN

NTS

PERENNIAL PLANTING

4

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

Notes:

1. Individual tree and shrub groupings found within lawn areas are to receive wood mulch rings and/or wood mulch beds consisting of a mixture of recycled brown dyed wood mulch

spread to a 3" min. depth over a pre-emergent herbicide.

2. "Edging" to be professional grade polyethylene lawn edging available in 20' flat strips.  Basis of Design: Valley View Black Diamond.  Valley View Industries.

(www.valleyviewind.com/professional/)

3. "Lawn" areas shall be finish graded and seeded at a rate of 4 lbs. per 1,000 sq. ft.  Basis of Design: Madison Parks Lawn Seed Mix. EarthCarpet Corporation. (www.seedsolutions.com)

4. Unless otherwise indicated, plant beds to receive locally available, clean washed 1 ½" - 2 ½" durable landscape stone spread to a 3" min. depth over a commercial grade weed barrier

fabric.

5. Maintenance, watering and warranty of plants to extend for 12 months after project completion/acceptance.  Maintenance, watering and warranty period for seed to extend 60 days

from project completion/acceptance of installation.

1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

0'             30'           60'

1" = 30'-0"

Landscaping Points and Min. Installation Sizes: Proposed

Plant Catagory Min. size Points Qty. Points

Climax Tree 2" cal. 75 14 1,050

Tall Deciduous Tree 1 1/2" cal. 30 5 150

Med. Deciduous Tree 6' tall 15 - -

Tall Evergreen Tree 5' tall 40 - -

Tall Deciduous Shrub 36" tall 5 3 15

Low Deciduous Shrub 18" tall 1 15 15

Total Points Proposed 1,230

Article VI: Landscaping and Bufferyard Regulations
Zoning: Planned Business Development
Landscape Requirement Measurements Site Min. Required Points
Building Foundations: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 656 lf 263
Developed Lot: 10 landscape points per 1,000 gross floor area 22,450 sf 225
Street Frontage: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 179 lf 72
Area of Paved Areas: 80 landscape points per 10,000 sf 58,840 sf 471
Total Points Required 1,031

DEPRESSED AREA FOR PLANTINGS - SEE GRADING PLAN

PLANT SPACING TO BE 12" O.C., STAGGERED
PRAIRIE WILDFLOWERS AND GRASSES.

ENGINEERED SOIL - SEE CIVIL PLANS

OVERLAND FLOW/DOWNSPOUTS
CONTRIBUTE WATER

AFTER PLANTING

NTS

BIOINFILTRATION AREA PLANTS

5

Butterfly Weed Blue False Indigo
White False Indigo Purple Coneflower
Blue Flag Iris Cardinal Flower
Marsh Blazingstar Brown Eyed Susan
Stiff Goldenrod Bottlebrush Sedge
Fox Sedge Torrey's Rush
Switch Grass

COCONUT FIBER MAT

PLANTS; EQUAL MIX OF 2 1/2" PLUGS.  RANDOM PLANT BOTTOM OF BASIN AREA AS SHOWN. 

Rudy Haag Burningbush
Wine and Roses Weigela

18" ht.
18" ht.
18" ht.

Euonymus alatus 'Rudy Haag'
Weigela florida 'Alexandra'

Calamagrostis acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

Viburnum trilobum 'Compactum'

PERENNIALS

SHRUBS

Star Magnolia Magnolia stellata 36" ht.
Black Chokeberry Aronia melanocarpa

Pink Spires Crab
Redbud 2" cal.

6' ht.Malus Pink Spires
Cercis canadensis 'Columbus Strain'

TREES

Pagoda Dogwood 1 1/2" cal.Cornus alternifolia

Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

Dwarf Cranberrybush Viburnum

1 gal.

18" ht.

Capital Pear
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac Syringa reticulata 'Ivory Silk'

2" cal.
2" cal.

Autumn Spire Maple
Greenspire Littleleaf Linden
Thornless Cockspur Hawthorn
Adirondack Crab

Gro low Fragrant Sumac

Crataegus crus-galli 'inermis'

Acer rubrum 'Autumn Spire'
Tilia cordata 'Greenspire'

Malus 'Adirondack'

2" cal.
2" cal.
1 1/2" cal.
6' ht.

Rhus aromatica

7
7
8
0
 
E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
8
 
·

M
I
D

D
L
E

T
O

N
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
·

5
3
5
6
2

Existing Office Building 

Proposed Retail Building #1 

G

e

n

e

v

a

 

P

a

r

k

w

a

y

 

N

o

r

t

h

E

d

w

a

r

d

s

 

B

o

u

l

e

v

a

r

d

(4) Rudy Haag Burningbush

lawn

lawn

stone mulch islands-typ.

snow storage

s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

(2) Pink Spires Crab

(2) Pagoda Dogwood

(1) Star Magnolia

(4) Gro Low Frangrant Sumac

(2) Capital Pear

(4) Ivory Silk Tree Lilac

E

d

w

a

r
d

s
 
B

o

u

l
e

v
a

r
d

(3) Greenspire Linden

(1) Thornless Hawthorn

(1) Adirondack Crab

(3) Star Magnolia

(2) Redbud

(4) Black Chokeberry

stormwater area

(3) Dwarf Cranberrybush Viburnum

(4) Wine and Roses Weigela

(6) Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 #
1

RE
TA

IL
 D

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A,

 W
IS

CO
NS

IN

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN

03/28/2018
CITY SUBMITTAL

L1.
s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

s
n
o
w

 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e

(2) Autumn Spire Maple

Proposed Retail Building #2 

18" ht.

Pyrus calleryana 'Capital'

(5) Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass

0



HARDWOOD

FORM
SAUCER

(CEDAR) MULCH

VA
RI

ES

6"

3"

MIN.
12"

3"

NTS

COMPACTED SOIL MIX TO FORM

FORM SAUCER WITH

8"8" VARIES

SHRUB PLANTING

3

MIN. MIN.
BREAK SUBGRADE
WITH PICK

COMPACTED SOIL MIX 
TO FORM PEDESTAL 
AS SHOWN

CONTINUOUS RIM

2

NTS

TREE PLANTING

MIN.

MIN.
12"

MIN.
12"

REMOVE BURLAP FROM
UPPER 1/3 OF BALL.

BREAK SUBGRADE WITH PICK
PEDESTAL AS SHOWN

IF NECESSARY

6"

2" X 2" X 8' CEDAR STAKES
2 REQUIRED FOR 1 1/2"CAL.
AND LARGER; 3 REQ. FOR 3" 
CAL. AND LARGER TREE

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

ROLL BACK TOP HALF OF
BURLAP WRAP

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

2 STRAND TWISTED 12 GUAGE
GAL. WIRE ENCASED IN 1" DIA.
RUBBER HOSE

3" MULCH 

PLANT SPACING AS 
SHOWN ON PLAN

NTS

PERENNIAL PLANTING

4

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

PLANTING MIX W/NO LARGE STONES-

5-20% CLAY, 5-35% SILT
50-80% MEDIUM AND COARSE SAND,

Notes:

1. Individual tree and shrub groupings found within lawn areas are to receive wood mulch rings and/or wood mulch beds consisting of a mixture of recycled brown dyed wood mulch

spread to a 3" min. depth over a pre-emergent herbicide.

2. "Edging" to be professional grade polyethylene lawn edging available in 20' flat strips.  Basis of Design: Valley View Black Diamond.  Valley View Industries.

(www.valleyviewind.com/professional/)

3. "Lawn" areas shall be finish graded and seeded at a rate of 4 lbs. per 1,000 sq. ft.  Basis of Design: Madison Parks Lawn Seed Mix. EarthCarpet Corporation. (www.seedsolutions.com)

4. Unless otherwise indicated, plant beds to receive locally available, clean washed 1 ½" - 2 ½" durable landscape stone spread to a 3" min. depth over a commercial grade weed barrier

fabric.

5. Maintenance, watering and warranty of plants to extend for 12 months after project completion/acceptance.  Maintenance, watering and warranty period for seed to extend 60 days

from project completion/acceptance of installation.

1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

0'             30'           60'

1" = 30'-0"

Landscaping Points and Min. Installation Sizes: Proposed

Plant Catagory Min. size Points Qty. Points

Climax Tree 2" cal. 75 5 375

Tall Deciduous Tree 1 1/2" cal. 30 - -

Med. Deciduous Tree 6' tall 15 7 105

Tall Evergreen Tree 5' tall 40 10 400

Tall Deciduous Shrub 36" tall 5 11 55

Low Deciduous Shrub 18" tall 1 27 27

Total Points Proposed 962

Article VI: Landscaping and Bufferyard Regulations
Zoning: Planned Business Development
Landscape Requirement Measurements Site Min. Required Points
Building Foundations: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 537 lf 215
Developed Lot: 10 landscape points per 1,000 gross floor area 14,075 sf 140
Street Frontage: 40 landscape points per 100 lf 392 lf 157
Area of Paved Areas: 80 landscape points per 10,000 sf 24,920 sf 200
Total Points Required 712

DEPRESSED AREA FOR PLANTINGS - SEE GRADING PLAN

PLANT SPACING TO BE 12" O.C., STAGGERED
PRAIRIE WILDFLOWERS AND GRASSES.

ENGINEERED SOIL - SEE CIVIL PLANS

OVERLAND FLOW/DOWNSPOUTS
CONTRIBUTE WATER

AFTER PLANTING

NTS

BIOINFILTRATION AREA PLANTS

5

Butterfly Weed Blue False Indigo
White False Indigo Purple Coneflower
Blue Flag Iris Cardinal Flower
Marsh Blazingstar Brown Eyed Susan
Stiff Goldenrod Bottlebrush Sedge
Fox Sedge Torrey's Rush
Switch Grass

COCONUT FIBER MAT

PLANTS; EQUAL MIX OF 2 1/2" PLUGS.  RANDOM PLANT BOTTOM OF BASIN AREA AS SHOWN. 

Little Devil Nineback

Dwarf Fountaingrass
Autumn Joy Sedum

18" ht.Physocarpus opulifolius 'Little Devil' 

Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln'
Sedum spectabile 'Autumn Joy'

PERENNIALS

SHRUBS

Little Lime Hydrangea Hydrangea paniculata 'Little Lime' 18" ht.
Emerald Mound Honeysuckle Lonicera xylosteum 'Emerald Mound' 18" ht.

Pink Spires Crab 6' ht.Malus Pink Spires
TREES

Fire Bird Crab 6' ht.Malus sergentii 'Select A'

Mohican Viburnum Viburnum lantana 'Mohican' 18" ht.

Happy Returns Daylily 1 gal.Hemerocallis 'Happy Returns'
1 gal.
1 gal.

Emerald Green Arborvitae
Capital Pear
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac Syringa reticulata 'Ivory Silk'

Pyrus calleryana 'Capital'
Thuja emerald 6' ht. 

2" cal.
2" cal.

Autumn Spire Maple
Adirondack Crab

Tor Birchleaf Spirea
Firedance Dogwood

Varieted Hosta

Acer rubrum 'Autumn Spire'
Malus 'Adirondack'

2" cal.
6' ht.

Hosta sieboldiana 'Elegans' 1 gal.

18" ht.
18" ht.

Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor'
Cornus sericea 'Bailadeline'

Densa Yew 18" ht.Taxus cuspidata 'Densata'

7
7
8
0
 
E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2
0
8
 
·

M
I
D

D
L
E

T
O

N
 
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
·

5
3
5
6
2

Existing Office Building 

G

e

n

e

v

a

 

P

a

r

k

w

a

y

 

N

o

r

t

h

E

d

w

a

r

d

s

 

B

o

u

l

e

v

a

r

d

lawn

lawn

snow storage

lawn

(1) Pink Spires Crab

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

(2) Mohican Viburnum

(5) Autumn Joy Sedum

(5) Happy Returns Daylily

(2) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(1) Capital Pear

E

d

w

a

r
d

s
 
B

o

u

l
e

v
a

r
d

(1) Autumn Spire Maple

(1) Autumn Spire Maple

(2) Adirondack Crab

(4) Emerald Mound Honeysuckle

(3) Tor Birchleaf Spirea

(1) Firedance Dogwood

(2) Firedance Dogwood

(3) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(4) Litte Devil Ninebark

(2) Hosta

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A 

BU
IL

DI
NG

 #
2

RE
TA

IL
 D

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T

LA
KE

 G
EN

EV
A,

 W
IS

CO
NS

IN

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN

03/28/2018
CITY SUBMITTAL

 
 

 

L1.1

(2) Ivory Silk Tree Lilac

Proposed Retail Building #2 

Sargent Tina Crab Malus sergentii 'Tina' 6' ht.

(1) Little Lime Hydrangea

(4) Emerald Mound Honeysuckle

(4) Dwarf Fountaingrass

(4) Little Devil Ninebark

(3) Tor Birchleaf Spirea

(4) Little Devil Ninebark

(4) Firebird Crab

(2) Little Lime Hydrangea

(2) Densa Yew

(3) Sargent Tina Crab

(10) Emerald Green Arborvitae



 

1

A
G

i3
2

 V
e

rs
io

n
 1

8
.3

.2
 -

 C
o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
1
9

9
9

-2
0

1
8

 b
y
 L

ig
h
ti
n

g
 A

n
a

ly
s
ts

, 
In

c
.

Date:3/28/2018

Drawn By
Eric Svobda
Lighting Designer
Viking Electric Supply

Phone: 414-773-4451
Email: eric.svoboda@vikingelectric.com

FLOOR PLAN

Revisions:

3.

Page 1 of 2

Scale: Feet

MILLER ELECT. CO
INC
313 WEST VINE
STREET
MILWAUKEE WI
53212
414-265-2521
DEL McCLURE

CONTRACTOR:

R
O

S
S

 A
N

C
H

O
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 -

 L
A

K
E

 G
E

N
E

V
A

R
A

B
 -

 L
IT

H
O

N
IA

 V
E

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

1. REVISED LAYOUT
2. REVISED ZONES

Luminaire Schedule
Tag Symbol Qty Lum. Lumens Total Watts

Calculation Summary
Label

LLF Description
A3-01

CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
OVERALL SITE REV 1 Illuminance

2 7264

Fc 1.18

131.2 0.980 RAB - LOT3T65_D10
A3-02

52.9 0.0 N.A.

1 12807 110.3 0.980 RAB - LOT3T110_D10
A3-02HS

N.A.
PARKING AREA 1 REV 1 WAL-MART Illuminance Fc 1.51 2.4 0.4 3.78 6.00
PARKING AREA LOT 1 Illuminance

2 8959 221.4

Fc 1.39 4.8 0.1 13.90 48.00

0.900 LOT3T110_D10_HS
A5-02

PARKING AREA LOT 2 Illuminance Fc 2.41 54.0 0.2 12.05 270.00
PARKING AREA LOT 3 Illuminance Fc 1.51 15.0

5 12876 554 0.980 RAB - LOT5T110_D10
A5-03

0.0 N.A.

4 18324 645.2 0.980 RAB - LOT5T160_D10

N.A.
PROPERTY LINE REV 1

W3-01 8 6855 441.6 0.900 RAB - ALED3T50 - RWLED3T50 - RWLED3T50SF - WPLED3T50 (TYPE III)
D10 13 1677 260 0.900 RAB - ND6R20D-NDLED6RD-60N-W-W
S 11 2789 381.59 1.000 LITHONIA - LDN6CYL 50/10 LO6AR LS MVOLT EZ10 WM DDB WL
EX 3 12807 330.9 0.900 EXISTING WAL-MART FIXTURE ESTIMATED 12000 LUMEN

Illuminance Fc 0.03 0.4 0.0 N.A. N.A.

ROSS PARKING
Scale: 1 inch= 25 Ft.

THIS SIDE OF THE PARKING LOT JOINS WITH EXISTING WAL-MART PARKING LOT EXISTING WAL-MART LIGHTS

ARE APPROXIMATELY 2' FROM THE PROPERTY LINE, NO WAY TO ACHIEVE .1 OR .0 FOOTCANDLES ON THIS SIDE

OF THE PROPERTY LINE.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 3

MH: 27

A5-02

W3-01

MH: 15

W3-01

MH: 15

S

MH: 7

MH: 7

S

A5-03

MH: 27

A5-03

MH: 27

MH: 10

D10

MH: 10

D10

MH: 10

D10

EX

MH: 27

EX

MH: 27

EX

MH: 27

A5-03

MH: 27

A5-03

MH: 27

MH: 27

A5-02

A5-02

MH: 27

MH: 27

A3-02

MH: 27

A3-01

S

MH: 7

S

MH: 7
MH: 7

S

MH: 7

S S

MH: 7

S

MH: 7MH: 10

D10 D10

MH: 10

MH: 27

A3-02HS

A5-02

MH: 27

A3-02HS

MH: 27

S

MH: 7

MH: 7

S

MH: 7

S

A3-01

MH: 27

A5-02

MH: 27

W3-01

MH: 15 MH: 15

W3-01

W3-01

MH: 15

W3-01

MH: 15

MH: 15

W3-01

W3-01

MH: 15

MH: 10

D10

MH: 10

D10

MH: 10

D10

D10

MH: 10

MH: 10

D10

MH: 10

D10

D10

MH: 10

MH: 10

D10

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.1 1.6 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.6 2.9 3.2 3.2 2.8 2.1 1.2 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.5 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.2 3.6 3.9 4.1 4.0 3.2 2.1 1.1 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 1.2 2.0 2.4 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.7 3.1 3.6 3.9 4.2 4.4 4.2 3.7 2.8 1.8 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7 1.7 2.6 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.2 4.1 3.9 3.4 2.8 2.0 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 1.0 2.3 3.2 3.6 3.5 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 3.8 3.8 3.6 3.4 2.9 2.3 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.6 3.0 3.9 4.1 3.8 3.4 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 2.4 3.7 4.5 4.5 4.0 3.5 3.1 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 1.1 2.9 4.2 4.8 4.6 4.1 3.6 3.1 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 1.6 3.2 4.3 4.8 4.4 4.0 3.5 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.8 2.0 3.3 4.2 4.4 4.1 3.8 3.3 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 1.1 2.2 3.2 3.8 3.9 3.7 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 1.3 2.2 3.0 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.8 1.4 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.4 1.9 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.1 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.3 3.7 4.0 4.1 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.7 3.8 3.9 3.9 4.0 4.1 4.0 3.6 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.7 4.3 5.0 5.6 5.3 5.0 4.7 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.6 4.7 4.8 5.2 5.4 5.4 4.9 4.1 3.7 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.7 2.3 2.7 3.3 3.7 4.8 5.4 6.7 5.7 5.4 4.6 4.7 4.8 5.0 4.8 4.6 4.8 5.5 5.9 6.2 5.2 4.4 3.6 3.2 2.8 2.4 1.8 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.5 3.6 3.9 4.4 4.1 4.0 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.2 3.0 3.3 4.0 4.0 4.1 3.8 3.2 2.4 2.1 2.0 1.6 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 0.6 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.1 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 0.9 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 6.3 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 1.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 45.1 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 0.0 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 35.3 0.1 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 1.4 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 0.0 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 3.1 0.1 7.7 1.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 48.0 7.1 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.5 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 33.8 5.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 6.3 0.1 3.1 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 45.1 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 35.3 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 3.1 0.1 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 1.0 0.1 3.1 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 3.1 20.8 0.2 35.3 7.2 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 6.6 50.7 0.2 52.9 9.8 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 1.8 11.6 0.2 9.2 3.0 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.2 1.0 1.4 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 1.1 1.7 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.4 0.4 0.8 1.4 2.0 2.5 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 1.1 2.3 3.5 3.2 12.2 9.8 1.4 0.6 1.8 9.1 7.6 1.0 0.6 1.9 9.3 7.7 1.0 0.5 2.4 9.6 6.7 0.7 0.5 2.6 9.8 7.3 3.3 8.0 7.8 3.2 1.5 1.8 4.8 8.4 6.1 4.9 10.5 6.1 1.0 0.9 1.6 2.4 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.3 2.7 8.7 13.3 8.0 7.4 13.2 10.1 6.8 11.6 11.1 4.4 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.5 2.5 2.5 1.7 1.3 1.1 1.6 2.3 2.0 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 2.0 2.8 3.2 3.2 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.3 2.0 4.6 6.5 4.2 4.1 6.6 5.4 3.8 6.0 5.7 2.6 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.7 1.2 2.3 3.1 3.4 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.6 2.1 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4 2.5 3.2 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.7 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.7 2.6 3.3 3.5 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.9 2.7 3.2 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.5 2.1 2.8 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.1 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.1 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.4 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.3 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.8 4.1 4.4 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.0 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.6 4.0 4.5 4.9 4.9 4.6 4.0 3.7 3.1 2.6 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.5 6.1 5.2 4.6 3.9 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.8 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.6 2.2 2.8 3.2 3.7 4.3 5.1 5.7 5.9 5.2 4.4 3.8 3.3 2.9 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.6 4.9 5.3 5.8 5.1 4.2 3.1 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.4 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.7 2.2 2.4 2.8 3.5 4.6 4.9 5.1 4.7 3.7 2.9 2.5 2.2 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 1.8 2.7 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 0.2 1.4 2.6 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.1 1.5 3.0 3.5 3.1 2.5 2.2 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.3 0.1 1.8 3.5 3.9 3.5 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.4 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 0.1 2.2 5.0 4.8 3.9 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.3 3.3 4.7 0.0 2.2 5.4 5.3 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.9 7.6 11.8 0.0 2.3 6.1 5.9 4.3 3.1 2.5 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 3.1 8.1 12.7 0.0 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.2 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.9 5.5 8.6 0.0 2.1 4.4 4.4 3.6 2.8 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.2 8.1 12.5 0.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.2 8.3 12.9 0.0 1.5 2.9 3.4 3.0 2.4 2.2 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.9 5.5 8.7 0.0 1.4 2.5 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.3 3.2 8.1 12.5 0.0 1.2 2.2 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.2 3.2 8.3 12.9 0.0 0.9 1.8 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.2 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.8 5.5 8.6 0.0 0.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.9 2.1 3.1 8.0 12.4 0.0 0.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.9 1.6 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 2.0 3.0 8.1 12.8 0.0 0.9 1.8 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.8 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.7 5.4 8.5 0.0 1.2 2.3 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.0 2.2 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.8 2.9 7.9 12.3 0.0 1.4 2.6 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.5 3.2 3.3 3.2 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.0 12.7 0.0 1.5 2.9 3.5 3.0 2.5 2.2 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.9 3.7 3.7 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.5 5.3 8.5 0.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.2 3.2 4.0 4.0 3.7 3.2 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.8 7.9 12.3 0.0 2.1 4.5 4.5 3.7 2.8 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.4 4.3 4.2 3.9 3.3 2.6 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.0 12.8 0.0 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.3 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.5 4.5 4.3 4.0 3.4 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.6 5.3 8.6 0.0 2.3 6.2 6.1 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.5 4.4 4.3 3.9 3.3 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.9 7.9 12.4 0.0 2.2 5.4 5.2 4.3 3.0 2.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.2 3.2 4.0 4.0 3.7 3.2 2.5 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 3.0 8.1 12.7 0.0 2.2 4.9 4.7 3.8 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.1 2.9 3.7 3.7 3.4 3.0 2.4 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.7 5.4 8.5 0.0 1.8 3.4 3.9 3.4 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 1.0 2.6 3.2 3.3 3.1 2.7 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.9 7.8 12.1 0.0 1.5 3.0 3.5 3.0 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.1 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.8 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.8 7.7 12.1 0.0 1.3 2.5 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.9 1.8 2.3 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 3.4 4.9 0.0 1.1 2.2 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.9 1.6 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 0.4 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.8 1.3 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.9 2.4 2.3 3.1 3.6 4.9 5.1 5.7 4.9 4.1 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.3 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.8 4.1 4.5 5.1 4.5 4.1 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.7 2.3 2.9 3.0 3.9 4.3 5.1 5.6 6.2 5.2 4.5 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.3 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.8 2.4 2.8 3.4 3.7 4.7 5.2 6.5 5.2 4.7 3.7 3.4 2.8 2.4 1.8 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.5 2.7 3.6 4.0 4.4 4.8 4.8 4.6 3.9 3.5 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.7 5.0 4.7 4.1 3.6 3.2 2.6 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 1.7 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.2 2.8 3.1 3.2 3.4 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.1 2.5 2.9 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.3 3.0 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.8 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 1.9 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.7 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.5 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.1 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.4 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 0.7 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.2 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1
0.1 0.2 0.4

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3

0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.4

0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9

0.6 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5

0.3 0.3

0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.2

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.6 1.0 0.4

1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.8 2.1 1.3

2.1 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.4 3.7 3.9 4.0 3.3 2.4 1.3

2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.9 3.4 3.8 4.1 4.3 4.3 3.9 3.0 2.0 0.1

3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.4 2.7 3.2 3.6 4.0 4.2 4.2 4.0 3.7 3.1 2.3 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1

3.6 3.3 3.0 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.3 2.8 3.2 3.5 3.8 3.9 3.8 3.6 3.1 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1

3.9 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 2.9 2.5 2.1 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2

4.5 4.2 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.3

4.8 4.3 3.9 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

4.7 4.3 3.8 3.2 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

4.4 4.3 4.0 3.6 3.0 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7

4.0 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.7 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.6 3.5 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7

3.1 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7

2.5 2.7 2.7 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4

1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4

1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6

1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7

1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8

1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.5 2.1 2.0 2.0 0.7 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.4 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8

1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 1.3 2.2 2.3 1.0 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 1.1 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.0 2.2 1.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.5 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1

0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.3 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.5 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.2 2.9 2.8 2.5 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1

0.9 1.3 1.7 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.4 4.6 4.6 4.3 4.3 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.7 4.5 4.4 3.9 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2

0.9 1.4 2.0 2.5 3.1 3.6 4.2 5.0 5.6 5.9 5.5 5.0 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.8 5.2 5.6 6.3 5.4 4.8 4.0 3.6 3.0 2.6 2.1 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2

0.7 1.2 1.8 2.3 2.7 3.1 3.9 5.2 5.8 6.2 5.6 4.7 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.4 4.2 4.1 5.2 5.8 6.5 5.6 5.0 3.5 3.1 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2

1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6

1.6 0.9 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6

25.3 9.7 1.0 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

51.3 24.0 1.6 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6

14.9 7.0 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6

0.5 0.6 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6

0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7

9.7 6.2 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8

54.0 29.7 2.7 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9

34.9 16.8 2.2 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0

3.0 2.2 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.8 1.3 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2

1.3 21.4 49.8 10.8 0.5 1.5 24.3 53.2 12.1 0.7 1.7 24.3 53.2 12.2 0.6 2.5 32.0 52.0 9.0 0.4 2.5 32.0 52.0 10.4 6.3 9.3 5.7 1.8 1.4 3.1 8.3 9.1 7.3 40.0 48.7 7.1 0.7 0.9 1.6 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.3

0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 1.1 0.3 2.2 18.8 44.4 9.9 0.6 1.1 15.2 38.3 8.7 0.7 1.3 15.0 38.3 8.6 0.6 1.7 19.4 36.0 6.8 0.4 1.8 19.7 36.5 8.4 7.8 13.0 7.2 2.2 1.6 3.6 9.9 11.1 6.9 25.3 32.9 5.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 2.5 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4

0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 1.0 1.6 5.5 12.3 10.4 6.0 10.3 13.0 7.4 9.0 13.5 7.6 2.2 3.0 5.2 1.6 0.7 0.7 1.8 3.4 1.1 0.7 0.7 1.4 3.5 1.1 0.6 0.6 2.1 3.2 0.9 0.6 0.6 2.2 3.5 1.8 3.9 5.9 3.5 1.4 1.4 2.1 4.6 5.1 2.4 3.1 3.4 1.1 1.0 1.3 2.2 2.8 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4

0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.7 4.6 9.6 8.7 5.0 8.6 10.1 6.1 7.6 10.3 6.4 2.1 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.5 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.6 2.6 3.2 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5

0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 2.3 3.6 3.5 2.9 3.6 4.0 3.0 3.2 3.8 2.6 1.7 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.9 2.9 3.4 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5

0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 2.2 3.0 3.5 3.5 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.5

0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.4

0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.6

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.9

1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.7 2.1

1.0 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.3

0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4

0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3

0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3

0.5 0.6 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.9 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.4 0.7 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1

0.4 0.6 1.0 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5

0.4 0.6 1.1 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3

0.3 0.6 1.2 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1

0.3 0.6 1.3 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9

0.3 0.6 1.5 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6

0.2 0.6 1.7 2.8 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5

0.3 0.6 2.0 3.2 3.5 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.1 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4

0.3 0.5 2.2 3.6 3.9 3.7 3.3 2.8 2.1 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.1 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.2 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.2 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7 2.1 2.4 2.7 2.9 3.1 3.3 3.3 3.1 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.1 3.2 3.1 3.0 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.5 3.8 4.0 4.3 4.3 4.1 3.6 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.8 3.3 3.7 4.1 4.4 4.4 4.2 3.7 3.4 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.0 3.1 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.4 5.0 5.4 5.8 5.2 4.5 3.9 3.4 2.9 2.3 1.8 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6 2.2 2.7 3.2 3.8 4.3 5.1 5.5 5.7 5.2 4.5 3.8 3.4 2.8 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.0 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.8 3.2 3.4 3.8 4.0 5.3 5.8 6.4 5.5 4.6 3.6 3.2 2.7 2.3 1.7 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.4 2.0 2.5 2.9 3.3 4.0 5.3 5.8 6.1 5.4 4.3 3.4 3.0 2.6 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.3 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.9 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.5 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 2.0 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.4 3.0 2.9 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.2 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.8 2.6 2.7 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.4 2.5 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.5 2.9 3.3 2.9 2.4 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 1.6 3.2 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.3 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 2.1 4.5 4.5 3.7 2.7 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.5 2.9 2.1 2.2 5.3 5.1 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.6 5.9 9.0 5.9 2.2 6.2 6.1 4.3 3.1 2.5 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.4 0.3

2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 3.1 8.5 14.8 8.6 2.2 5.4 5.2 4.3 3.0 2.5 2.1 1.2 0.6 0.4 0.3

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.9 6.1 9.4 6.2 2.2 4.9 4.7 3.9 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7 0.4 0.3

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.0 6.8 10.3 6.9 1.8 3.4 3.9 3.5 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.3 0.7 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.3 8.8 15.0 9.0 1.5 3.0 3.6 3.2 2.6 2.3 1.8 1.2 0.8 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.3 3.0 6.2 9.5 6.3 1.4 2.6 3.1 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.5

2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.3 3.0 6.8 10.2 6.9 2.4 2.7 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.5

2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 3.2 8.7 15.0 8.9 1.9 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5

2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.9 6.2 9.5 6.3 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5

2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.9 6.7 10.2 6.9 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5

2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 3.1 8.6 15.0 8.9 1.6 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.5

1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.7 6.1 9.4 6.3 2.1 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5

1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.7 6.6 10.1 6.8 2.5 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.1 0.8

1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.5 15.0 8.8 2.7 3.2 2.8 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.2 0.8

1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.6 6.0 9.4 6.2 3.1 3.7 3.3 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.2 0.8

1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.6 6.5 10.0 6.8 3.8 4.1 3.6 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.3 0.7

1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.9 8.5 15.0 8.9 5.0 4.9 4.1 2.9 2.5 2.0 1.2 0.7

3.4 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.6 6.0 9.4 6.2 5.6 5.5 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.4 2.6 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.7 6.6 10.1 6.9 5.7 5.5 4.3 3.1 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.2 2.5 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.9 3.0 8.6 15.0 8.9 5.1 5.0 4.1 2.9 2.4 2.0 1.2 0.6

3.6 3.1 2.4 1.9 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.8 6.0 9.4 6.2 3.9 4.2 3.6 2.7 2.4 1.9 1.2

1.0 2.7 3.4 3.5 3.3 2.8 2.3 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.8 6.6 10.0 6.8 3.1 3.6 3.3 2.5 2.2 1.8 1.1

1.0 2.3 2.9 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.9 8.3 14.6 8.5 2.6 3.1 2.7 2.2 1.9 1.5 1.0

0.9 1.9 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.3 4.9 7.6 5.0 2.3 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.2 0.9

0.9 1.7 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.2 1.7

0.8 1.4 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1

0.8 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8

0.8 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.7

0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7

0.8 1.0 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.3 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.2 1.9 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.7 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.8 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.6

0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 1.9 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.9 2.2

0.7 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 1.8 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.6 1.9

0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 1.7 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.7

0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.6 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4

0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.5 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.4 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.2

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.3 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0

PARKING AREA 1 REV 1 WAL-MART



 

2

A
G

i3
2

 V
e

rs
io

n
 1

8
.3

.2
 -

 C
o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
1
9

9
9

-2
0

1
8

 b
y
 L

ig
h
ti
n

g
 A

n
a

ly
s
ts

, 
In

c
.

Date:3/28/2018

Drawn By
Eric Svobda
Lighting Designer
Viking Electric Supply

Phone: 414-773-4451
Email: eric.svoboda@vikingelectric.com

CUTSHEETS

Revisions:

3.

Page 2 of 2

Scale: Feet

CONTRACTOR:
MILLER ELECT. CO
INC
313 WEST VINE
STREET
MILWAUKEE WI
53212
414-265-2521
DEL McCLURE

R
O

S
S

 A
N

C
H

O
R

E
D

 S
IT

E
 -

 L
A

K
E

 G
E

N
E

V
A

R
A

B
 -

 L
IT

H
O

N
IA

 V
E

 O
P

T
IO

N
S

1. REVISED LAYOUT
2. REVISED ZONES

Image File : type a3-01 - LOT3T65_D10 Image File : TYPE A3-02HS - LOT3T65_D10_HS
Image File : TYPE A3-01 POLE - PS4-11-25D2 Image File : type a3-02 - LOT3T110_D10

Image File : type a5-03 - LOT5T160_D10
Image File : TYPE D10 - NDLED6RD-50N-W-W

Image File : type W3-01 - WPLED3T50
Image File : type a5-02 - LOT5T110_D10



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description of Proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division: 
The applicant is submitting a Certified Survey Map (CSM) land division for a proposed new land 
division to combine 2 parcels to construct a Single Family Residence at 962 Mariane Terrace. 

As proposed, the newly created lot will be located within the Estate Residential – 1 zoning 
district, the proposed lot size is .34 acres. 
 
The following agenda item will discuss the Conditional Use Permit request to raze and rebuild a 
single family residence on the newly created Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Review the on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) as it complies with the Comprehensive 
Plan as identified. 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Certified 
Survey Map (CSM): as submitted for the property as Tax Key No. ZSY00016 

Agenda Item:12 

Applicant: 
Serendipity and Sunsets LLC 
P.O. Box 649 
Cary, IL 60013 

Request: 
962 Mariane Terrace 
Certified Survey Map CSM Land Division on 
Mariane Terrace for Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 















CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION  
18-R26 

 
A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Serendipity and Sunsets 
LLC., P.O. Box 649, Cary IL 60013, to allow for a use of SR-4 zoning setbacks in the ER-1 
zoning district to construct a new Single Family Residence. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Serendipity and 
Sunsets LLC. to construct a new Single Family Residence at 962 Mariane Terrace Tax Key No. 
ZSY00016; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on April 5, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Serendipity and Sunsets LLC., .O. Box 
649, Cary IL 60013, to allow for a new Single Family Residence located in the (ER- 1) zoning 
district, for Tax Key No. ZSY00016 as Recommended by the Plan Commission on April 16, 
2018 to include: 
 

A. Affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations: 
1. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, 
Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on 
nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic 
factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other 
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation 
of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to 
guide development. 



4. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities 
or services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into 
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the 
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

7. Note that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the 
SR-4 zoning district, and results in the same setbacks on all four sides of the 
building over the current home. 

8. The additional condition that the location of all approved building setbacks be 
verified by an on-site inspection by the Building Administrator prior to pouring 
building foundation walls. 

 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23th day of 
April 2018. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
                                                                                                     Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
        Lana Kropf, City Clerk 
 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new residence for the 
Serendipity and Sunsets LLC. located at 962 Mariane Terrace. The project would begin with the Razing 
of the existing residence. The applicants have carefully designed the proposed residence to maintain 
building setbacks and to maintain impervious surface coverage on the property. 
 
The second story elevation will meet the maximum allowances for building elevations this proposed 
residence as designed will be a maximum of 33’4”. This compares to a maximum permitted height of 35 
feet in both the SR-4 and ER-1 zoning districts Tax Key No. ZSY00016. 
 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Proposed Site Plans:(Sheet S-1) (dated 03/02/2018 respectively) 
The Site Plan demonstrates that the proposed home maintains all existing setback distances provided by 
the existing home.The proposed home provides the following setback measurements: 
 

Required in SR-4 Existing Home  Proposed Home 
Min Street Yard Setback 25 feet   12.6 feet to front of home same 12.6 feet 
Minside Setback  no closer than now 12.4 feet to nearest point same 12.4feet 

Southeast ElevationPlan: Sheet A-4: 
The upper elevation provided on Sheet A-7 depicts the proposed building’s tallest height. The Zoning 
Ordinance measures building height from the lowest exposed grade to the mid-point height of the tallest 
roof plane. This elevation depicts a maximum height of about 33’4” feet, which complies with the height 
limit of 35 feet for both the ER-1 and the SR-4 zoning districts. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

Agenda Item: 13 

Applicant: 
Serendipity and Sunsets LLC. 
P.O. Box 649 
Cary, IL 60013 
 

Request: 
962 Mariane Terrace 
Conditional Use Permit 
SR-4 Setbacks in ER-1 Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZSY00016 



 2

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 
 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes all existing setbacks provided on all four sides of the proposed 
home. The proposed maximum height of the home, at about 35 feet, is lower than the permitted height 
of the zoning district. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 
 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 



 3

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in the same setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current home. 

3. Finally, staff recommends that the following additional condition of approval be attached to the 
approval: 

a. That the location of all approved building setbacks be verified by an on-site inspection by 
the Building Administrator prior to pouring building foundation walls. 

 





























LI
N

E 
O

F 
D

EC
K

 A
B

O
V

E

- 7/ 2 WIDE
- TILE FLR
- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 89'-0"

GALLERY

FAMILY ROOM
- 26/6 x 23/6

- TILE FLOOR
- 8/10  CEILING

- BEAMED CEILING
- F.F. 90'-0"

- 15/ 2 x 8/ 11
- TILE FLOOR
- F.F. 89'-0"

STORAGE

EXERCISE ROOM
- 15/ 2 x 15/ 0

- CARPET SQUARE
FLOOR

- 8/10 CLG
- F.F. 90'-0"

- 11/1 x 13/3
-TILE FLOOR

- TILE CEILING
- 8/10  CEILING

- F.F. 90'-0"

GAME AREA

UNEXCAVATED
2-CAR GARAGE

ABOVE

- 11/  1 x 22/ 5
- STONE VENEER ON

CONCRETE SLAB
- ELEV: 88'-5"

TERRACE

7"
STEP

COVERED
PORCH
ABOVE

THIS DOCUMENT, AND THE IDEAS AND DESIGNS
INCORPORATED HEREIN, ARE THE PROPERTY OF

LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES , INC, AND MAY NOT
BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY PURPOSE

OTHER THAN THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
STRUCTURE(S) BY LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES,

INC. THE EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF
LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. IS REQUIRED

FOR ANY OTHER USE.
(If this note is not RED this is an unauthorized reproduction)

P.
O

. B
O

X 
92

6 
   

 L
AK

E 
G

EN
EV

A,
 W

I  
53

14
7

PH
 - 

(2
62

) 2
45

-9
03

0 
   

 F
AX

 - 
(2

62
) 2

45
-0

85
6

W
W

W
.L

O
W

EL
LM

AN
AG

EM
EN

T.
CO

M

LO
W

EL
L 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T,

 IN
C.

 
CU

ST
O

M
 H

O
M

ES
 - 

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

- L
AN

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PI
C

TU
R

E 
W

IN
D

O
W

STEPS
ABOVE

FU
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T
C

A
B

IN
ET

S

ELEVATOR

16
R

 U
P 

TO
M

A
IN

 F
LO

O
R

LANDING
ABOVE

4'-6" WIDE STAIR

SQUARE FOOTAGE TABULATION
LOWER LEVEL        2,089     SF
FIRST FLOOR:          3,123      SF
SECOND FLOOR:     3,460      SF

TOTAL:                      8,672      SF

7"
STEP

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

STEPS
ABOVE

STEPS
ABOVE

STORAGE
BELOW
STAIRS

SAFE ROOM

PRE-CAST CONCRETE
GARAGE SLAB ABOVE

W
A

LL
 L

IN
E 

A
B

O
V

E

7'-10" SOFFIT

DART BOARD

3/0 DOOR 2/8 DOOR

3/
0 

D
O

O
R

7'
-1

0"
 S

O
FF

IT

7'-10" SOFFIT

7'
-1

0"
 S

O
FF

IT

MECHANICAL/
STORAGE

4/0 C.O.

SHOWER
3/0x 7/0 CTRL

H.H.

S.H.

WORKSHOP

BATH #4
- 7/0 X 13/10
- TILE FLOOR
- 7'-10" CEILING
- F.F. 90'-0"

2/6 PR
DOOR

2/6 PR
DOOR

SHELVES

SHELVES

PR
EP

SIN
K

WINE
REF.

U.C.
REF

BAR

EJECTOR
CROCK

SUMP
CROCK

FLOOR
DRAIN

B
O

IL
ER

- 17/4 x 13/4
- UNFINISHED
- 9'-10" CEILING
- F.F. 88'-10"

8'-10" CEILING

LOWER STAIR HALL

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

ST
EE

L 
B

EA
M

3/0x 7/0
SLIDING
FRENCH
DOOR W/
TRANSOM

3/0x 7/0
SLIDING
FRENCH
DOOR W/
TRANSOM

BI CAB W/ SHELVES ABOVE

HIGH WINDOWS

TV

B
I C

A
B

 W
/ S

H
EL

V
ES

 A
B

O
V

E

TV

8'-10" CEILING

8'-10" CEILING
7'-10" SOFFIT

8'
-1

0"
 C

EI
LI

N
G

7'
-1

0"
 S

O
FF

IT

8'
-1

0"
 C

EI
LI

N
G

7'
-1

0"
 S

O
FF

IT

8'
-1

0"
 C

EI
LI

N
G

8'
-1

0"
 C

EI
LI

N
G

SHELVES

SH
EL

V
ES

FLOOR
DRAIN

MECHANICAL/
STORAGE

- 43/0 x 15/4
- UNFINISHED
- 9'-10" CEILING
- F.F. 88'-10"

GENERATOR



3/6  WOOD PANEL
DOOR W/  LITE AND
TRANSOM

DN
4 R

7"
STEP

H
A

N
D

 R
A

IL
H

A
N

D
 R

A
IL

H
A

N
D

 R
A

IL

POWDER
ROOM

- 4/6 x 8/ 8
- TILE FLOOR
- 9' CLG

- 7/ 2 WIDE
- WOOD FLR
- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 100'-0"

GALLERY STORAGE
AREA

SITTING COUNTER

48"
REF/
FREEZ

GARB

GREAT ROOM
- 26/6 x 23/6

- WOOD FLOOR
- 10/0  CEILING

- F.F. 100'-0"

TRANSITIONAL
LINEAR DIRECT VENT

GAS FIREPLACE

TRANSITIONAL
LINEAR DIRECT VENT

GAS FIREPLACE

FOYER
- 15/ 2 x 8/ 11
- WOOD FLOOR
- 12' HIGH  BARREL CEILING
- F.F. 100'-0"

OFFICE
- 16/ 0x 15/ 0

- WOOD FLOOR
- WOOD BEAMS
- 10/0  CEILING

- F.F. 100'-0"

HALL
- 5/6 WIDE
- WOOD FLR
- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 100'-0"

3/
0 

D
R

 W
/

TR
A

N
SO

M

BUILT-IN
CABINET W/
SHELVES

SUNROOM
- 11/ 10 x 15/ 0

- WOOD FLOOR
- WOOD CEILING

- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 100'-0"

- 14/1 x 13/3
- WOOD FLOOR

- WOOD CEILING & BEAMS
- 10/0  CEILING

- F.F. 100'-0"

DINING ROOM

- 21/3 x 12/9
- WOOD FLOOR
- 10/0  CEILING

- F.F. 100'-0"

KITCHEN - 8/2 x 10/ 5
- WOOD FLOOR
- 10/0  CEILING

PANTRY
- 17/0 x 10/5
- TILE FLOOR
- 10/0  CEILING
- F.F. 100'-0"

LAUNDRY ROOM

2-CAR GARAGE
- 33/10 x 25/ 10
- EPOXY
- F.F. 98'-6"

W
O

O
D

ST
EP

DN
4 R3/ 0

20 MIN
DOOR

- 9/ 9 x 22/ 5
- CAMURU DECKING

- CABLE RAIL
- ELEV: 99'-5"

WOOD DECK

2"
STEP

H
A

N
D

 R
A

IL

- 11/3 x 6/ 0
- TILE FLOOR
- 10/0  CEILING
- F.F. 100'-0"

- 5/ 0 x 9/ 4
- STONE PAVERS
- F.F. 99'-5"

EQUIPMENT
CLOSET

COVERED
PORCH

FULL HEIGHT
STORAGE CABINETS

FU
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T
C

A
B

IN
ET

S

UPPER
CABINET

THIS DOCUMENT, AND THE IDEAS AND DESIGNS
INCORPORATED HEREIN, ARE THE PROPERTY OF

LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES , INC, AND MAY NOT
BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY PURPOSE

OTHER THAN THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
STRUCTURE(S) BY LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES,

INC. THE EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF
LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. IS REQUIRED

FOR ANY OTHER USE.
(If this note is not RED this is an unauthorized reproduction)

P.
O

. B
O

X 
92

6 
   

 L
AK

E 
G

EN
EV

A,
 W

I  
53

14
7

PH
 - 

(2
62

) 2
45

-9
03

0 
   

 F
AX

 - 
(2

62
) 2

45
-0

85
6

W
W

W
.L

O
W

EL
LM

AN
AG

EM
EN

T.
CO

M

LO
W

EL
L 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T,

 IN
C.

 
CU

ST
O

M
 H

O
M

ES
 - 

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

- L
AN

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PR 2/6  FULL
LIGHT FRENCH
DRS.

WINDOWS-FULL
HEIGHT

W
IN

D
O

W
S-

FU
LL

H
EI

G
H

T
W

IN
D

O
W

S-
FU

LL
H

EI
G

H
T

WINDOWS-FULL
HEIGHT

WINDOWS-FULL
HEIGHT

WINDOWS-FULL
HEIGHT

WINDOWS W/
TRANSOM

PI
C

TU
R

E 
W

IN
D

O
W

LIBRARY
- 26/ 2 x 15/ 0

- WOOD FLOOR
- BEAMED CEILING

- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 100'-0"

COAT
CLOSET

PASS-
THRU
CAB

FULL
HGT
CAB

- 10/ 9 x 4/ 6
- CAB'S ALL SIDES

ISLAND

L SINK

GALLEY SINK

UPPER
CABINET

3/O  CASED
OPENING W/
TRANSOM

2/8  DOOR
OPENING W/
TRANSOM

STEPS
ABOVE

5/0x 8/ 0  CO

WINDOWS W/
TRANSOM

RUN SMURF TUBE IN
FIREPLACE CHASE
FOR FUTURE TV
ABOVE FIREPLACE

TRANSOM
WINDOWS

30" REF.

WASHDRY

FU
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T
C

A
B

IN
ET

S

H
A

N
G

IN
G OPTION -

STAINLESS STEEL
CABINETS W/
WOOD DOORS

MODINE
HEATER

MOTOR
COURT

W
A

LK

DW

ELEVATOR

18
R

 U
P 

TO
2N

D
 F

LO
O

R

LANDING
ABOVE

16R DN TO
LOWER
LEVEL

36"W
FULL
HGT
CAB

4'-6" WIDE STAIR

TA
B

LE

3/ 0
DOOR

2/ 4
DOOR

PR 1/6
DRS.

B
U

IL
T-

IN
SH

EL
V

ES

- 4/6 WIDE
- WOOD FLR
- 10/0 CLG
- F.F. 100'-0"

HALL

DROP
ZONE

2'-0" WIDE
WINDOWS

2"
STEP

3/0x 8/ 0
SLIDING
FRENCH
DOOR W/
TRANSOM

48" RANGE
60" HOOD

3/0x 8/ 0
SLIDING
FRENCH
DOOR W/
TRANSOM

5/0x 8/ 0  CO

FAUX
WINDOW
HIGH

3/
0

WATERPROOF
EPDM DECK

SQUARE FOOTAGE TABULATION
LOWER LEVEL        2,089     SF
FIRST FLOOR:          3,123      SF
SECOND FLOOR:     3,460      SF

TOTAL:                      8,672      SF



P.
O

. B
O

X 
92

6 
   

 L
AK

E 
G

EN
EV

A,
 W

I  
53

14
7

PH
 - 

(2
62

) 2
45

-9
03

0 
   

 F
AX

 - 
(2

62
) 2

45
-0

85
6

W
W

W
.L

O
W

EL
LM

AN
AG

EM
EN

T.
CO

M

LO
W

EL
L 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T,

 IN
C.

 
CU

ST
O

M
 H

O
M

ES
 - 

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

- L
AN

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

THIS DOCUMENT, AND THE IDEAS AND DESIGNS
INCORPORATED HEREIN, ARE THE PROPERTY OF

LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES , INC, AND MAY NOT
BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY PURPOSE

OTHER THAN THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
STRUCTURE(S) BY LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES,

INC. THE EXPRESS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF
LOWELL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. IS REQUIRED

FOR ANY OTHER USE.
(If this note is not RED this is an unauthorized reproduction)

GUEST  SUITE
- F. FLR: 113'-2 3/4"

- 15/0 x 18/ 2
- CARPET

- 9/0  CEILING

- F. FLR: 113'-2 3/4"
- 16/ 4 x 13/4
- CARPET

- 9/0  CEILING

WALK-IN CLOSET
- 18/6 x 15/4
- CARPET
- 9/0  CEILING

S.H. H.H.CTRL

PAIR 1/6
DOORS

BUILT-IN
SHLVS

(6) RECESSED NICHES
W/ LIGHTS - (2 WIDE x
3 HIGH)

66" x 36"
FREE-STANDING
SOAKING TUB

MASTER
BEDROOM

HALL

6/ 0  VAN.

- 4/6 WIDE
- CARPET
- 9/0  CEILING

MASTER
BATHROOM

OPTIONAL
BEDWALL

- 20/5 x 11/2
- TILE FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

KING
HEADBOARD 66"

- 27/ 3x 15/ 0
- CARPET

- 13/6  CEILING   (RAISED)

5/
 0

 V
A

N
.

BEDROOM  2

3/0 x 6/0
ISLAND

OPTIONAL
BEDWALL

- 9/0 x 7/2
- TILE FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

BATH #2

- F. FLR: 113'- 2 3/4"
- 21/9x 26/ 4
- CARPET

- 9/0  CEILING

- 10/ 5 x 7/3
- TILE FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

BATH # 3

WASH

BONUS ROOM

DRY

LAUNDRY
ROOM 2

- 10/0 x 11/4
- TILE FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

5/6 x 6/6
QUEEN

3/0

SECRET
DOOR
HIDDEN
BOOKCASE
DOOR

6/
 0

 F
U

LL
 L

IG
H

T
FR

EN
C

H
 D

O
O

R
S

DINING ROOM
BELOW

OPTIONAL
BEDWALL

H
A

N
D

 R
A

IL

JU
LI

ET
B

A
LC

O
N

Y

COVERED
PORCH
BELOW

ELEVATOR

LANDING
BELOW

18R DN
TO MAIN
FLOOR

4'-6" WIDE STAIR

FOYER
BELOW

STEPS
BELOW

2/ 6
DOOR

SH
EL

V
ES

- 10/ 2 x 4/ 6
- WOOD FLR
- 9/0  CLG

UTILITY
CLOSET

3/ 0
DOOR

H
A

N
G

IN
G

3/ 0
DOOR

KING

3/ 0
DOOR

PR 2/ 0
DOORS

WC
- 3/ 6 x 6/ 4
- TILE FLR
- 9/0  CLG

MASTER SHOWER
- 8/ 0 x 4/ 0
- TILE FLR
- 9/0  CLG

LINEAR DRAIN 

DRYING
AREA
FLUSH -

NO CURB

2/ 8
DR

3/ 3
C.O.

18"
LINEN
CAB

SHELVES

3/ 0
DOOR

- F FLR: 13'-2 3/4"
- 24/ 7 x 5/0
- CARPET

- 9/0  CEILING

SEASONAL CLOSET

OPEN RAIL

- F.FLR: 113'-2 3/4"
- 5/6 WIDE

- WOOD FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

STAIR
HALL

WC
- 6/ 3 x 4/ 0
- TILE FLR
- 9/0  CLG

2/ 6
DOOR

2/ 8
SLIDING
BARN
DOOR

- 7/ 5 x 8/ 9
- TILE FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

GUEST
BATH

8/
 8

 V
A

N
.

2/ 0
DR

LINEN

S.H.CTRL

SHOWER
- 3/ 9 x 6/ 3
- TILE FLR

GLASS
ENCLOS

2/ 8
DR

FAUX
WINDOW

WALL LINE BELOW

HIGH FAUX
WINDOW

ABOVE ENTRY
DOOR

9' WALL HGT

UNFINISHED
ATTIC

5/6 x 6/6
QUEEN

UNFIN
ATTIC

UNFIN
ATTIC

S.H.CTRL

SHOWER
- 3/ 2 x 7/ 4
- TILE FLR

GLASS
ENCLOS

2/ 8
DR

41"
FREE-STANDING
JAPANESE
SOAKING TUB

WC
- 6/ 1 x 3/ 8
- TILE FLR
- 9/0  CLG

2/ 8
DOOR

15" DEEP
LINEN
CAB

- 5/ 6 x 9/4
- CARPET

- 9/0  CEILING

BR #2
CLOSET

S.H.

CTRL

SHOWER
- 6/ 1 x 3/ 9
- TILE FLR

GLASS
ENCLOS

2/ 8
DR

2/ 8
DOOR

WC
- 3/ 6 x 7/ 3
- TILE FLR
- 9/0  CLG

LINEN

2/ 4
DOOR

- F.FLR: 113'-2 3/4"
- 5/6 WIDE

- WOOD FLOOR
- 9/0  CEILING

STAIR
HALL

SITTING
AREA

C
EI

LI
N

G
SL

O
PE

S

C
EI

LI
N

G
SL

O
PE

S

C
EI

LI
N

G
SL

O
PE

S

G
LA

SS
EN

C
LO

S

BARREL
CEILING

L 
SI

N
K

9' WALL HGT

9' WALL HGT

13'-6" FLAT
CEILING HGT

18"
LINEN
CAB

HIGH WINDOWSHIGH WINDOWS

2/ 8
PKT
DOOR

2/ 4
PKT
DOOR

PAIR 1/6
DOORS

2/8
DOOR

2/8
DOOR

DOOR
TO

MATCH
WOOD
WALL

WOOD
WALL

WOOD
WALL

FAUX
WINDOW
HIGH

OVAL WINDOW

A
TT

IC
A

C
C

ES
S

PA
N

EL

SQUARE FOOTAGE TABULATION
LOWER LEVEL        2,089     SF
FIRST FLOOR:          3,123      SF
SECOND FLOOR:     3,460      SF

TOTAL:                      8,672      SF









 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting to amend the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) to install an exterior 
window that would allow expediting of the ticket sales and concessions. 

The applicant is also requesting additional signage in conjunction to the exterior sales request 

 Hanging “Concessions to Go” sign located under the marquee and above the 
public sidewalk with adequate elevation in accordance to the required sign 
clearances. 

 Movable Sandwich board sign (which currently is not permitted as a standard 
request) albeit, with the allowances of the (PIP) Plan Commission & Common 
Council can choose to allow. 

The change will require the recommendation for or against the amendment on a site plan review. 

The proposed request does not require additional parking spaces. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 
Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plan 
(PIP) be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use 
Map. This map recommends the land use category for the subject property. This category allows 
for neighborhood-scale mixed use development. The proposed PIP zoning is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 
All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base 
zoning standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned 
Development (PD), the current zoning of the property, provides that comparison zoning district. 
The project is requesting the following:  

As no other changes are proposed to the site that would change existing conditions, no other 
flexibilities are requested.  
 

Applicant: 
Shad Branen 
1464 Devon Rd. 
Burlington , WI 53105 

Request: 
Geneva Theater to Amend Precise 
Implementation Plan (PIP) to allow for the 
exterior window installation for sales. 

Agenda Item: 14 
 



 

 

 
Approved Land Uses: 
The PIP enables the following land uses as permitted: 

 Planned Development (PD) 
 

Zoning Map Amendment / PIP - Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP 

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Development / Precise Implementation Plan 
(PIP) step, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning 
Map amendment to PIP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 
 
A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors 
of Item 2, of the following. 
 

1. The proposed PIP furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department 
of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA). 

 
2. One or more of the following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed on 

the current Official Zoning Map: 
a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 

conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 
b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 
 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the 
environs of the subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3 of the 
following: 
 



 

 

1. The proposed PIP does not further the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined 
in Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). 
 

2. One or more of the following factors have not arisen that are not properly addressed 
on the current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into 
conformity with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an 

amendment to the Official Zoning Map. 
 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain the 
desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related 
to the environs of the subject property. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Precise 
Implementation Plan (PIP) as submitted, all other zoning requirements have been met. 

2. Reject the request for the sandwich board sign. 

 







CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION 
18-R32 

 
A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Peggy Roth Trust, 837 
Bayview Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to install a boat slip.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Peggy Roth 
Trust for a boat slip installation; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on April 5, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Peggy Roth Trust, 837 Bayview Drive, 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to install a boat slip at the same address, in the Estate Residential – 1 
(ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZGR00007 to include all affirmative findings of fact and 
note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23th day of 
April 2018. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 
The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to propose a new boat pier at 837 Bayview 
Drive. The pier would involve a wood pier with 9 wood cribs filled with rock. Detailed crib and decking 
designs are included in the submittal. The 2 covered slips are proposed to be 13’ x 31 feet. The boat slip 
would be parallel to the main pier and would be used for private boat docking and summer boat storage. 

The City conditions all Conditional Use Permits for boat slips and piers on approval from the DNR. A 
copy of the Wisconsin DNR Water Resources permit application is included in the submittal. 
 
As proposed, the new boat slip meets the 100-foot maximum length for piers (per Section 90-142 of the 
Lake Geneva Municipal Code).The pier meets the 12.5-foot setback from the adjacent riparian zone 
boundary (Section 90-143(e)). The pier does not seem to create an unlawful obstruction, although this 
will be confirmed by the required review by Wisconsin DNR.  
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 
The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Ordinance. 

 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 
George & Peggy Roth 
Peggy Roth Trust 
837 Bayview Dr. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

Request: 
Peggy Roth Trust 
837 Bayview Dr.  
Lake Geneva, WI53147 
Proposed Conditional Use Permit for a Boat Pier 

Agenda Item: 15 



 

 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



 

 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
3. Staff recommends the following additional condition of approval be attached. 

a. Conditional Use Permit approval is contingent on review and approval of the proposed 
slip by the Wisconsin DNR. 

 

































 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 
The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to propose a newsite plan for the Farmers 
Market located at 330 Broad Street. The applicant is looking are utilizing the public alley way in 
addition removing the vendors from the public Right of Way (ROW) adjacent to the parking stalls on 
Broad St. 

The use of the public alley was identified and discussed at the public works committee without 
opposition of the proposed use. 

The applicant is also expanding the original request of vendors to have for sale to be identified as – 

 “Sales of Homemade / Home Grown Products: cheese, vegetables, bread, fruit, flowers, hummus, oils, 
coffee, crepes, empanadas, sauces, desserts, popcorn, seafood, and crafts”. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 
The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Ordinance. 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

Applicant: 
Geneva Area Foundation 
Sean Payne 
330 Broad Street 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

Request: 
Geneva Area Foundation - Farmers Market 
330 Broad Street 
Lake Geneva, WI53147 
Proposed Conditional Use Permit 

Agenda Item: 16 



 

 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



 

 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 









CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION  
18-R33 

 
A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Horticultural Hall, 330 
Broad Street, to allow the site plan amendment for the use of the public alleyway during the 
Farmers Market Events in the Central Business (CB) zoning district. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Horticultural 
Hall for the use of the public alleyway during the Farmers Market Events at 330 Broad Street 
Tax Key No. ZOP000163; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on April 5, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Horticultural Hall 330 Broad Street, 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to allow for the use of the public alleyway during the Farmers Market 
Events located in the (CB) zoning district,  
 

Tax Key No. ZSY00016 to include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff 
recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23th day of 
April 2018. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
                                                                                                     Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
        Lana Kropf, City Clerk 
 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Description: 
This request is to amend the Official Zoning Map for the parcel located on the West side of Edwards 
Blvd., immediately south of the Aldi Store, to accommodate potential Magic Studio, for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment land use.  The request is to change the zoning of the parcel from Planned 
Development (PD) to Planned Business (PB) zoning district, as identified as an allowable land use in the 
City’s Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

The parcel included in this Zoning Map Amendment request is:  
 Parcel ZA196100004 located at 101 N. Edwards Blvd. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and 
particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map recommends the Planned Business Use land use 
involved in this request. This land use category allows for Planned Business (PB) zoning and land uses-- 
such as the proposed Magic Studio which has a Commercial Indoor Entertainment land use. 
 
The proposed Planned Business (PB) zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommended 
land use category recommended by the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Zoning Map Amendment from Planned 
Development (PD): 
As part of the consideration of a requested Zoning Map Amendment, the Plan Commissionis required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to the Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning district; and, 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments. 
  

Agenda Item: 17 

Applicant: 
TC Productions LLC. 
100 N. Edwards Blvd. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
Zoning Map Amendment to change the existing 
zoning of lot, Tax Key No. ZA196100004 
 from Planned Development (PD) 
 to Planned Business (PB) 



 2

Staff Review Comments: 
The request zoning map amendment would enable the consideration of the proposed Magic Studio for a 
Conditional Use Permit. The Planned Business (PB) zoning district is intended for large & small-scale 
commercial development which is compatible with the desired overall community character of the area 
in general 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Recommendation to 
Common Council: 
 
A proposed Zoning Map Amendment must be reviewed in relation to the following criteria, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2, of the 
following. 

1. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as 
outlined in Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) 

2. One or more of the following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 

3. The proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains the desired consistency of 
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3 of the following: 

1. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment does not further the purposes of the Zoning 
Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). 

2. One or more of the following factors have not arisen that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 



 3

3. The proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Zoning Map Amendment: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Zoning Map 
Amendment as proposed. 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting that the proposal meets 
factors 1, 2a, and 3. Specifically: 

 In regard to Factor 1: the proposal will be consistent with all FEMA requirements;  
 In regard to Factor 2c: the proposal implements the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 

Use Map recommendation for Planned Business development on the subject property; 
and, 

 In regard to Factor 3: the proposal maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as a transition between commercial development to 
the east and south along Edwards Blvd. 

 





CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT RESOLUTION  
18-R34                                                                       

 
A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 100 N. Edwards 
Blvd, TC Productions LLC., to allow for the to the property to be used as Commercial Indoor 
Entertainment land use located in the Planned Business (PB) zoning district. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of TC Productions 
LLC. for the (CUP) located at 100 N. Edwards Blvd Tax Key No. ZA196100004; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on April 5, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to TC Productions LLC. 100 N. Edwards 
Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to allow for the Commercial Indoor Entertainment located in the 
(PB) zoning district Tax Key No. ZA196100004 as Recommended by the Plan Commission on 
April 16, 2018 to include: 

A. To include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations: 
1. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, 
Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 
required site plan, does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on 
nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic 
factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other 
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation 
of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to 
guide development. 

4. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 



5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served 
by, and will not impose an undue burden, on any improvements, facilities, 
utilities, or services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into 
consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the 
Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23th day of 
April 2018. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
                                                                                                     Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
        Lana Kropf, City Clerk 
 



 

Theater Land Use at 100 North Edwards Blvd -  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 16, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 

The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to propose a new commercial building for 

the Tristan Crist Magic Theater. The subject property is located south of the Aldi’s grocery store and 

north of The Ridges multi-family development on the west side of North Edwards Boulevard – across 

the street from Walmart. The property is located in an area with expired Planned Development zoning, 

with Planned Business (PB) as the baseline zoning district. The proposed theater is regulated as an 

Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use by the Zoning Ordinance, which requires a CUP in the PB 

District. A request to amend the Zoning Map from the old Planned Development back to the PB District 

was considered by the Plan Commission tonight, on the immediately preceding agenda item. 

The proposed theater would provide 150 seats, to be served by a parking lot with 52 stalls. This slightly 

exceeds the zoning ordinance requirement of 1 parking stall for every 3 seats. 

The proposed Building Elevations depict a main entrance with wall signage over the doors, at the 

northwest corner of the building. The building will be dominated by windows on its north (front) side 

and will include metal siding with concealed fasteners (per the Zoning Ordinance), and stone veneer. 

The look of the front elevation will wrap around to the east side of the building, which faces Edwards 

Boulevard. The metal and stone exterior materials will also be continued on the south and west sides of 

the building. 

The proposed Landscaping Plan exceeds the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition to 

significant new landscaping, the Plan depicts the preservation of the existing plants located along the 

south property line. The depicted monument sign and wall sign also meet all requirements. 

The proposed Grading and Erosion Control Plan accommodates on-site stormwater management and 

also provides for the management of overland stormwater flows coming through the site from the 

southwest to the northeast. These plans have been carefully reviewed by City Staff and the City’s 

Engineering Consultant. 

Finally, in several of the submittal materials, the term “Phase 1” is used. This notation refers to the 

ability of the site to provide for expansion of the proposed building – most likely to the north. Such 

potential future expansion is not being proposed or reviewed at this time. 

Applicant: 

TC Productions LLC 

100 N. Edwards Blvd. 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 

Public Hearing & Recommendation for a 

Proposed Conditional Use Permit for Indoor 

Commercial Entertainment for a  

Magic Theater at 100 North Edwards Blvd. 

Tax Key No: ZA196100004. 

  

Agenda Item #18 



 

Theater Land Use at 100 North Edwards Blvd -  Page 2 of 3 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 

• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Staff Review: 

The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. The 

project has been carefully designed to address the current state of rough grading on the property and 

existing overland stormwater flows, as well as proposed additional flow from this project. 

Staff notes that potential building expansion will be subject in any and all instances to Site Plan review 

by the Plan Commission. If said expansion involves an expansion of the Theater indoor commercial 

entertainment land use, a revised Conditional Use Permit will be required.  If said expansion involves 

one or more separate businesses, a new Conditional Use Permit will be required for a multi-tenant 

Group Development project. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 

program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan, 

does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 

neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 

property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 

either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 

implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 

plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 

City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 

and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 

impose an undue burden, on any improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by public 

agencies serving the subject property. 



 

Theater Land Use at 100 North Edwards Blvd -  Page 3 of 3 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 

and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 

program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 

the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan, 

does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 

neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 

property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 

either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 

implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 

plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 

City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 

impose an undue burden, on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by 

public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 

proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 

use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

3. Staff recommends that no additional conditions of approval be attached. 

































 
 

 

 

To: The City of Lake Geneva 

From: Mike Slavney, City Planning Consultant, FAICP 

Date: March 13, 2018 

Re: Regulation of Tourist Rooming Houses / Short-Term Rentals 

 

Introduction 

Recent changes to Wisconsin state law have severely restricted the ability of local units of 
government to regulate tourist rooming houses (TRHs) (also known as short-term rental units). 
With the rise of services to advertise and make reservation for TRHs, such as AirBnB and VRBO, 
the City should proactively address this issue. 

This memo summarizes the ability and limitations for regulating and licensing this form of land use. 
City staff is seeking Plan Commission and Common Council views on this issue, in order to prepare 
draft amendments to the Municipal Code for later consideration. 

 

Definition 

Chapter ACTP 72 addresses hotels, motels, and tourist rooming houses. In Section 72.03(20), TRHs 
are defined as: 

All lodging places and tourist cabins and cottages, other than hotels and motels 
in which sleeping accommodations are offered for pay to tourists and 
transients. It does not include private boarding houses or rooming houses not 
accommodating tourists or transients, or bed and breakfast establishments 
regulated under ACTP 73. 

The state also allows local government to limit TRH use to a maximum of 180 days during a 
calendar year, and to no less than seven consecutive days. In this respect, TRHs could be a form of 
accessory land use to the primary use of the property as a dwelling unit. The following amendments 
add a definition for Tourist Rooming Houses and permit it as an accessory land use by right in every 
Zoning District and add it to the table of land uses.  

 

  



03/13/18   Page 2 of 7 

Part One 

1. Add new definition “Tourist Rooming House” (land use) to describe the new category of rental in 
Section 98-034: 

 

Tourist Rooming House (land use): See Sec. 98-206(8)(y). 

 

Part Two 

2. Add to Accessory Land Uses (Subsection 98-206(8)), as new subsection (y): 

 

(y) Tourist Rooming House 

Description: Includes all lodging places and tourist cabins and cottages, other than hotels and 
motels, in which sleeping accommodations are offered for pay to tourists and transients. It does 
not include private boarding houses or rooming houses not accommodating tourists or transients, 
or bed and breakfast establishments regulated under ACTP 73.  

1. Permitted by Right: All zoning districts. 

a. Land Use Requirement: 

Tourist Rooming House shall only be located as an Accessory Land Use within a 
Single-Family Detached Dwelling Unit as defined in Section 18-55(a). 

b. Annual City License Required: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall operate only during the valid period of an Annual 
City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License for each calendar year. Operating 
a Tourist Rooming House without a current version of a valid license shall be 
considered a violation of this Zoning Ordinance, and subject to the penalties of Section 
18-257. The following information shall be provided on an annual basis, prior to 
issuance of said Annual City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License: 

i. Completed City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House Application, which 
includes the property owner name, address, and phone number; the designated 
operator’s name, address, and phone number; the period of operation of up to 
180 days in a calendar year, which must be consecutive; 

ii. A current floor plan for the Tourist Rooming House at a minimum scale of 
one-inch equals 4 feet, and Site Plan of the property at a minimum scale of one-
inch equals ten feet showing on-site parking spaces and trash storage areas; 

iii. General Building Code Inspection by City, and submittal of Official Building 
Code Inspection Report with no outstanding compliance orders remaining; 

iv. Fire Code Inspection by City, and submittal of Official Fire Code Inspection 
Report with no outstanding compliance orders remaining; 

v. Proof of valid property and liability insurance for the dwelling unit; 

vi. State of Wisconsin Tourist Rental House License; 

vii. Seller’s Permit issued by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue; 

viii. City of Lake Geneva Room Tax Permit; and, 



03/13/18   Page 3 of 7 

ix. Payment of an Administrative Fee, set annually by the City Board, to cover the 
costs to the City of administering the above. 

The City of Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House License shall be issued with the 
completion of the above requirements. 

c. Property Management Requirements: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall be managed consistent with the following 
requirements: 

i. The total number of days of operation within any calendar year shall not 
exceed 180 days, which must be consecutive. This Period of Tourist Rooming 
House Operation shall be specified by the property owner in the required 
annual Lake Geneva Tourist Rooming House Application.  

ii. The Minimum Rental Period shall be a minimum of seven consecutive days by 
any one party. 

iii. The Maximum Rental Period shall be no more than 180 consecutive days by 
any one party. 

iv. Similar facilities in which single-family detached homes are available for less 
than seven days, more than 180 days, or throughout the year, are a different 
land use that falls within the Indoor Commercial Lodging land use category. 

v. The Maximum Number of Occupants shall not exceed the total number 
licensed by the State of Wisconsin or two per bedroom plus two additional 
occupants, whichever is less. 

vi. The Tourist Rooming House shall be operated by the property owner or by a 
property manager explicitly designated in the valid Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application as the “Designated Operator”. 

vii. The property owner’s and the Designated Operator’s names, addresses, and 
24-hour phone numbers shall be provided in the City of Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application and shall be updated within 24 hours upon any 
change in the property manager or the property manager contact information. 

viii. The Designated Operator must reside within, or have their business located 
within, 25 miles of the Tourist Rooming House parcel. 

ix. The Designated Operator must be available by phone 24 hours, seven days a 
week, during the period of operation designated in the Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House Application. 

x. Each tourist rooming house shall provide and maintain a Guest Register and 
shall require all guests to register their true names and addresses before 
allowing occupancy. The Guest Register shall be kept intact and available by 
the Designated Operator for inspection by representatives of the City for at 
least one year from the day of the conclusion of the period of operation. 

xi. Each tourist rooming house shall maintain the following written Business 
Record for each rental of the tourist rooming house: the true names and 
addresses of any person renting the property, the dates of the rental period 
(which must be a minimum of seven consecutive days), and the monetary 
amount or consideration paid for the rental. The Business Record shall be kept 



03/13/18   Page 4 of 7 

intact and available by the Designated Operator for inspection by 
representatives of the City for at least one year from the day of the conclusion 
of the period of operation. 

d. Property Operational Requirements: 

Each Tourist Rooming House shall be operated per the following requirements: 

i. The “Requirements for Tourist Rooming House Guests” form provided by the 
City of Lake Geneva to summarize City requirements for Tourist Rooming 
Houses, and the Site Plan for the subject property clearly depicting guest 
parking spaces and the rear yard, shall be posted on the inside of the front 
door of each tourist rooming house throughout its period of operation.  

ii. Parking Requirements: 

[a] A minimum of two off-street parking spaces shall be provided on the 
subject property for each Tourist Rooming House. If the Tourist 
Rooming House provides three or more bedrooms, an additional on-site 
parking space is required for each additional bedroom over two. 

[b] All guest parking for vehicles and trailers shall be within a parking space 
designated on the Site Plan, on an area paved with concrete or asphalt. 

[c] All guest vehicles and trailers may only park on-site. Street parking for 
guests is not permitted.  

[d] No parking is permitted on gravel, lawn, or planter bed areas. 

iii. Site Appearance Requirements: 

[a] Aside from a changing mix of guests and their vehicles, there shall be no 
evidence of the property being used as a Tourist Rooming House visible 
on the exterior of the subject property. 

[b] No exterior signage related to the Tourist Rooming House is permitted, 
other than the property address. 

[c] No outdoor storage related to the Tourist Rooming House land use is 
permitted, except for typical residential recreational equipment, seating, 
and outdoor cooking facilities which are permitted only within the rear 
yard. 

[d] No recreational vehicle, camper, tent, or other temporary lodging 
arrangement shall be permitted to accommodate guests. 

iv. Neighborhood Impact Requirements: 

[a] No outdoor activity shall occur between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
7:00 a.m. 

[b] At all times, no noise, lighting, odor or other impacts from the subject 
property shall be detectable at the property line at levels exceeding the 
requirements of Article VII of the Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance. 

[c] No vehicular traffic shall be generated by the Tourist Rooming House at 
levels exceeding those typical for a detached single-family dwelling unit. 

v. Tourist Rooming House Advertising: 

[a] No outdoor advertising is allowed on the subject property. 



03/13/18   Page 5 of 7 

[b] The Tourist Rooming House shall not be advertised for availability in 
any form of media unless the required City of Lake Geneva Tourist 
Rooming House License has been issued. 

e. Penalties and License Revocation 

i. Violations of the requirements for Tourist Rooming Houses, the provisions 
of the Tourist Rooming House License, and all other the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance are subject to separate daily fines per Section 98-936. 
Violations will be issued to, and will be the responsibility of, the property 
owner. 

ii. The Annual Tourist Rooming House License may be revoked for more than 
two violations of the requirements of the License, the requirements specific to 
Tourist Rooming Houses, the License, or the remainder of Zoning Code. 

 

Part Three 

The following changes add Tourist Rooming Houses as an accessory use permitted by right in every 
zoning district. 

 

3a. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(1)(a)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3b. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(a)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3c. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(b)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3d. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(c)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3e. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(d)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 



03/13/18   Page 6 of 7 

3f. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(e)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3g. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(2)(f)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3h. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(a)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3i. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(b)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3j. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(c)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3k. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(d)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3l. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(e)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3m. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(f)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3n. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(g)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3o. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(g)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 



03/13/18   Page 7 of 7 

 

3p. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(h)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3q. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(i)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

3r. Add the following Subsection to Section 98-105(3)(j)2.c.1): 

Tourist Rooming House (see Section 98-206(8)) 

 

Part Four 

4. Amend Section 98-203(1) “Table of Land Uses- Accessory Uses” (Section 206(8)) to add row (y) 
under Accessory Land Uses: 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
(y) Tourist 
Rooming 
House 

  

 

 

 

 



Resolution 18-R35 
 

A resolution confirming the Mayor’s Citizens Appointments to the Committees and Commissions of the City of 
Lake Geneva  
 
 WHEREAS, the appointments are as follows; 

Committee/Commission   Member Name    Term Expiration 
 
Oak Hill Cemetery Board   Arlene Krohn    May 1, 2020 
Oak Hill Cemetery Board   Maureen Allenstein   May 1, 2020 
Lake Geneva Public Library Board  Ron Henningfeld   May 1, 2021 
City Plan Commission    Michael Krajovic   May 1, 2021 
Historic Preservation    Jackie Getzen    May 1, 2021 
Board of Park Commissioners   Barbara Phillips    May 1, 2021 
Police and Fire Commission   Jim Connors    May 1, 2023 
Tourism Commission    Chris Gelting    May 1, 2019 
Tourism Commission    Charlie Lorenzi    May 1, 2019 
Tourism Commission    Andrew Fritz    May 1, 2019 
Tourism Commission    Tammie Carstensen   May 1, 2019 
Zoning Board of Appeals, Chairperson  Alan Kupsik    May 1, 2021 
Zoning Board of Appeals   Todd Krause    May 1, 2021 
Avian Committee    Beverly Leonard   May 1, 2020 
Avian Committee    Jill Rodriguez    May 1, 2020 
 
 
     
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva that the proper city official(s) confirm 
the Mayor’s appointments to the non standing committees and commissions, on this 23rd day of April, 2018. 

 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



                           3/30/18 - 4/13/18

Total:
$15,714.57

Checks over $5,000:
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

City of Lake Geneva
Finance, License, & Regulation Committee

April 17, 2018

              Prepaid Checks



DATE: 04/13/2018                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                        PAGE:   1

TIME: 12:59:07                                            PAID INVOICE LISTING

ID:   AP450000.WOW

                                                         FROM  03/30/2018  TO  04/09/2018

VENDOR #  INVOICE #                                                      INV. DATE   P.O. NUM   CHECK #  CHK DATE     CHECK AMT   INVOICE AMT/

                   ITEM DESCRIPTION                    ACCOUNT NUMBER                                                                 ITEM AMT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CHASE     CHASE CARD SERVICES

          7531-3/18                                                       03/21/18               67208   04/06/18      4,072.15       4,072.15

                    01  EXXONMOBIL-OBORN REIMB         1100001391                                                                        30.32

                    02  CITY OF EAUCLAIRE-WCMA PARKING 1114205330                                                                        14.00

                    03  LISMORE HOTEL-ICMA CONF        1114205331                                                                       278.00

                    04  JMAC SUPPLY-SMOKE DETECTOR     4055105350                                                                        77.95

                    05  HAMPTON-ARBOR CONF-FOSTER      1132135410                                                                       288.00

                    06  SERVICE CASTER-DOLLY WHEELS    1132105340                                                                        53.18

                    07  CITY OF MADISON-SFTY CLASS PKG 1132105330                                                                        11.05

                    08  IAE-ELEC INSPCT CODE BOOK      1124005310                                                                        33.46

                    09  OFFCSPLY.COM-COMPTROLLER CHAIR 1115105310                                                                       182.17

                    10  COMPLYRIGHT-1095C FILING       1115105310                                                                        15.90

                    11  STAPLES-STYLUS PENS            4234505310                                                                        19.98

                    12  SUBWAY-POLLWORKER DINNER       1114305311                                                                        63.30

                    13  SMPLCE ELSE-KROPF/ELDER LUNCH  1114305311                                                                        37.80

                    14  CONSTANT CONTACT-EMS           1129005413                                                                       344.25

                    15  CONSTANT CONTACT-CH            1115105450                                                                       344.25

                    16  GODADDY-DOMAIN RENEWALS 2018   1115105450                                                                        30.34

                    17  GODADDY-UCC SSL RENEWALS 2018  1115105450                                                                       169.99

                    18  WALMART-PENS,POSTITS,FASTENERS 1114305311                                                                        17.66

                    19  WIMC-CERT                      1114305332                                                                       100.00

                    20  HOME DEPOT-RETURN STAKES       4332101701                                                                        -7.49

                    21  COMFORT INN-ACTV SHTR TRNG-JP  1122005144                                                                        82.00

                    22  HOMEDEPOT-SOLAR SALT,LT BULBS  1122005350                                                                       385.08

                    23  WIPARAMEDIC-CLASS-KOLLER       1122005332                                                                       195.00

                    24  ZIPTAPE-LABELS                 1122005340                                                                        34.56

                    25  HOMEDEPOT-STAKES               4332101701                                                                        14.98

                    26  HOMEDEPOT-SHOP VAC             1122005350                                                                        29.97

                    27  HOMEDEPOT-WINDOW BLINDS        1122005350                                                                       236.85

                    28  LAERDAL-ACLS/PALS INSTR KITS   1122005610                                                                       453.05

                    29  USPS-WAUKESHA                  9900005312                                                                         1.42

                    30  BAYSCAN-PAPER                  9900005511                                                                       162.00

                    31  BAYSCAN-EPSON TM T88IV         9900005514                                                                       373.13

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:           4,072.15

EQUAL     EQUAL RIGHTS DIVISION

          250-3/18                                                        03/31/18              700059   04/05/18          7.50           7.50

                    01  WORK PERMITS-MAR               1100002422                                                                         7.50

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:               7.50

MUTUA     MUTUAL OF OMAHA

          RE040518                                                        04/01/18               67209   04/06/18      1,289.66       1,289.66

                    01  CEM DISABILITY-APR             4800005137                                                                        29.16



DATE: 04/13/2018                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                        PAGE:   2

TIME: 12:59:07                                            PAID INVOICE LISTING

ID:   AP450000.WOW

                                                         FROM  03/30/2018  TO  04/09/2018

VENDOR #  INVOICE #                                                      INV. DATE   P.O. NUM   CHECK #  CHK DATE     CHECK AMT   INVOICE AMT/

                   ITEM DESCRIPTION                    ACCOUNT NUMBER                                                                 ITEM AMT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

          RE040518                                                        04/01/18               67209   04/06/18      1,289.66       1,289.66

                    02  PKG DISABILITY-APR             4234505137                                                                        16.81

                    03  CH DISABILITY-APR              1110205134                                                                       179.95

                    04  LIB DISABILITY-APR             9900005137                                                                        56.63

                    05  PD DISABILITY-APR              1110205134                                                                       568.95

                    11  STR DISABILITY-APR             1110205134                                                                       210.41

                    12  UTIL DISABILITY-APR            1100001634                                                                       154.50

                    13  WWTF DISABILITY-APR            1100001634                                                                        73.25

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:           1,289.66

VERIZON   VERIZON WIRELESS

          9804182505                                                      03/23/18               67210   04/06/18        335.04         335.04

                    01  CELL CHGS-MAR                  1122005221                                                                       335.04

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:             335.04

                                                                                                    TOTAL --- ALL INVOICES:           5,704.35



DATE: 04/13/2018                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                        PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:00:15                                            PAID INVOICE LISTING

ID:   AP450000.WOW

                                                         FROM  04/11/2018  TO  04/13/2018

VENDOR #  INVOICE #                                                      INV. DATE   P.O. NUM   CHECK #  CHK DATE     CHECK AMT   INVOICE AMT/

                   ITEM DESCRIPTION                    ACCOUNT NUMBER                                                                 ITEM AMT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

LGUTI     LAKE GENEVA UTILITY

          RE041218                                                        04/01/18               67409   04/12/18      4,855.95       4,855.95

                    02  11.1999.00 VETS PK STORAGE BLD 1152015226                                                                       140.72

                    03  11.2000.00 VETS PARK           1152015226                                                                       152.54

                    04  11.2001.00 VETS CONCESSION     1152015226                                                                       140.52

                    05  3.0420.00 1070 CAREY           1132105226                                                                        45.50

                    06  3.0424.00 1065 CAREY           1132105226                                                                       142.57

                    07  3.0425.00 1055 CAREY           1132105226                                                                        56.94

                    09  4.0307.00 818 GENEVA           4234505220                                                                        29.09

                    11  4.0402.00 918 MAIN ST LIB      9900005222                                                                       243.00

                    12  4.0404.00 COOK & MAIN          1152005226                                                                       142.73

                    13  4.0466.00 BEACH HOUSE          4054105399                                                                       140.81

                    14  4.0468.00 WRIGLEY DR/TOP       4055105226                                                                       394.10

                    15  4.0469.00 LOWER RIVIERA        4055205226                                                                       254.10

                    17  4.0472.00 IRRIGATION LIB PARK  1152005227                                                                        36.91

                    18  4.0474.00 LIB PK RESTROOM      1152005226                                                                       146.07

                    19  5.0100.00 626 GENEVA           1116105226                                                                       348.66

                    20  5.0101.00 626 GENEVA ST PF     1116105226                                                                        60.53

                    21  5.0114.00 255 MILL/MUSEUM      1151105226                                                                       203.33

                    22  5.0138.00 720 GENEVA           1152005227                                                                        29.09

                    24  5.0253.00 FLAT IRON PK RESTRM  1152005226                                                                     1,204.45

                    25  5.0255.00 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  1152005226                                                                        30.48

                    26  5.0257.00 WRIGLEY DR STATUE    1152005227                                                                        29.09

                    27  5.0280.00 BAKER/WILLOW SMN PK  1152005226                                                                        77.41

                    28  5.0300.00 255 MILL ST FP       1151105226                                                                       190.93

                    29  6.0034.00 CEMETERY RD          4800005226                                                                        44.42

                    30  6.0550.00 WILLIAMS ST PK       1152005227                                                                        29.09

                    31  7.0415.00 730 MARSHALL         1122005226                                                                       465.46

                    33  8.0452.00 SAGE ST/DUNN FLD     1152005226                                                                        77.41

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:           4,855.95

MOELL     AMANDA MOELLER

          MILEAGE 4/11/18                                                 04/11/18               67410   04/12/18         52.76          52.76

                    01  TRNG REIMB 96.8 MILES          1121005330                                                                        52.76

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:              52.76

SOMAR     SOMAR TEK LLC/SOMAR ENTERPRISE

          100872                                                          03/28/18               67411   04/12/18        225.40         225.40

                    01  PORTABLE RADIOS                5021005800                                                                       225.40

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:             225.40

SONRI     SONRISE CONSTRUCTION INC

          02/28/18                                                        02/28/18               67412   04/12/18      3,262.50       3,262.50



DATE: 04/13/2018                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                        PAGE:   2

TIME: 13:00:15                                            PAID INVOICE LISTING

ID:   AP450000.WOW

                                                         FROM  04/11/2018  TO  04/13/2018

VENDOR #  INVOICE #                                                      INV. DATE   P.O. NUM   CHECK #  CHK DATE     CHECK AMT   INVOICE AMT/

                   ITEM DESCRIPTION                    ACCOUNT NUMBER                                                                 ITEM AMT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

          02/28/18                                                        02/28/18               67412   04/12/18      3,262.50       3,262.50

                    01  WHITE RIVER PED BRIDGE PMT #2  4352005300                                                                     3,262.50

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:           3,262.50

UNEMP     UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

          8906689                                                         03/31/18              700060   04/12/18        691.98         691.98

                    01  UE-PARKING                     1110005154                                                                       335.00

                    02  UE-CH                          1110005154                                                                       356.98

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:             691.98

VERIZON   VERIZON WIRELESS

          9804558025                                                      04/01/18               67413   04/12/18        921.63          40.01

                    01  AIR CARDS-MAR                  1129005221                                                                        40.01

          9804720738                                                      04/03/18               67413   04/12/18        921.63         881.62

                    01  AIR CARDS-MAR                  1121005221                                                                       881.62

                                                                                                              VENDOR TOTAL:             921.63

                                                                                                    TOTAL --- ALL INVOICES:          10,010.22



Fund #
 1.   General Fund 11 131,861.80$          

 2.    Debt Service 20 -$                      

 3.   TID #4 34 -$                      

 4.   Lakefront 40 42,843.13$            

 5.   Capital Projects 52 58,781.69$            

 6.   Parking 42 2,313.14$              

 7.   Cemetery 48 417.55$                 

 8.   Equipment Replacement 50 -$                      

 9.   Library Fund 99 1,381.76$              

10.  Impact Fees 45 42,660.00$            

11. Tourism Commission 47 -$                      

Total All Funds $280,259.07

City of Lake Geneva
Finance, License, & Regulation Committee

April 17, 2018

Accounts Payable 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE UNPAID ITEMS OVER $5,000

FINANCE, LICENSE, & REGULATION COMMITTEE
4/17/2018

280,259.07$       

ITEMS > $5,000

Glen Fern Construction - Flat Iron Park Restroom Remodel (Draw 2) 77,854.65$         
Lake Geneva Utility Commission - Impact fees 42,660.00$         
Johns Disposal Service - April Refuse & Recycling Service 38,842.65$         
Gage Marine - Pier Repairs 38,116.69$         
Alliant Energy - April Electric Bills 19,451.48$         
Schenck Business Solutions - 2017 Audit 9,500.00$           

Balance of Other Items 53,833.60$         

TOTAL UNPAID ACCOUNTS PAYABLE



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   1

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADVAND   ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES

 A40000009151         03/31/18  01  LANDFILL USE-BULK               1136005296                       04/24/18            1,785.00

                                02  LANDFILL USE-98.69 TON          1136005296                                           1,394.55

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              3,179.55

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               3,179.55

ALLIANT  ALLIANT ENERGY

 RE041018             04/18/18  01  ACCT #026273-HAVENWOOD FLSH     1134105222                       04/24/18               12.14

                                02  ACCT #057300-SOUTH/WELLS FLSH   1134105222                                              17.32

                                03  ACCT #064442-WELLS ST FLSH      1134105222                                              19.48

                                04  ACCT #072470-MAIN ST LITES      1134105223                                             338.76

                                07  ACCT #108571-1055 CAREY         1132105222                                             200.70

                                08  ACCT #111395-BROAD ST TRFC LT   1134105223                                              53.63

                                11  ACCT #148614-HWY 50/12 FLASHER  1134105222                                              15.35

                                12  ACCT #152472-W COOK SIREN       1129005222                                              18.14

                                13  ACCT #161895-RIVIERA ELEC       4055305222                                           1,791.60

                                14  ACCT #165231-BEACH HOUSE        4054105222                                             298.35

                                15  ACCT #178450-INTCHG N/SHER SPR  1134105223                                              77.54

                                16  ACCT #182684-HWY 120/BLMFLD LT  1134105223                                              96.56

                                17  ACCT #243254-LIBRARY PARK       1152005222                                              22.15

                                18  ACCT #252132-EDWDS BLVD/WM SIG  1134105223                                              80.27

                                20  ACCT #293132-SAGE ST/DUNN SRN   1129005222                                               5.03

                                21  ACCT #303645-MS2 STREET LTS     1134105223                                             303.67

                                22  ACCT #327582-DUNN FIELD         1152005922                                             200.10

                                23  ACCT #339772-SNAKE RD/HWY 50    1134105222                                              14.15

                                24  ACCT #363673-VETS PK/TWNLN RD   1152015222                                             143.22

                                25  ACCT #393713-MUSEUM 256 MILL    1151105222                                             697.31

                                27  ACCT #401872-WELLS ST FLSH      1134105222                                              14.91

                                28  ACCT #414694-HOST DR WATER TWR  1122005222                                             211.45

                                29  ACCT #422323-GENEVA SQ TRF LT   1134105223                                              34.87

                                30  ACCT #433371-LIBRARY            9900005222                                             991.03

                                31  ACCT #457625-LOT LITE GNVA ST   1134105223                                             335.96

                                32  ACCT #462852-WELLS ST FLSH      1134105222                                              77.41

                                33  ACCT #549716-FLAT IRON PARK     1152005222                                             172.40



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   2

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ALLIANT  ALLIANT ENERGY

 RE041018             04/18/18  34  ACCT #566211-W HWY 50 BLK FLSH  1134105222                       04/24/18               14.15

                                35  ACCT #595515-LIB PARK RESTROOM  1152005222                                             175.65

                                36  ACCT #602235-724 WILLIAMS ST    1134105223                                              27.08

                                37  ACCT #604445-S LAKESHORE DR FL  1134105222                                              11.57

                                38  ACCT #622184-S LAKESHORE DR     1152005222                                              29.76

                                39  ACCT #630016-COOK ST/HWY 50     1134105223                                              36.33

                                40  ACCT #661112-OAK HILL CEMETERY  4800005222                                             198.45

                                41  ACCT #684954-730 MARSHALL SRN   1129005222                                              28.62

                                43  ACCT #688465-TENNIS CTS/SCHL    1152005222                                              16.12

                                44  ACCT #718894-OAK HILL CEMETERY  4800005222                                              30.99

                                46  ACCT #732492-389 EDWDS TRF LT   1134105223                                             127.77

                                47  ACCT #734115-HWY 50/HWY 12 LTS  1134105222                                              31.22

                                48  ACCT #738154-RUSHWOOD PARK      1152005222                                              27.16

                                49  ACCT #758433-700 GENEVA ST LOT  1134105223                                             251.94

                                50  ACCT #758940-1065 CAREY ST      1132105222                                             492.03

                                51  ACCT #759513-STREET LIGHTS      1134105223                                           6,880.19

                                52  ACCT #800930-VETS PK SCOREBRD   1152015222                                             166.85

                                53  ACCT #837813-SEM PARK RESTROOM  1152005222                                              21.25

                                54  ACCT #895526-HWY 50 TRF LT      1134105223                                             135.09

                                55  ACCT #912610-GEORGE ST FLSHR    1134105222                                              11.87

                                56  ACCT #923482-1070 CAREY ST      1132105222                                             241.63

                                59  ACCT #926683-FLAT IRON PK/WRGL  1152005222                                              18.42

                                60  ACCT #932215-DODGE ST FLSHR     1134105222                                              11.27

                                63  ACCT #940353-IMPND 1070 CAREY   1121005222                                              21.43

                                64  ACCT #952816-FIRE HOUSE         1122005222                                             879.21

                                65  ACCT #957203-HWY 120/TWNLD RD   1134105222                                              83.22

                                66  ACCT #965570-201 EDWARDS SIREN  1129005222                                              19.99

                                67  ACCT #969933-CITY HALL          1116105222                                           2,688.68

                                68  ACCT #973443-VETS PARK PAVLN    1152015222                                             214.13

                                69  ACCT #980910-DONIAN PARK        1152005222                                             211.90

                                70  ACCT #998403-COBB PARK          1152005222                                              25.10

                                71  ACCT #2626179751-HVNWD/MAIN     1134105223                                              78.91

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:             19,451.48

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:              19,451.48



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   3

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

AMYS     AMY'S SHIPPING EMPORIUM

 15486                03/30/18  01  DELTRAN-BATTERY RETURN          4234505312                       04/24/18               53.94

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 53.94

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  53.94

AT&TL    AT&T LONG DISTANCE

 RE041018             04/04/18  01  LONG DIST-APR                   1100001391                       04/24/18               22.85

                                03  LONG DIST-APR                   4800005221                                               0.84

                                04  LONG DIST-APR                   1132105221                                               3.82

                                05  LONG DIST-APR                   1122005221                                               5.73

                                06  LONG DIST-APR                   9900005221                                              18.07

                                07  LONG DIST-APR                   1121005221                                             107.02

                                08  LONG DIST-APR                   1116105221                                               0.02

                                09  LONG DIST-APR                   1112005221                                               0.24

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                158.59

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 158.59

AUROE    AURORA EAP

 17795                03/26/18  01  2ND QTR FEE                     1110205135                       04/24/18              937.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                937.50

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 937.50

AUROM    AURORA MEDICAL GROUP

 IN175                03/31/18  01  EMP CLINIC-MAR                  1110205133                       04/24/18            3,075.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              3,075.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               3,075.00

BEARG    BEAR GRAPHICS

 793361               03/27/18  01  VOTER # SLIPS-APR ELECTION      1114305311                       04/24/18              229.26

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                229.26

 793678               03/29/18  01  ABSENTEE ENVELOPES              1114305311                       04/24/18              231.73

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                231.73



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   4

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BEARG    BEAR GRAPHICS

 793686               03/29/18  01  ABSENTEE ENVELOPES OUTER        1114305311                       04/24/18              222.78

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                222.78

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 683.77

BREEZY   BREEZY HILL NURSERY

 I-212464             03/28/18  01  TOP SOIL-8 YDS                  1132135430                       04/24/18              192.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                192.00

 I-212481             03/29/18  01  TOP SOIL-6 YDS                  1132135430                       04/24/18              144.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                144.00

 I-212483             03/29/18  01  TOP SOIL-6 YDS                  1132135430                       04/24/18              108.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                108.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 444.00

BUMPL    BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS

 662-286129           04/04/18  01  TAP PLUG                        1132105351                       04/24/18                4.29

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  4.29

 662-386548           04/12/18  01  BLACK SPRAY PAINT               1132105351                       04/24/18               12.98

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 12.98

 662-386551           04/12/18  01  BRAKE FLUID                     1132105351                       04/24/18               15.38

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 15.38

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  32.65

CDW      CDW GOVERNMENT INC

 MDC3556              04/20/18  01  USB FLASH DRIVES                1114305310                       04/24/18               41.15

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 41.15

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  41.15

CES      CES



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   5

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CES      CES

 LKG/002422           04/11/18  01  CM-WIRE #LKG/046083             1134105261                       04/24/18              -39.73

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                -39.73

 LKG/045916           04/02/18  01  LIGHT BULBS FOR BUILDING        1132105350                       04/24/18              189.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                189.00

 LKG/046083           04/09/18  01  WIRE-MAIN ST LIGHT RPR          1134105261                       04/24/18              495.20

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                495.20

 LKG/046113           04/10/18  01  PVC/COUPLINGS-COOK & MAIN RPR   1134105260                       04/24/18               22.78

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 22.78

 LKG/046147           04/11/18  01  STR LIGHT REPAIR-MAIN ST        1134105261                       04/24/18              305.65

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                305.65

 LKG045680            03/22/18  01  HEX IMPACT DRIVER               1152015340                       04/24/18               92.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 92.00

 LKG045738            03/26/18  02  MAIN ST PIPE REPAIR             1134105261                       04/24/18              175.11

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                175.11

 LKG045766            03/27/18  01  MAIN ST PIPE REPAIR             1134105261                       04/24/18              381.48

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                381.48

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,621.49

CINTAS   CINTAS CORP

 5010536201           04/10/18  01  DISINFECTANT,MEDS,S/C           1132105390                       04/24/18               53.83

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 53.83

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  53.83

CSIM     CSI MEDIA LLC

 3181861              03/28/18  01  PT CLERK OFFICE PUBLICATION     1114305399                       04/24/18              396.88



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   6

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CSIM     CSI MEDIA LLC

 3181861              03/28/18  02  F/T FRT COUNTER PUBLICATION     1115105399                       04/24/18              472.65

                                03  HUMAN RES PUBLICATION           1115105399                                             529.49

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              1,399.02

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,399.02

DCPORT   DC PORTABLE WELDING &

 1622                 01/04/18  01  GIANT VAC TANK REPAIR           1132145430                       04/24/18              237.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                237.50

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 237.50

DES      DATA EQUIPMENT SERVICES

 911                  04/10/18  01  MODEM SVC-APR                   4234505221                       04/24/18              990.00

                                02  MODEM SVC-APR                   4054105340                                              45.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              1,035.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,035.00

DUNN     DUNN LUMBER & TRUE VALUE

 717483               03/26/18  01  SANDPAPER,ROLLER,TRAY LINER     1152005352                       04/24/18               42.70

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -2.14

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 40.56

 717681               03/27/18  01  BATTERIES                       1152005350                       04/24/18               38.97

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.95

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 37.02

 717823               03/28/18  01  LIGHT BULBS                     4055205350                       04/24/18                9.69

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  9.69

 718165               04/02/18  01  SANDING BELTS                   1152005350                       04/24/18                6.99

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.35

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  6.64



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   7

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DUNN     DUNN LUMBER & TRUE VALUE

 718276               04/03/18  01  PAINT,TAPE                      1132105340                       04/24/18               16.78

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.84

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 15.94

 718304               04/03/18  01  DRILL BITS                      1132105340                       04/24/18                8.97

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.45

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  8.52

 718380               04/04/18  01  NUTS,BOLTS                      1132105340                       04/24/18                3.45

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.17

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  3.28

 718409               04/04/18  01  SANDING BELTS                   1132105340                       04/24/18                5.99

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.30

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  5.69

 718410               04/04/18  01  BELT SANDER 4.5 AMP             1132105340                       04/24/18               54.00

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -2.70

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 51.30

 718444               04/04/18  01  BOLTS-BENCHES                   1152005352                       04/24/18               16.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 16.99

 718456               04/04/18  01  ROLLERS,SOLVENT                 1152005350                       04/24/18               33.44

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.67

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 31.77

 718623               04/06/18  01  CHAINSAW SQUARES                1132135430                       04/24/18                5.49

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.27

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  5.22

 718867               04/09/18  01  CEMENT,CLNR,SAW BLADES          1134105261                       04/24/18               20.12

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.01

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 19.11



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   8

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DUNN     DUNN LUMBER & TRUE VALUE

 718968               04/10/18  01  GALVANIZED PLUGS                1152015350                       04/24/18                9.90

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  9.40

 719048               04/11/18  01  VALVE/VETS PARK LIONS DEN       1152015350                       04/24/18                8.99

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.45

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  8.54

 719115               04/11/18  01  THREADLOCKER                    1132105351                       04/24/18                8.99

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.45

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  8.54

 719149               04/11/18  01  BATTERIES                       1152005350                       04/24/18               12.99

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.65

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 12.34

 719151               04/11/18  01  HOSE BARB,NIPPLES-SPRAYER       1152015952                       04/24/18                6.94

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.35

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  6.59

 719233               04/12/18  01  SILICONE CAULK                  1132105351                       04/24/18                3.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  3.99

 719257               04/12/18  01  FASTENERS/1055 GARAGE           1132105350                       04/24/18               19.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 19.99

 719279               04/12/18  01  WIRE BRUSH,HEAT PROOF GREASE    1152005350                       04/24/18                7.98

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.40

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  7.58

 719284               04/12/18  01  TROUBLE LITE,CONNECTOR,PLUG     1132105351                       04/24/18               19.97

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 18.97

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 347.67



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:   9

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

GAGE     GAGE MARINE CORP

 149517               03/20/18  01  SWIM PIER REPAIR                4055305264                       04/24/18            3,048.54

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              3,048.54

 149559               03/21/18  01  LAUNCH PIER REPAIR              4052105264                       04/24/18            2,121.82

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              2,121.82

 149589               03/26/18  01  WEST PIER REPAIR                4052105264                       04/24/18           32,946.33

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:             32,946.33

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:              38,116.69

GAPPA    GAPPA SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC

 14906                04/02/18  01  DEADBOLT LOCKSET                4352005300                       04/24/18              298.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                298.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 298.00

GENON    GENEVA ONLINE INC

 1062413              04/02/18  01  EMAIL SVC-APR                   1112005221                       04/24/18                2.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                  2.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                   2.00

GLENF    GLEN FERN CONSTRUCTION LLC

 1023 DRAW 2          03/30/18  01  F/I RESTROOM REMODEL DRAW 2     4352005300                       04/24/18           57,612.44

                                02  F/I RESTROOM REMODEL DRAW 2     1100001391                                          20,242.21

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:             77,854.65

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:              77,854.65

GLUC     GENEVA LAKE USE COMMITTEE

 25                   01/18/04  01  2018 CONTRIBUTION               4054105740                       04/24/18              750.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                750.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 750.00



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  10

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

GRAIN    GRAINGER

 9737254954           03/23/18  01  FILTERS                         1151105240                       04/24/18              105.60

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                105.60

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 105.60

HESTA    HE STARK AGENCY INC

 6089COURT-3/18       04/03/18  01  COLLECTION FEES-3/18            1112005214                       04/24/18               27.59

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 27.59

 6089CRTPRK-3/18      04/03/18  01  COLLECTION FEES-3/18            1112005214                       04/24/18               13.75

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 13.75

 6089PARK3/18         03/30/18  01  COLLECTION FEES-JAN-MAR         4234505216                       04/24/18            1,120.79

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              1,120.79

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,162.13

HOME     HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 5297-3/18            03/21/18  01  SOLAR SALT,DOOR SWEEP           1116105310                       04/24/18               30.99

                                02  CLEANSERS                       1116105310                                              16.93

                                03  SOFT SOAP                       1151105240                                              10.98

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 58.90

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  58.90

HUMPH    HUMPHREY'S CONTRACTING

 03/15/18             03/15/18  01  MOBILE ST LT POST               1110005245                       04/24/18            7,875.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              7,875.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               7,875.00

HYDRAS   HYDRA SEAL, INC

 59020                03/23/18  01  HYDRAULIC REPAIRS               1132105250                       04/24/18              689.63

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                689.63



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  11

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

HYDRAS   HYDRA SEAL, INC

 59027                03/24/18  01  HYD CYL RPR-GROOMER             4054105352                       04/24/18              280.80

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                280.80

 59028                03/24/18  01  SWEEPER MOTOR                   1132105250                       04/24/18              359.19

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                359.19

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,329.62

ITU      ITU ABSORB TECH INC

 6972686              03/23/18  01  MOPS,MATS                       4055205350                       04/24/18               88.06

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 88.06

 6981159              04/06/18  01  MATS,RAGS,COVERALLS             1132105360                       04/24/18               80.70

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 80.70

 6981160              04/06/18  01  MATS                            1116105360                       04/24/18               95.93

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 95.93

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 264.69

JERRY    JERRY WILLKOMM INC

 239522               03/22/18  01  1350 GALS GAS                   1132105341                       04/24/18            3,225.15

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              3,225.15

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               3,225.15

JOHNS    JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC

 174068               04/05/18  01  APR SVC                         1136005294                       04/24/18           27,556.65

                                02  APR SVC                         1136005297                                          11,286.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:             38,842.65

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:              38,842.65

KAEST    KAESTNER AUTO ELECTRIC CO

 313883               03/23/18  01  US,STATE FLAGS                  1152005399                       04/24/18              708.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                708.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 708.00



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  12

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

KEITH    KEITH'S AUTO BODY INC

 48724                04/03/18  01  STEP SIDES-TRUCK #20            1132105250                       04/24/18              425.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                425.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 425.00

KENOSC   KENOSHA CIRCUIT COURT

 WARRANT-NUNEZ        04/10/18  01  WARRANT #11092017               1112002428                       04/24/18              300.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                300.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 300.00

LASERE   LASER ELECTRIC SUPPLY

 1460357-00           03/22/18  01  BULBS,BALLASTS                  4055205350                       04/24/18               60.62

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.21

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 59.41

 1460357-01           03/27/18  01  CONCESSION STAND LIGHT BULBS    1152015350                       04/24/18               64.08

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.12

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 62.96

 1460494-00           03/27/18  01  CONCESSION STAND LIGHT BULBS    1152015350                       04/24/18               40.30

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -0.81

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 39.49

 1460498-00           03/29/18  01  CONCESSION STAND LIGHT BULBS    1152015350                       04/24/18               92.72

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -1.85

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 90.87

 1460676-00           04/05/18  01  SAWZALL                         1132105340                       04/24/18              222.50

                                02  DISCOUNT                        1100004819                                              -4.45

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                218.05

 8113351-00           03/29/18  01  CREDIT-CONCESSION LTS           1152015350                       04/24/18              -30.44

                                02  CREDIT DISCOUNT                 1100004819                                               0.61

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                -29.83

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 440.95



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  13

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

LGREG    LAKE GENEVA REGIONAL NEWS

 1250711              03/08/18  01  LN-2018 STREET IMPROVEMENT BID  1110005314                       04/24/18              166.37

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                166.37

 1250849              03/01/18  01  LN-FT F/C CLERK AD              1115105310                       04/24/18              104.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                104.50

 1250849-2            03/08/18  01  LN-PT F/C CLERK AD              1114305310                       04/24/18              104.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                104.50

 1250849-3            03/15/18  01  LN-PT F/C CLERK AD              1114305310                       04/24/18              104.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                104.50

 1250849-R3           03/15/18  01  LN-FT F/C CLERK AD              1115105310                       04/24/18              132.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                132.00

 1250849R             03/01/18  01  LN-FT F/C CLERK AD              1115105310                       04/24/18              132.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                132.00

 1250849R2            03/02/18  01  LN-PT F/C CLERK AD              1114305310                       04/24/18              132.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                132.00

 1251317              03/08/18  01  BIKE/PED PH STUDY               1110005315                       04/24/18               64.16

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 64.16

 1251318              03/08/18  01  LN-615 CENTER ST CUP            1110005315                       04/24/18               42.34

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 42.34

 1251319              03/08/18  01  LN-330 BROAD ST CUP             1110005315                       04/24/18               43.49

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 43.49

 1251320              03/08/18  01  LN-831 WRIGLEY PIP              1110005315                       04/24/18               42.34

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 42.34

 1251330              03/01/18  01  ABSENTEE BALLOT                 1114305311                       04/24/18               13.67



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  14

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

LGREG    LAKE GENEVA REGIONAL NEWS

 1251330              03/01/18  02  ABSENTEE BALLOT                 1100001391                       04/24/18               95.76

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                109.43

 1251700              03/15/18  01  LN-2/26 COUNCIL MINUTES         1110005314                       04/24/18              218.50

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                218.50

 1252003              03/29/18  01  LN-HUMAN RES AD                 1115105399                       04/24/18              176.82

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                176.82

 1252553              03/22/18  01  LN-3/12 COUNCIL MINUTES         1110005314                       04/24/18              176.80

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                176.80

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,749.75

LGUTI    LAKE GENEVA UTILITY

 520 SOUTHWIND DR     02/18/04  01  520 SOUTHWIND DR BLDG 16        4500002453                       04/24/18           22,380.00

                                02  520 SOUTHWIND DR BLDG 16        4500002452                                          20,280.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:             42,660.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:              42,660.00

MARED    MARED MECHANICAL

 107262               03/30/18  01  PREV MAINT                      1151105240                       04/24/18              512.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                512.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 512.00

MARLI    MARLIN PRINTING & GRAPHICS

 495464               03/28/18  01  ENVELOPES                       1116105310                       04/24/18              105.00

                                02  ENVELOPES                       4234505310                                             105.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                210.00

 495541               04/05/18  01  INSPECTION PASS LABELS          1124005310                       04/24/18              107.24

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                107.24



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  15

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

MARLI    MARLIN PRINTING & GRAPHICS

 495543               04/05/18  01  INSPECTION FAIL LABELS          1124005310                       04/24/18              103.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                103.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 420.24

MCCOR    MCCORMACK & ETTEN ARCHITECTS

 1023-4/18            04/01/18  01  VISITORS CENTER REMODEL         4352005300                       04/24/18              871.25

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                871.25

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 871.25

MKCEL    MKCELLULAR INC

 ELKHOIN29960         01/10/18  01  SAMSUNG WIRELESS CHARGING PAD   1124005262                       04/24/18               35.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 35.99

 MKCLGIN8713          02/19/18  01  LIQUID GLASS SCREEN PROTECTION  1124005262                       04/24/18               29.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 29.99

 MKCLGIN8907          03/12/18  01  GALAXY S8 COMMUTER CASE         1124005262                       04/24/18               39.99

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 39.99

 MKCLGNIN7923CM       04/01/18  01  BEHRENS-CREDIT ON ORIG BILL     1132105262                       04/24/18             -100.01

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:               -100.01

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                   5.96

MLIC     SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP

 RE041018             04/03/18  01  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1112005134                       04/24/18               10.55

                                02  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1113005134                                              34.58

                                03  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1114305134                                              12.39

                                04  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         4234505134                                              43.41

                                05  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1115105134                                              37.50

                                07  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1124005134                                              27.48

                                12  INV 099009-MAY LIFE INS         1121005134                                             223.82



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  16

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

MLIC     SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP

 RE041018             04/03/18  15  INV 099010-MAY LIFE INS         1122005133                       04/24/18               65.17

                                17  INV 099019-MAY LIFE INS         9900005134                                              63.66

                                23  INV 099052-MAY LIFE INS         4055105134                                               4.09

                                24  INV 099052-MAY LIFE INS         1132105134                                             134.41

                                25  INV 099052-MAY LIFE INS         1116105134                                              25.76

                                26  INV 099016-MAY LIFE INS         4800005134                                              30.28

                                27  MAY LIFE INS                    1110005133                                             130.50

                                28  MAY LIFE INS                    1100002134                                             853.66

                                29  INV 099002-MAY LIFE INS         1114205134                                              42.70

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              1,739.96

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,739.96

MUNIC    MUNICIPAL SERVICES LLC

 201827               04/06/18  01  IWORQS SOFTWARE SETUP           1124005219                       04/24/18              513.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                513.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 513.00

NAPAE    ELKHORN NAPA AUTO PARTS

 112095               04/03/18  01  AIR FILTERS                     1152015340                       04/24/18               32.10

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 32.10

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  32.10

OFFIC    OFFICE DEPOT

 118617043001         03/23/18  01  PENS                            1116105310                       04/24/18                8.58

                                02  LEAD                            1115105310                                               4.67

                                03  PENCILS                         1114105310                                               8.44

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 21.69

 118618031001         03/23/18  01  HVY DUTY STAPLE REMOVER         1116105310                       04/24/18               12.79

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 12.79

 120260752001         03/28/18  01  COPY PAPER                      1116105310                       04/24/18              167.94

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                167.94

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 202.42



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  17

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

OTTER    OTTER SALES & SERVICE INC

 1010043              04/10/18  01  WATER PUMP-GARBAGE TRUCK        1132105351                       04/24/18              135.92

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                135.92

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 135.92

PFI      PFI FASHIONS INC

 239794               04/05/18  01  SHIRTS-SUMMER HELP              1132105340                       04/24/18              198.70

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                198.70

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 198.70

RCELEC   RC ELECTRONICS

 644218               03/21/18  01  RADIO-BACKHOE                   1132105262                       04/24/18              813.75

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                813.75

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 813.75

RHYME    RHYME BUSINESS PRODUCTS

 22394751             03/28/18  01  SHARP-TASKALFA 3011-APRIL       1124005310                       04/24/18              174.67

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                174.67

 AR212373             03/29/18  01  SHARP-M3550IDN-APR              1112005361                       04/24/18               21.49

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 21.49

 AR212374             03/29/18  01  SHARP-MAR B&W                   1116105531                       04/24/18               78.50

                                02  SHARP-MAR COLOR                 1116105531                                             168.24

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                246.74

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 442.90

ROTE     ROTE OIL COMPANY

 1808600005           03/27/18  01  306 GALS CLEAR DIESEL           1132105341                       04/24/18              783.06

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                783.06

 1808600006           03/27/18  01  392 GALS DYED DIESEL            1132105341                       04/24/18              881.60

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                881.60

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               1,664.66



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  18

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SCHEN    SCHENCK BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

 SC10169639           03/29/18  01  2017 AUDIT                      1115105213                       04/24/18            9,500.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              9,500.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               9,500.00

SHERW    SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY

 6857-1               04/04/18  01  CROSSWALK/PKG STALL             1134105370                       04/24/18            3,689.94

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              3,689.94

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               3,689.94

SUPPLY   THE SUPPLY CORPORATION

 68124-IN             04/03/18  01  TOWELS,TP,GLOVES,SOAP,EAR PLUG  1152005350                       04/24/18              903.14

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                903.14

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 903.14

T0001639 SERVPRO

 REFUND               03/26/18  01  REST-JOHNSON CN80FXHJQT         1112004510                       04/24/18              317.59

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                317.59

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 317.59

T0001640 LYNN RICHTER

 REFUND FROST CHARGE  03/29/18  01  REFUND FROST CHARGE             4800004656                       04/24/18               75.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 75.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  75.00

T0001642 JAMES RUSSELL

 REFUND               04/02/18  01  MAIL BOX REPLACEMENT            1132125344                       04/24/18               65.95

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 65.95

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                  65.95

T0001643 MICHELLE AVILA



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  19

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

T0001643 MICHELLE AVILA

 REFUND               04/11/18  01  AVILA-SEC DEP 4/7               4055102353                       04/24/18            1,000.00

                                02  AVILA-SETUP,SEC GRD 4/7         4055104674                                            -469.50

                                03  AVILA-EXTRA CLEANUP 4/7         4055104674                                            -150.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                380.50

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 380.50

TSC      TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN

 4033-3/18            03/14/18  01  TAILGATE LIFT ASSIST            1152005250                       04/24/18              179.99

                                02  GRASS SEED                      1132135430                                             434.92

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                614.91

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 614.91

UNITE    UNITED LABORATORIES

 INV218178            03/20/18  01  POND RESTORER-FOUNTAIN          4055205355                       04/24/18              556.40

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                556.40

 INV218866            03/27/18  01  AIR FRESHENERS                  1152005350                       04/24/18              378.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                378.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 934.40

VERME    VERMEER WISCONSIN INC

 20206366             03/23/18  01  STUMP GRINDER SWITCH            1132135420                       04/24/18               31.19

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                 31.19

 20206568             03/28/18  01  TEETH,SHANKS-GRINDER            1132135420                       04/24/18              369.56

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                369.56

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 400.75

WALCOT   WALWORTH COUNTY TREASURER

 64-246 3/18          03/31/18  01  COURT FINES-MARCH               1112002420                       04/24/18              372.60

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                372.60

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 372.60



DATE: 04/13/18                                          CITY OF LAKE GENEVA                                                PAGE:  20

TIME: 13:38:57                                          DETAIL BOARD REPORT

ID:   AP441000.WOW

                                                 INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 04/24/2018

 INVOICE #            INVOICE  ITEM

VENDOR #               DATE      #  DESCRIPTION                     ACCOUNT #            P.O. #      DUE DATE            ITEM AMT

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

WEENE    WE ENERGIES

 RE041018             04/15/18  01  7891-194-618 APR GAS            1116105224                       04/24/18              932.01

                                03  7837-744-963 APR GAS            1122005224                                             375.14

                                04  0480-524-472 APR GAS            4055105224                                             461.33

                                06  0847-573-906 APR GAS            1122005224                                             269.32

                                07  5288-664-956 APR GAS            1151105224                                             514.61

                                08  8052-439-940 APR GAS-1055       1132105224                                             181.97

                                09  8017-524-022 APR GAS-1065       1132105224                                             345.89

                                10  6602-046-262 APRGAS-1070        1132105224                                             469.68

                                11  7283-171-261 APR GAS            1152015224                                             103.14

                                12  1885-876-489 APR GAS            4800005224                                              81.99

                                13  3843-358-997 APR GAS            9900005222                                              83.00

                                14  5604-510-433 APR GAS            9900005222                                             226.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              4,044.08

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               4,044.08

WISC     STATE OF WISCONSIN

 64-246 3/18          03/31/18  01  COURT FINES-MARCH               1112002424                       04/24/18            2,066.43

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:              2,066.43

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:               2,066.43

YARDD    CHRIS RIZZO

 1820                 02/23/18  01  VIOLATIONS-FEB                  1132125344                       04/24/18              420.00

                                                                                                INVOICE TOTAL:                420.00

                                                                                                VENDOR TOTAL:                 420.00

                                                                                                TOTAL ALL INVOICES:       280,259.07


	0-April 23, 2018 Council Agenda
	/
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, April 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	8a-April 9, 2018 Council Minutes
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, April 9, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	8b-April 17, 2018 Council Reorg Minutes
	Organizational Meeting of the Common Council- Minutes
	Tuesday, April 17, 2018 – 5:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	9a-2018-2019 Operator Licenses
	5aa-Belanus, Zachary- Operator License
	5ab-Fryar, Michael- Operator License
	5ac-Hagren, Kelly- Operator License
	5ad-Peters, Robert- Operator License
	5ae-Rachael Englehardt- Operator License
	5af-Rude, Annette Operator License
	5ag-Steltenpohl, Johnathon- Operator License
	5ah-Stinebrink, David- Operator License
	5ai-Stinebrink, Timothy- Operator License
	5aj-Vogt, Edward Operator License
	5ak-Grimme, Nicholas Operator License
	5al-Wisniewski, Cynthia- Operator License

	9b- Street Banner Application- VISIT- Restaurant Week
	Taste of Lake Geneva and LGRW Street Banner Permit 
	2018- LGRW- Street Banners - 2 (002)
	2018-LGRW- Street Banners - 3 (002)
	Taste of Lake Geneva Banner 2018

	9c-American Legion Fourth of July Parade
	9d-LG Arts Foundation Temp Class B
	9e-Maple Park Homeowners Block Party Permit
	9f- Farmers Market at Horticultural Hall- Parking Waiver Request
	5ga-Thursday's LG Farmers Market- Horticultural Hall
	5gb-Thursday's Skematic_Farmers Market Layout

	11-Ordinance 18-5 Larkin Annexation_Redacted
	12a- Stark Agency Collection Agreement
	12b-White River Disc Golf Pedestrian Bridge Pay Request #3
	12c-Glen Fern Payment Request #2
	12d- Glen Fern Change Order Request #6
	12ea-Resolution 18-R31 City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule- Fire Dept- REDLINED
	/
	Schedule of Fees

	12eb-Resolution 18-R31 City of Lake Geneva Fee Schedule- Fire Dept- CLEAN
	/
	Schedule of Fees

	13a- Core CSM
	8. 751 Geneva Pkwy CSM - Core
	751 Geneva Parkway Core Commercial 3 lot CSM 04.16.18
	City of Lake Geneva Application for Land Division - Core Commercial, Inc. 031218
	180326_LG_CSM_2016-047 Lake Geneva CSM REV.  LOTS 03-17-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S1 CSM 3-28-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S2 CSM 3-28-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S3 CSM 3-28-2018


	8.a. Core Site Plan
	8.b. Core Lot 1
	8.c. Core Lot 2
	8.d. Core Lot 3
	8.e. Core Landscape Plan
	8.f. Core Landscape Plan 2
	8.g. Core Lighting Plan
	8.h. Core Lighting Plan 2
	8.i. Ross Elevations - Large File
	8.j. Ross Elevations 2 - Large File
	8.k. 5 Below Elevations - Large File
	8.l. Sketchworks - Proposed Ross anchored development site review cover letter 032818
	8.m. Core LG_Ross Stormwater Report 3-28-18 - Large File
	8.n. Core LG_Easement Docs Combined - Large File

	13ab- 751 Geneva Pkwy CSM - Core
	751 Geneva Parkway Core Commercial 3 lot CSM 04.16.18
	City of Lake Geneva Application for Land Division - Core Commercial, Inc. 031218
	180326_LG_CSM_2016-047 Lake Geneva CSM REV.  LOTS 03-17-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S1 CSM 3-28-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S2 CSM 3-28-2018
	2016-047 Lake Geneva S3 CSM 3-28-2018


	13ac- Core Site Plan
	13ad-Core Lot 1
	13ae- Core Lot 2
	13af-Core Lot 3
	13ag-Core Landscape Plan
	13ah-Core Landscape Plan 2
	13ai-Core Lighting Plan
	13aj-Core Lighting Plan 2
	13b-962 Mariane Terrace CSM
	962 Mariane Terrace CSM
	1. Application for CSM and Maps

	13ca- Resolution 18-R26-962 Mariane Ter CUP Resolution
	13cb- 962 Mariane Terrace CUP
	962 Mariane Terrace CUP ER-1 SR-4
	962 Mariane Terrace CUP Materials
	2. 962 Mariane Terrace Conditional Use App  01-26-18
	3. 962 Mariane Terrace Maps  01-26-18
	20180228113355327
	SKM_C454e18030201560
	ROZOLIS (14) SITE PLAN 03-02-18
	5. Rozilis A-2 (10) 01-26-18-lower level
	6. Rozilis A-3 (10) 01-26-18- first floor
	Rozilis A-4 (10) 01-26-18- second floor
	Rozilis A-6 (10) 01-26-18- elevation front
	Rozilis A-7 (10) 01-26-18- elevation rear & side
	Rozilis A-8 (10) 01-26-18- elevation side


	13d-244 Broad St PIP
	244 Broad St Theater PIP
	244 Broad Street PIP

	13ea- Resolution 18-R32- 837 Bayview Dr Pier Resolution
	13eb-837 Bayview Dr CUP
	837 Bayview Dr CUP _Boat Slip_
	837 Bayview Drive

	13f- 330 Broad St CUP
	330 Broad St Horticultural Hall CUP
	330 Broad St
	330 Broad St 2

	13fa-Resolution 18-R33- 330 Broad St Horticultural Hall Resolution
	13g-100 N Edwards Blvd Zoning Map Amend
	100 N Edwards zoning map change
	100 N Edwards Blvd Zoning Map Amendment

	13ha-Resolution 18-R34- 100 N Edwards St CUP Resolution
	13hb- 100 N Edwards Blvd CUP
	100 North Edwards Blvd Tristan Crist Magic Theater CUP  04.16.18
	100 N Edwards Blvd CUP Application
	100 N Edwards Blvd CUP Materials

	13i-Tourist Rooming Houses Memo
	14-Resolution 18-R35 Citizen Appointments
	15ba-COUNCIL - Prepaids - Coversheet and Description
	Prepaids

	15bb-Prepaids 3 30 18 to 4 9 18
	15bc-Prepaids 4 11 18 to 4 13 18
	15ca-COUNCIL - REG - Coversheet and Descriptions
	FLR Cover Sheet
	FLR Items over $5000

	15cb-Detail Board Report 4 17 18
	0-April 23, 2018 Council Agenda.pdf
	/
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, April 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall




